




Notice

RANBAXY
LABORATORIES LIMITED

Registered Office A-il Industrial Area Phase-Ill Sahibzada Ajit Singh Nagar Mohali 160 055 Punjab

NOTICE is hereby given that the 49th Annual General Meeting of Ranbaxy Laboratories Limited will be

held on Monday May 10 2010 at 11.00 A.M at Auditorium of The National Institute of Pharmaceutical

Education and Research NIPER SØctor-67 S.A.S Nagar Mohali- 160 062 Punjab to transact the following

business

ORDINARY BUSINESS

To receive consider and adopt the Profit and Loss Account for the
year

ended December 31 2009 and

the Balance Sheet as at that date and the Reports of the Directors and the Auditors thereon

To appoint Auditors of the Company to hold office from the conclusion of this Meeting until the conclusion

of the next Annual General Meeting and to fix their remuneration M/s BSR Co the retiring Auditors

are eligible for re-appointment

SPECIAL BUSINESS

To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modifications the following resolution as an

Ordinary Resolution

RESOLVED that Dr Tsutomu Une who was appointed as Director on December 19 2008 in the

casual vacancy caused by the resignation of Mr VK Kaul and whose term of office expires at this

Annual General Meeting and in
respect

of whom the Company has received notice from member

under Section 257 of the Companies Act 1956 alongwith the requisite deposit proposing his candidature

for the Office of Director be and is hereby appointed as Director of the Company

To consider and if thought fit to pass
with or without modifications the following resolution as an

Ordinary Resolution

RESOLVED that Mr Atul Sobti who was appointed as Director on May 24 2009 in the casual

vacancy caused by the
resignation

of Mr Vivek Mehra and whose term of office expires at this Annual

General Meeting and in respect of whom the Company has received notice from member under

Section 257 of the Companies Act 1956 alongwith the requisite deposit proposing his candidature for

the Office of Directoi be and is hereby appointed as Director of the Company not liable to retire by

rotation

By Order of the Board

Place Gurgaon S.K Patawari

Dated March 29 2010 Company Secretary

NOTES

MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO
APPOINT PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF AND SUCH PROXY
NEED NOT BE MEMBER OF THE COMPANY THE PROXIES TO BE EFFECTIVE
SHOULD BE DEPOSITED AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY NOT
lATER THAN 48 HOURS BEFORE THE COMMENCEMENT OF THE MEETING

The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 173 of the Companies Act 1956 is given below and

forms
part

of the Notice



M/s Alankit Assignments Ltd Alankit 2E/8 1st FloorJhandewaian Extension New Delhi-i 10 055 is

the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent for physical
shares of the Company Aiankit is also the depository

interface of the Company with both NSDL and CDSL

However keeping in view the convenience of shareholders documents relating to shares will continue

to be received by the Company at the Corporate Office of the Company at Plot No 90 Sector 32

Gurgaon-l22001 Haryana Tel No 91-124-4135000 Registered Office at A-il Industrial Area

Phase III Sahibzada Ajit Singh Nagar Mohali-160055 Punjab and Head Office at 12th Flooi

Devika Tower Nehru Place New Delhi-i 10019 Tel No 91-1 1-26237508 email address

secretariai@ranhaxycom

Members are requested to note that the Companys shares are under compulsory demat trading for all the

investors Members are therefore requested to dematerialise their shareholding to avoid inconvenience

Members holding shares in demateriaiised mode are requested to intimate all changes pertaining to their

bank details ECS mandates nominations power of attorney change of address/name etc to their

depository participant only and not to the Company or its Registrar and Transfer Agent The said intimation

will be automatically reflected in the Companys records

The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from Monday

May 2010 to Monday May 10 2010 both days inclusive

The Company has transferred unclaimed amounts of dividends paid upto September 2002 to the

Investor Education and Protection Fund of the Central Government as required under Section 205C of

the Companies Act 1956 Members may please note that if unpaid dividend is not claimed from the

Company for seven years from the date when it became due it shall be transferred to the Investor Education

and Protection Fund as stated above and it can not be claimed from that Fund

Members who have not encashed their dividend warrants within the validity period may write to the

Company Secretary Ranbaxy Laboratories Limited Plot No 90 Sector 32 Gurgaon- 122001 Haryana

for obtaining payment in lieu of such warrants

The documents referred to in the proposed resolutions are available for inspection at the Registered

Office of the Company during working hours between 9.30 A.M to 1.00 PM
except on holidays

The Certificate from the Auditors of the Company certifying that the Employees Stock Option Schemes

of the Company are being implemented in accordance with the SEBI Employee Stock Option Scheme

and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme Guidelines 1999 and in accordance with the resolutions of the

general body will be placed at the Annual General Meeting

10 Members seeking any information relating to the Accounts may write to the Company at Plot No 90

Sector 32 Gurgaon- 122001 Haryana for the attention of Mr 5K Patawari Company Secretary at the

earliest

11 Members/proxies should bring the attendance slips duly filled in and signed for attending the Meeting

12 Members who hold shares in physical form may nominate person in
respect

of all the shares held

by them whether singly or jointly Members are advised to avail of the nomination facility by filing

Form 2B in their own interest Blank forms will be supplied by the Company on request Members

holding shares in demat form may contact their respective Depository Participants for recording of

nomination

13 The Register of Directors shareholding will be available for inspection at the Meeting



EXPlANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 173 OF THE COMPANIES ACT 1956

Brief Resume and other information in respect of Directors seeking appointment at the Annual

General Meeting pursuant to Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement

ITEM NO

Dr Tsutomu Une was appointed as Director of the Company on December 19 2008 in the casual vacancy

caused by the resignation of Mr VK Kaul and holds office of Director upto this Annual General Meeting

Dr Une was elected as Non-Executive Chairman of the Board of Directors on May 24 2009

Dr Tsutomu Une aged about 62 years
is graduate from Hokkaido University School of Veterinary Medicine

and holds Ph.D in Microbiology

Dr Une joined Daiichi Pharmaceutical Company Limited Daiichi Japan in April 1970 and held many

important managerial positions He was inducted on the Board of Daiichi in June 1999 and subsequently

served as Managing Director for various functions during October 2002 to June 2006 when he was promoted

as Senior Managing Directoi Global Corporate Strategy of Daiichi

Daiichi Sankyo Company Limited Daiichi Sankyo was established in 2005 through the merger of Daiichi

Pharmaceuticals Co Ltd and Sankyo Company Limited the two leadingJapanese pharmaceutical companies

Dr Une was inducted as Director on the Board of Daiichi Sankyo in September 2005 and has been Member of

the Board Senior Executive Officei Global Corporate Strategy of Daiichi Sankyo since April 2007

He is member of the following Committees of the Board of Directors of the Company

Compensation Committee

Audit Committee

Science Committee Chairman

Shareholders/Investors Grievance and Share Transfer Committee

ESOPs Allotment Committee

Dr Une is neither Director on the Board nor holds committee membership of any other Indian company

Dr Une does not hold any shares in the Company

Nature of expertise in specific functional area Business Management

The Company has received Notice along with requisite deposit
of Rs 500 from member under Section 257

of the Companies Act 1956 proposing the candidature of Dr Tsutomu Une as Director of the Company

The Board of Directors considers that in view of the background and experience of Dr Une it would be in the

interest of the Company to appoint him as Director of the Company

The Board recommends the resolution for approval of the shareholders

Dr Une is interested or concerned in the proposed Resolution None of the other Directors are interested or

concerned in the proposed Resolution

ITEM NO

Mr Atul Sobti aged about 56 years is an alumnus of the Indian Institute of Management Ahmedabad and is

an Honours Graduate in Economics from Delhi University Prior to joining Ranbaxy he was the Executive

Director Sales Marketing Finance and HR at Hero Honda Ltd He has notched up many successes during his

career over 33 years spanning diverse industries such as Durables Information Technology and Automobiles

He has meritorious track record and experience of managing large business operations



Mr Sobti joined the Company in October 2005 as the President-India Middle East Asia Pacific and Global

Consumer Healthcare business and subsequently in January 2007 he was elevated to the position of Chief

Operating Officer and Whole-time Director of the Company

Mr Atul Sobti resigned from the Directorship of the Company on May 24 2009 Subsequently at the Board

Meeting held on May 24 2009 he was appointed as Director of the Company in the casual vacancy caused

by the resignation of Mr Vivek Mehra and holds office of Director upto this Annual General Meeting The

Board also appointed Mr Sobti as CEO Managing Director effective May 24 2009 for period of
years

which was approved by the Shareholders vide Resolution passed by Postal Ballot with overwhelming majority

Mr Atul Sobti being Managing Director would not be liable to retire by rotation in terms of the Articles of

Association of the Company

He is not holding directorship in any other Indian company

He is member of the following Committees of the Board of Directors of the Company

Science Committee

Shareholders/Investors Grievance and Share Transfer Committee

ESOPs Allotment Committee

He holds 4593 equity
shares of Rs.5 each of the Company as on the date of this Notice

Nature of expertise in specific functional area General Management

The Company has received Notice along with requisite deposit of Rs 500 from member under Section 257

of the Companies Act 1956 proposing the candidature of Mr Atul Sobti as Director of the Company

The Board recommends the Resolution for approval of shareholders

Mr Sobti is interested or concerned in the proposed Resolution None of the other Directors are interested or

concerned in the proposed Resolution

By Order of the Board

Place Gurgaon S.K Patawari

Dated March 29 2010 Company Secretary







Chairmans Message

behalf of the Ranbaxy family may
extend our best wishes to all of you

As the Chairman of the Board of Ranbaxy

feel it is an honour and privilege to be

associated with one of the top global generic

pharmaceutical companies which has

leadership position in India

The year 2009 was very significant for your

Company as it witnessed many important

and strategic changes The most significant

was the change in Management that is

leading to the institutionalisation of

transformed culture with strong

orientation on quality professionalism

organisational values and stakeholder

relationships

In May 2009 the executive leadership of

Ranbaxy was reconstituted was elected

as the Chairman of the Board and

Mr Atul Sobti took over as CEO and

Managing Director This was done with

view to accelerate the realisation of the

Hybrid Business Model of Ranbaxy and

Daiichi Sankyo In recognition of the rapid

changes in the business environment

evident in both developed and emerging

countries the integration of the respective

strengths of both Companies has already

been set in motion

In the
past year along with other Board

members have been working ceaselessly to

integrate the best functionalities of both

Companies in corporate culture that is

CHAmMANs MESSAGE

READY FOR THE
NEXT LEVEL

Dear Shareholders

Dr Tsutomu Une
Chairman
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Ranhaxy Lahoratories Limited Annual Report 2009

responsive and focused on realising the

immense value inherent in this unique

transformation We fully support the

leadership of Mr Sobti who has

abundant corporate experience in

successfully handling similar leadership

roles Under his guidance am

confident Ranhaxy will achieve

excellence in providing future strategy

stability operational execution

transparency and reliability

The Board has taken some strategic

decisions that are aimed at securing

the future growth of Ranbaxy In doing

so we have revisited operations in

some specific countries to consolidate

our presence and create value through

further efficiencies and cost synergies

One of the key focus areas has been

cost containment This will he an

ongoing process

We believe that the Innovator

Generics model is revolutionary and is

best suited to cater to the changing

dynamics of the global pharmaceutical

industry Unleashing the power of the

Hybrid Business Model various

synergies have been announced both

at the front and back end The

fundamental aim is to secure

sustainable growth in mature

developed markets while accelerating

expansion in the high growth emerging

markets

start has already been made in this

direction Ranbaxy has introduced

Daiichi Sankyos innovator products in

some markets starting with India

This benefits both Companies

Ranbaxy gains as its product portfolio

gets widened while Daiichi Sankyo

gets launch pad in those markets

where it is not present In April 2009

Ranhaxy began marketing Daiichi

Sankyos flagship product Olmesartan

Olvance in India Thereafter both

Companies have announced

partnerships in Romania Mexico

and Africa It will he our constant

endeavour to leverage each others

strengths by identifying new

synergies so that we can maximise

the strategic benefits of our

innovative model

In 2009 Ranbaxy continued to show

marked improvement on all financial

parameters surpassing the guidance

given by the Company both on

revenue and profit Although the

global fiscal environment remained

challenging Ranbaxy due to its vast

global presence in developed and

emerging fl1arketS was able to face up

to the economic storm

In line with our commitment to

spearhead the early introduction of

affordable quality generic medicines so

that medication is accessible and made

available to all the Company launched

three
important rst -To-File FTF

products viz Sumitriptan 100 mg
Valacyclovir Hydrochloride 500 mg
and 1000 nig and Oxcarhazepine

Suspension in the US

strongly believe that your Company is

ready for the next level of growth with

the right business model While there

will he challenges there are also plenty

of opportunities that lie ahead While

growth rates in the global

pharmaceutical market are expected to

remain in low single digits emerging

markets in contrast are likely to

witness strong growth am referring

here to markets like Brazil Russia

India China South Africa among

others These markets are likely to

sustain double digit growth momentum

during the period 2010 through 2013

With Ranbaxys strong presence in

many of the high growth markets the

Company is well poised to capitalise on

the growing generics pportunlty

to Dr 7Iutomu line Mr ltul Sobti Mr Thkashi Shoda Dr Anthont Wild Mr Raesh Shah Mr Akzhzro Watanahe Mr Percy Shro//
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Chairmans Message

During the year we were also faced

with some regulatory actions by the

U.S Food and Drug Administration

FDA We continue to fully cooperate

with the FDA and other authorities

and have specially formed task force

that comprises people from Ranbaxy

Daiichi Sankyo and outside specialists

We are doing our utmost to resolve the

regulatory issues at the earliest US is

key market for Ranbaxy and we are

committed in our efforts of being fully

compliant with the US regulatory

standards and to provide affordable

quality generic medicines to customers

and patients in the US

Your Company is constantly guided by

the institutionalised framework of

Corporate Governance and Code of

Conduct to strengthen decision

making and compliance with ethical

integrity and reliability The

Independent Directors on the Ranbaxy

Board who are well known

professionals in their respective fields

guided the management throughout

the year to take strategic decisions for

achieving higher levels of efficiency

and productivity

The Code of Conduct for employees

aimed at strengthening the

organisation through building culture

based on shared values was reviewed

and updated during the yeat It has

been instrumental in promoting

guidelines for employees to ensure

ethical conduct and business integrity

We strongly believe the Code will

continue to play key role in building

culture that is critical for your

Companys long term sustainable

growth profitability and business

reputation

Ranbaxy also made sincere efforts to

promote good health and social

development through its social

initiatives The Companys apex CSR

vehicle Ranbaxy Community

Healthcare Society RCHS launched

several initiatives to achieve positive

health for the underprivileged The

programs were based on the integrated

approach of preventive promotive and

curative healthcare services covering

areas of maternal child health family

planning reproductive and adolescent

health health education and AIDS

awareness

The 13000 strong multi-cultural work

force of Ranbaxy is one of its biggest

strengths appreciate the efforts by

Team Ranbaxy that displayed

exemplary spirit and seized every

possible opportunity for growth and

overcame several challenges The

Management undertook several new

initiatives to redefine the work culture

and people management processes

This has positively impacted people

practices to foster new culture based

on empowerment and transparency

The Management team at Ranbaxy is

committed to guide your Company to

emerge as truly global entity Ranbaxy

will remain as prestigious Company

listed on the Indian stock market

creating shareholder value

would like to take this opportunity to

thank you for supporting Ranbaxy in all

these years and look forward to your

continued support and encouragement

As the Chairman of the Board wish

to contribute to establish Ranbaxy as

an admirable and irreplaceable

company in the global arena

Best Wishes

1III2
Dr Tsutomu Une
Chairman
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CEO Managing Directors Message

Dear Stakeholders

009 has been historic year
for

Ranbaxy It was year of great change

challenge and opportunity year
when we

re-defined the scope and focus of our

business year
that provided glimpse of

the enormous potential that lies on our

horizon with the pioneering Hybrid

Business Model alongside Daiichi Sankyo

and with the impending patent expiries in

the US as also with our broader new

horizon of Bio-therapeutics

At an operational level amidst the

challenges of the global economic

environment change of ownership foreign

exchange impact and compliance

Ranbaxians across the world have

responded with strong character and

resilience and performance

Sales for 2009 were US 1.52 Bn

Rs 7344 crores Profit Before Tax PBT

was US 209 Mn over Rs 1000 crores

Profit After Tax PAT was US 64 Mn

Rs 311 crores

Ranhaxy had change in ownership in

late 2008 and change in the MD/CEO

in May 2009 In 2008 the Company had

incurred loss of over Rs 900 crores over

Rs Bn in no small measure due to

CEO MANAGING DIRECTORS
MESSAGE

THEtU Ii

Atul Sobti

CEO Minaging Director
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Ranhaxy Laboratories Limited Annual Report 2009

foreign exchange impact Our Paonta

Sahib facility was put
under the

Application Integrity Policy AlP by

the US FDA in Feb 2009 and the

Gloversville facility in the US was

issued warning letter in December

2009

We of course continue to co-operate

with the US FDA and the Department

of Justice for an effective resolution of

all outstanding issues

During the year Ranbaxys Toansa

facility CPU and CP in India and

the New Jersey flicilities in the US had

successful FDA inspections and all our

facilities including Dewas and Paonra

Sahib in India had successful

inspec tioris from many regulators

across the world

To strengthen Ranbaxys

manufacturing capacities new

facility was set tip
at the Special

Economic Zone in Mohali Punjab

We expect to commence production in

20 10 after receiving regulatory

approvals

Despite the very high impact

challenges the Company has

over-achieved on the guidance given at

the start of 2009 \Xe have improved

eluarter on quarter in 2009

culminating in an excellent quarter

with the launch of Valacyclovir

also commenced Phase III clinical trials

for our anti-malaria combination drug

We harnessed the change to define

some clear objectives and priorities

within year pathway This has

culminated in the development of our

Mid Term Plan for 2010 to 2012 We

also remained focused and committed

in our investment for tomorrow

especially in the US and India in

manufacturing and business

operations

In the US for 2009 we felt the full

year impact of the import alert on

products from Paonta Sahib and

Dewas However we were able to

launch three First-Th-File FTF

products successfully from our US

facilities as also an Authorized

Generic

The Companys business in India

continued to grow at healthy pace

Eighteen of our brands featured

amongst the Thp-300 brands in the

industry Revital flagship brand

emerged as the largest product in

the Indian Pharmaceutical Market

IMS MAT Nov 2009

We have taken bold step in ramping

tip
for big market share play in India

through Project VirAAt We will stay

the course with resources to hack it It

has started well under new leadership

VirAAt is key initiative to

strengthen the Companys domestic

leadership position The initiative will

augment new priltILt flo wlule

increasing extra-u rh inrural foi tprmnt

and customer and thet apy coverage

Our wide business
presenCe across the

globe has always been good iurce of

business opportur ity and dcrisk ln

2009 despite the gli haI slowdown we

did well in many count ties We also

took the opporttinirs to re-model sonic

of our country businesses for best

future value eg in the UK China

Japan and Vietnam And we

undertook most ci imprehensive

management of cost

In terms of alternative/new growth

areas we had identified the Biologit

space as strategic couple of years

ago and invested in eompan in

India Zenotech Labs With mn

First-To-File product with

exclusivity benefit in the US The

exclusivity continues into 2010 We
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CEO Managing Directors Message

increasing focus on prevention of

disease we also strongly feel that

Vaccines will be an important part of

the future Necessary steps have

therefore been taken to provide an

entry platform for the development

and manufacture of Vaccines and

Bio-therapeutics

All these initiatives are integral to our

defined three year objectives/priorities

The Hybrid Business Model is

progressing well This unique and

pro-active Model has the potential to

provide an excellent mix of innovative

and affordable quality medicine to

people around the world

The Model represents great

opportunity for Synergy benefits to

both Ranbaxy and Daiichi Sankyo

The scope is now wide and open

across geographies and functions

Some implementation has already

taken place The strategy for optimum

utilisation of the Ranbaxy NDDR

Discovery RD resource has also

been agreed on Daiichi Sankyo has

also just announced the formation of

new company for business in the

established pharmaceuticals/generic

space in Japan Globally Japan is the

second largest pharmaceutical market

and the generics penetration has just

started to gain momentum This offers

decades of solid growth potential for

Daiichi Sankyo and Ranbaxy

Finally we do strongly believe it all

comes down to the people the Team

People do matter and People do make

the difference

Team Ranbaxy in 2009 has been

exemplary from the top management

team that facilitated the smooth

transition of key ownership in May

change of great magnitude in

operation sensitivity and impact to

the US team that has courageously and

positively withstood some dark

moments and performed admirably

again and to the multiple Teams

across countries and functions that

have shown great fortitude in

adversity and performed

We also captured our current voice of

the employee through the 2009

Engagement Survey We constantly

work on ensuring effective cross

functional team work most

imperative in our industry

We do believe that the culture today is

one of transparency and

empowerment The priority of the top

would also like to mention special

thank you to the Ranbaxy Board for

their solid support and guidance

With warm regards

Atul Sobti

CEO Managing Director

management team is to enable

professional work culture
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HARNESSING
COMPETENCIES

lie year 2009 had its own set of

challenges and
opportunities for Ranbaxy

On the business front the Company

surpassed its guidance and delivered

heal thy performance achieving Olobal sales

of US $1 519 Mn Rs 7344 Mn
Emerging markets contributed 54% of sales

while developed markets accounted for

-In

IL

It was .i landmark year for Ranbaxys global

operations The focus was on transfornung

the rganisatil to meet the global demands

of the lit nrc through renev ed thrust on

customer service and jui1itv

We crc tIe lirst to launch several ncw

products ii Ii idm In the domestic market

Ranhaxy took huge step forward by

rolling out project Viraat with strong

commitment to achieve th top slot in the

market Ihe groundwork to achieve this

ambitious project has been done and the

project is now being operationalised Cost

opumisatton was another major focus area

In the US market Ranhaxy launched three

FirstToFile FTF products during the

year vi Sumatriptan \1alac clovir and

carhazepine Suspension

In Europe we were aim ing the first

ompalsies to launch new products

This is testimony of our commitment to

Orodiict Development Regulatory

Manufacturing and Sales operations in

Europe

GLOBAL PHARMACEUTICALS
BusiNEss

Arun Sawhney
President

lol PhirrnIeiitk its Biisincs
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ilohal Pharmaceuticals Business

On the pharmaceuticals

manufacturing front new Dosage

Forms facility has been set up in the

Special Economic Zone at Mohali

Punjab India This facility will cater

to the developed markets of the US

and the EU As start in 2009 the

first ANDA was filed from the site for

the US market Five more Marketing

Authorisation Applications MAAs
were filed in the EU in 2009 The new

commercial facility has capacity of

Bn tablets and 500 Mn capsules

per annum

We filed our first ANDA in 2009 from

Batamandi Himachal Pradesh India

with the US FDA We commenced

modernisation drive in South Africa

Altogether new manufacturing

facility is being set up for solid oral

Dosage Forms that will become

operational in first half of 2010

We are also investing in our

manufacturing facilities at Ohm
Laboratories Inc USA to significantly

enhance manufacturing capacities in

2010 Investments will continue in

2010 to build our future business in

the USA

In our efforts to rationalise global

manufacturing operations we

discontinued in-country

manufacturing in China and Vietnam

during the year

As further measure of rationalisation

starting in 2010 we will aggressively

look to outsource either products or

manufacturing capacities for our

business in other than the top 20

markets for Ranbaxy

Active Pharmaceutical Ingredients

API

The year saw visible demonstration

of good quality management systems as

well as quality of the manufactured

products The year witnessed

successful external audits of API

manufacturing sites by various

including US FDA inspection of

Toansa Punjab India and EU

inspection of Dewas Madhya Pradesh

India site

The effort in improving cost

effectiveness was driven through

numerous initiatives including

improvement in solvent and catalyst

recoveries energy savings and better

asset utilisation Catering to the

enhanced market demands number

of capacity enhancement projects were

undertaken and completed during the

year

All API sites remained fully compliant

with applicable Environment Health

and Safety EHS regulations Dewas

site went through successful

ISO 14001 Certification Audit and

Toansa and Mohali ensured the

continuation of ISO 14001

Certification through Surveillance

Audits by TUV NORD Various

initiatives were taken to strengthen the

EHS
systems

and practices thereby

improving EHS performance of the

division These included FSRA Fire

Safety Risk Assessment and HAC

Hazardous Area Classification

studies conducted at Toansa through

external experts and implementing the

recommendations at all locations

engaging the services of an

international agency for Industrial

Hygiene IH aspects of EHS and

inter-location EHS audits to name

few Other initiatives include ETP

up-gradation and installation of

MEE/ATFD for treatment of Hi-TDS

stream at Dewas capping of Solar

Evaporation Ponds at Toansa

Extensive EHS training was imparted

to employees and contractors during

the year

Ranbaxys API manufacturing

operations will remain the bedrock of

success in our Dosage Forms business

We commenced investment in

expanding capacities at our Dewas site

in 2009 By Q3 2010 this new

manufacturing block will become

operational We will continue to

strategically invest in our API facilities

in 2010

regulatory agencies and customers
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As in our Dosage Forms manufacturing

we will he looking to partner with

companies strategically for outsourcing

of either products or manufacturing

capacities even fir APIs

Synergies with Daiichi Sankyo

In India Ranbaxy introduced Daiichi

Sankyos innovative anti-hypertensive

product Olmesartan Medoxomil under

the brand name Olvance dedicated

marketing division within Ranbaxys

Mexico subsidiary has been

established which will soon introduce

Daiichi Sankyos products in this

market Ranhaxy will also leverage its

network in Africa and will be

launching Olmesartan Medoxomil in

six African markets further

strengthening the Companys position

logether with Daiichi Sankyo

Ranhaxy exploring synergistic

opportunities in the areas of RD
Manufacturing Global Supply Chain

Service/Support and IT functions

among others to secure maximum

value in the coming years

Recognitions and Awards

During the year Ranhaxy received

approvals from various regulatory

authorities Medicines and Healthcare

Products Regulatory Agency MHRA
UK and the Therapeutic Goods

Administration TGA Dept of

Health and Ageing of the Australian

Government issued Good

Manufacturing Practice GMP
certificates for Ranbaxys

manufacturing sites at Paonta Sahib

ftdlowing joint audit conducted in

October 2008 The MHRA approval

will cover product filings tbr the UK

and the entire EU The Batamandi

facility at Paonta Sahib was approved

by Pharmaceuticals and Medical

Devices Agency PMDA Japan The

Paonta Sahib plant also received

WHO approval during the year

The Company also received

ISO 14001 Certificate fir

Environment Management Systems

Ranhaxys manufacturing facility in

Dewas was felicitated Govt of

Madhya Pradesh India for significant

contributions in the field of

pharmaceutical nianutac turing and

being one of the largest exporter in the

State
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Therapy Focus

THERAPY Focus

EXTENDING THE
HEALINGTOUCH

Anti-infectives

Dnti-infectives remained the largest

therapeutic segment for Ranbaxy during

2009 The highlight of the year was the

successful launch of the Companys top

selling product Valacyclovir Hydrochloride

in the US with marketing exclusivity of 180

days Ranbaxy had earlier entered into an

agreement with GlaxoSmithKline to settle

the US patent litigation with regard to

Valtrex Valacyclovir Hydrochloride

tablets in 2007 The product was also

successfully launched on Day-i in UK and

France During the year the Therapeutic

Goods Administration TGA Australia

granted an approval for registration of

SEBIFIN Terbinafine tablets in Australia

Cardiovasculars

Cardiovasculars was another strong

therapeutic segment for Ranbaxy

Simvastatin became the second

best-selling product for the Company

Ranbaxy took early steps at introducing

Daiichi Sankyos innovator products The

Company launched Olvance Olmesartan

Medoxomil and its fixed dose

combination with Amlodipine

Ol-Vamlo in India Further expanding

its portfolio in Canada Ranbaxy

launched two important products

Ran-Simvastatin Simvastatin and

Ran-Amlodipine Amlodipine In the US
tentative approval was received to

manufacture and market Ramipril capsules

Dr Arun Purohit

Vice President Head

Global Therapy Management

13



Ranisixy Lahoratorie LiuiiuJ Annual Report 2009

Top 10 Products 2009

Valacyclovir

Simvastatin

Co-Amoxyclav

Ciprofloxacin and Combinations

Amoxycillin and Combinations

Isotretinoin

Ketorolac Tromethamine

Loratadine and Combinations

Ginseng Vitamins

Cephalexin

Atorvastatin and Combinations

and combination of Quinapril and

Hydrochiorthiazide tablets Covance

Losartan was launched on Day-i in

Malaysia

Musculoskeletal

In the Musculoskeletal segment

Ketorolac was the primary contributor

to sales In the US Ranhaxy entered

into an agreement with Validus

Pharmaceuticals to market and

distribute an Authorized Generic

version of Rocaltrol Calcitriol The

Company settled its litigation with

Purdue Pharma iii the IS on

Oxycodone Extended Release tablets

allowing the sale of the Authorized

Generic version for two months in

2010 Leveraging synergies generated

through the Hybrid Business Model

the Company launched Evista

Raloxifenc product from Daiichi

Sankyo in Romania Ranhaxys

flagship brand in this segment Volini

attained leadership position in India

garnering more than 35 00 market

share Volirii was also featured amongst

the lop 50 Indian brands

Central Nervous System

The Central Nerv us System segment

recorded healthy growth of 11% The

key products in tills segment were

Gabapentin and Sertraline The two

major products that deserve specific

mention under this segment are

Oxcarbazepine Suspension and

Sumatriptan tablets The Company

successfully launched these key

First-To-File products in the US with

180-days marketing exclusivity The

Company also signed license and

supply agreement with Syntropharma

for its Selegiline transdermal patch

Ranhaxys product portfolio was

further strengthened as approvals were

received for marketing Topiramate

tablets in the US Risperidone tablets

in Australia and Ropinirole tablets in

Canada

Gastrointestinals

Ranbaxy registered double-digit

growth of 10% in the Gastrointestinais

segment The Company made

promising Day-i launch of

Pantoprazole in the major markets of

Europe Final approval was received

from the US FDA to manufacture and

market Famotidine and Glycopyrrolate

tablets The approval of

Acetaminophen Extended Release

tablets underscored Ranbaxys

Over-The-Counter OTC presence

in the US Ondansetron tablets were

launched in Canada

Dermatologicals

The Dermatological franchise received

major thrust during the year through

the acquisition of brands and

marketing rights from Ochoa

Laboratories in India for their entire

range of Dermatological produc ts

These products complement Ranhaxy

existing strong frata lose of Ierini

products in India he ompan
entered into tw strategic

in-licensing agreenarits br the Indian

market New Chemical Entity

NCE Lulifin Ltilic uiaole was

launched under license from Summit

Pharmaceuticals Japan and an

agreement was signed ith Medy-Tox

South Korea to import and market

cosmetic product Neuronox purified

Botulinum Toxin TypeA
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Research Devckpment

EXPANL

OFK1

anbaxys commitment to offer

affordable medicines is key driver for the

Companys Research and Development

endeavors Our committed team of

scientists work constantly to build healthy

product pipeline and to develop cost-

effective medicines

New Drug Discovery Research

During the
year

the Company made

significant progress on its Anti-Malarial

molecule Phase III studies Pfalciparum

with the combination product Arterolane

maleate Piperaquine phosphate were

started in India and Thailand The

Company also plans to commence Phase II

studies in pediatric patients in India soon

Another Investigational New Drug IND

was filed with the Drugs Controller

General of India DCGI to conduct

Phase-Il studies in patients of

uncomplicated Pvivax malaria An

approval for grant of Rs 10 crore was

received from the Department of Science

and Technology DST India for the

clinical development of the combination

treatment

During the
year

the Company completed

Phase-I Rising Single and Multiple Dose

studies in India on one of the candidate

compounds in the Respiratory Segment

under the GlaxoSmithKline OSK
collaborative research program In lieu of

this the Company received related

milestone payments from GSK

Dr Sudershan Arora

President

Research Development

Dr Pradip Kumar

Bhatnagar
Senior Vice President

New Drug Discovery Research

REsEARcH DEvELoPMENT
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Approvals were received from the

DCGI for conducting Age Gender

study in India and another approval

was received from the National

Medical Agency Romania for conduct

of Phase-I Food Effect study in

Romania in another project within

the Respiratory segment Ranhaxy

received in -vivo Proof of Concept

related milestone payments

During the
year the Drug Discovery

ream filed patent applications and

the Herbal Research team filed

patent applications in India

Pharmaceutical Research

Dosage Forms

During the yeal Ratihaxy Iaun hed 42

products includint FirsttoLaunch

products for the domestic market of

which 15 were developed in-house

22 were oLit-sourced and vee

in -lie ensed

In USA ANDAs including

potential PIV FirstToFile FTF
were submitted

In the European Union 13 National

Filings for 13 products

in-licensed productsl in EU

Member States were filed and

products under Dc-Centralized

Procedure were also filed in 24 EU

Member States In addition Ranhaxy

filed products under the Mutual

Recognition Procedure in 20 EU

Member States

In other key markets the Company
made 209 filings These included 15 in

Russia including CIS Countries

each in Australia China and South

Africa and each in Brazil and

Canada Please refer Table-i for global

filing status

During the year the team filed 42

patents in India including 12 patents

in Novel Drug Delivery System

Chemical Research Active

Pharmaceutical Ingredients

In the area of Chemical Research the

emphasis continued on the

noninfringing patentable process

knowhow and the development of

new polymorphic It irnis of APIs

Consequently let liliology transfer

was completed for new i\PIs md

scaleup studies etc completed for

other New APh lie Company also

filed 179 Drug Mister Files

comprising 46 APl act SS various

countries and 64 patents in India

development of novel
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Financial Review

LATAM were higher during the year

The regulated markets including

North America and Europe were

affected due to the economic

slowdown

The contribution to sales of Developed

markets was 39% Emerging markets

was 54% and API was 7% The

second half of the year saw Developed

markets fare better than the Emerging

markets with the launch of two First

R-File FTF products in the USA
viz Valacyclovir and Oxcarbazepine

Suspension

Improved EBITDA and EBT for the

year was aided by FTF products

sales in the USA Continued focus

on cost optimisation and

rationalisation of business models

across countries and Favorable

forex movement

With respect to the currency volatility

the adverse impact on Ranbaxys

performance was significant in 2008

which continued through the first

half of 2009 Since then majority of

the losses due to the Dollar movement

have been reversed with the

subsequent strengthening of the

Indian Rupee in the second half of

2009 Despite improved profits in

2009 the Company still has carried

forward losses In view of this

dividend has not been proposed for

the year

Working capital and cash flows reflect

overall improvement despite tight

liquidity conditions in many markets

that we operate in In addition to the

impact on Companys operations due

to the economic slow down and the

currency volatility Ranbaxy faced

adverse regulatory action in 2009 in

regard to Application Integrity Policy

to Paonta Sahib India and warning

letter to Gloversville US The

Company is continuously making

efforts for an early resolution of the

issues and is cooperating with the

concerned authorities

The Company is continuing to

enhance the control and risk

management environment across the

organisation Since the Company is

subsidiary of Daiichi Sankyo it has

initiated an exercise to be compliant

with the Japanese Sox J-Sox

Information technology continued

to globalise and simplify information

flow at Ranbaxy Significant efforts

helped successfully achieve J-Sox

compliance and improve productivity

at the same time

Our enterprise SAP system was further

expanded with the roll-out to

additional subsidiaries Broadening

the
scope

of the single platform

approach we have also implemented

SAPs Governance Risk and

Compliance modules as well as

functionality to automate financial

consolidation and enhance

management reporting This

streamlines and automates much of

the required reporting for J-Sox

compliance Our Global Data Center

continues to he ISO 27001 compliant

one of the highest international IT

security standards This certification

is in conjunction with our on-going

efforts to secure protect
intellectual

property

To sum up Ranbaxy is confident of

its future with strong pipeline wide

geographic presence and looks

forward to capitalising on many

new initiatives These include our

journey to enter the vaccine space

with the acquisition of

manufacturing facility in Bangalore

as well as enlarging the scope of

synergies from the Hybrid Business

Model with Daiichi Sankyo These

will help the Company improve its

growth trajectory in the coming years

Sates Earnings Performance

80000

60000

40000

20000

120.0001

Sales EBT PAT

9.3491

2008

10098Li t07

Year 2009
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GLOBAL HuMAN RESOURCES

ONE TEAM
MANY OPPORTUNITIES

Bhagwat Yagnik

Hcid

IoHI II iiuin Rcource

the knovledge driven dynamic

pharmaceutical industry people are the

most critical drivers of growth The passion

commitment and steadfast performance

focus of our over 13000 strong diverse

workforce is the foundation supporting
and

upholding Ranhaxy As Company we

constantly strive to adapt people

management practices and invest in robust

systems and processes that hind us actoss

the globe encouraging them to seek unity in

purpose and vision

The year 2009 was characterised by change

and management transition with the

landmark deal between Ranhaxy and

Sankyo resulting in the formation of

powerful Hybrid Business Model The

Ranhaxy Executive Leadership was

reconstituted and the organisation

structure realigned for building more

robust and integrated global business

model Along with facilitating this

transition HR has renewed focus on

increasing alignment with business and

delivering organisational expectations

Further to leverage Ranbaxy and Daiichi

Sankyos respective strengths the Synergy

initiative was commenced identify

potential growth opportunities These

changes are an endeavour to create an

enabling global organisation structure

with higher responsiveness to external

challenges

The Indian Pharmaceutical ndustrv is on

the threshold of exponential growth and it

20



Global Human Resources

is imperative for us to mobilize our

resources to capitalise on the

opportunities ahead Identifying and

developing potential talent in short

span of time to meet this demand was

great achievement for Ranbaxys HR
in 2009 Establishing dominant market

supremacy in India is key strategic

priority for the Company and there will

be greater locus on building synergy

improving response time and ensuring

talent pool availability in 2010

With the plethora of unprecedented

growth opportunities there needs to

be conscious effort by organisations

to develop nurture and retain talent

For Ranbaxy talent management was

key focus area and in 2009 we

continued to strengthen our

management bandwidth by inducting

professionals Specific behavioural and

Organisational Development

interventions were targeted towards

creating interdepartmental role clarity

and coordination to clarify internal

customer concept and create better

functional responsiveness

Building employee engagement and

commitment forms cornerstone at

Ranhaxy Engagement initiatives have

specifically targeted four key areas-

Learning and Development

Performance Management

Recognition and Career Development

To provide greater career opportunities

to employees an online internal job

posting system VECTOR was

Sustained success for an organization

presupposes an unwavering

concentration on leadership

development and strengthening the

talent pipeline at all levels At

Ranbaxy learning and development

initiatives are directed towards

enhancing the effectiveness of

employees and we believe in building

human capabilities by exposing our

people to wide variety of business

complexities and providing them with

greater empowerment and

responsibility at all levels

Reward and recognition is yet another

critical component in Ranbaxys HR

strategy Our rewards philosophy was

redefined towards making it more

performance oriented and business

driven at the same time

acknowledging an employees

commitment to growth We believe

that culture of appreciating all big

and small achievements is crucial to

developing motivated contributing

workforce Along with an increased

focus on providing instantaneous

recognition of special efforts the

Global Appreciate Awards held for

the third
year running in May 2009

remains an important platform to

The most important stepping stone to

building an employee sensitive

organization is consistent ongoing

feedback from the employees To this

end our Global Engagement Survey

was rolled out in November 2009 to

capture the voice of our people This

will be an invaluable tool to measure

the effectiveness of our initiatives take

planned action and build culture of

transparency
and trust going forward

In move to ensure compliance with

the highest ethical standards that

Ranbaxy strives for the Code of

Conduct for employees has been

revised with guidelines for better

compliance The Code of Conduct will

serve as an ethical roadmap in all our

practices and is joint commitment by

the Company and all the employees for

ensuring high business integrity

As we enter 2010 with renewed

confidence the Company will

continue to strengthen people

processes and follow best practices to

nurture and empower people We aim

to harbour strong culture of

productivity responsibility and

learning We are optimistic that the

energy and enthusiasm of our peeple

will continue to be source of

competitive strength for the Company

and will play critical role in its future

growth

launched globally to facilitate internal felicitate outstanding employee

movements and lateral career shifts achievements

International development

opportunities are encouraged to ensure

greater people mobility across

geographies
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CoRPoRATE SOCIAL

REsPoNsll3anYAND ENvIRoNMENT
HEALTH SAFETY

FORMULATING
SUSTAINABLE FUTURE

Ramesh Adige
liialkni ape lie Atlairs

fl
ip lIe Cliii ft ItS

orporate Social Commitment and

Public Service is deeply embedded into the

cultural fabric of Ranbaxy Over the years

serious efforts have been directed towards

making meaningful contribution to

uplifting and transforming the lives of the

underprivileged The Company is also

extremely conscmus of its duty and

responsibility towards the environment We

continue to make sincere efforts to promote

good health sociai development and better

environment through various Company

programs that contribute to sustainable all

round growth

Corporate Social Responsibility CSR

In 1978 in the wake of the grim health

scenario in India Ranbaxy realised the

urgency to reach out to the

underprivileged sections of society that

had little or no access to basic healthcare

The Company took conscious decision to

contribute towards the national objective

Health For All Towards this end the

Ranhaxy Rural Development Trust was

set up and the first well equipped mobile

healthcare van was introduc ed in certain

underserved areas of Punjab As the

programme grew the Ranhaxy Communi tv

Healthcare Society RCHS an

independent body was created that is

devoted to the health of the

disadvantaged Today multiple e11

equipped mobile healtbe arc vans and

urban family welfare centre run by

22
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Ranbaxy Laboratories Limited

Attendance of Directors at Board Meetings and at the Annual General Meeting AGM
Name of the Director No of Board Whether attended the

Meetings attended AGM held on May 29 2009

Dr Tsutomu Une Yes

Mr Takashi Shoda Yes

Dr Anthony Wild Yes

Mr Akihiro Watanabe Yes

Mr Percy Shroff Yes

Mr Rajesh Shah Yes

Mr Atul Sobti Yes

Mr Malvinder Mohan Singh NA
Mr Sunil Godhwani NA
Mr Balinder Dhillori N.A

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee has been constituted as per
Section 292A of the Companies Act 1956 and the guidelines set

out in the Listing Agreements with the Stock Exchanges The terms of reference include

Overseeing financial reporting processes

Reviewing periodic financial results financial statements and adequacy of internal control systems

Approving internal audit plans and reviewing efficacy of the function

Discussion and review of periodic audit reports

1iscussions with external auditors about the scope of audit including the observations of the auditors

Recommend to the Board appointment of the statutory auditors and fixation of audit fees

Reviewing with the management the statement of uses application of funds raised through an issue public

rights preferential issue of securities etc

Reviewing with the management the performance of statutory and internal auditors

Minutes of meetings of the Audit Committee are circulated to members of the Committee and the Board

Composition and Attendance

During the
year 2009 five meetings of the Audit Committee were held onJanuary 22 March 27 April 24July 23

and October 25 2009 The composition of the Committee and details of the meetings attended by the members

during the year are as under

Name of the Member No of Meetings attended

Mr Akihiro Watanabe Chairman

Dr Tsutomu Une

Dr Anthony Wild

Mr Percy Shroff

Mr Rajesh Shah

Mr Sunil Godhwani

Mr Balinder Dhillori

Permanent Invitees

Mr Malvinder Mohan Singh

Mr Awl Sobti

Notes

1he Audit Committee of the Company was reconstituted on May 24 2009 as per details

Dr Tsutomu Une was co-opted as member of the Committee

ii Mr Sunil Godhwani and Mr Balinder Dhillon ceased to be members of the Committee and

iii
Mr Malvinder Mohan Singh ceased to be the permanent invitee of the Committee
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Dr Tsutomu Une attended five meetings of the Committee during the year Of these three were in his
capacit

as Permanent Invitee

Dr Anthony Wild and Mr Percy Shroff were co-opted as members of the Committee on.Juue 18 2009

Alenibeis of the Audit Committee have requisite financial and nianagement expertise and have old or hold senior

positions in reputed organizations

lhe Statutory Auditors Internal Auditor and the Chief Financial Officer of the ompany nit invited to attend

and participate at meetings of the Committee

The ompanv Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Committee

iiCompensation Committee

The Compensation Committee has been constituted as per the provisions set out in the SEBT Employee Stock

Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme Guidelines 1999 The terms of reference include

Administration anti superintendence of Employee Stock Option Schemes ESOS

Formulation of the detailed terms and conditions of the ESOS

Grant of stock options

Recommendation for fixation and periodic revision of compensation of the Managing Director and Executive

Directors to the Board for approval and review and approve compensation policy including piforinance bonus

incentives perquisites and benefits for senior management personnel

Minutes of meetings of the Compensation Committee are circulated to members of the Committee and the Board

Composition and Attendance

During the year 2009 three meetings of the Compensation Committee were held onJanuar\ March 27 and

July 23 2009 The composition of the Committee and details of the meetings attended hy the menthers during the

yea rare as under

Name of the Member No of Meetings attended

Air Rajesh Shah Chairman

Dr Tsutomu Une

Air Percy Shroff

1r Anthony H.Wild

Mr Balinder Dhillon

Mr Sunil Godhwani

Permanent Invitees

Air Malvinder Mohan Singh

Air Atul Sobti

Note

The mpensation Committee of the Company was reconstituted on Ala 2009 as pci details

Mi Balinder Dhillon ceased to he the Chairman Member of the Committee

ii Mr Sunil Godhwani and Air Malvinder ohan Singh ceased to be the member permanent iuvitcc rcspectivcl\

of the Comm it tee

ni Aim Rajesh Shah was appointed as Chairman of the Committee and

iv Dr Anthony \Vild and Mr Percy Shroff were coopted as niemnbers and Mr Atul Sohim as permanent

uivi tee ol the ommi tee

Remuneration Policy

lhc Remuneration Policy of the Company for managerial persons1 is primarily based on the ollo lug crit cr1

Pcrfirmance of the ompany its divisions and units

Track record potential and performance of indivitlual managers and

External competitive environment
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Remuneration of Directors

Remuneration of Executive Directors is decided by the Board based on recommendations of the Compensation

Committee as per the remuneration policy of the Company within the ceiling fixed by the shareholders The

details of the remuneration of Executive Directors for the year ended December 31 2009 are as under

Name of the Salary Commision eruieites Retiral Stock Service Contract

Director Allowances Benefits Opdons Tenure Notice Period

Severance

Fee

RsLcs

Mi Mats mdci 782.52 17.08 182 61

Mohan Singh

Mc Awl Sobti 419.99 316.15 1.28 L08 50.000 gians.d on years months

21.1.2009 .11 .111

ol

Rs 216
pci

shnc

Notes

Remuneration paid to Mr Malvinder Mohan Singh is for the period from 1.1.2009 to 24.5.2009 the day he stepped

down as Chairman CEO Managing Director of the Company He was also paid Rs.66 1.88 lacs and Rs 899.04 lacs

towards leave encashment and gratuity respectively

The remuneration paid to Mr Atul Sobti comprises of remuneration paid to him as Chief Operating Officer and

Whole-finie Director upto May 23 2009 and subsequently as CEO Managing Director of the Company effective

May 24 2009

Remuneration of Executive Directors consists of fixed component and commission which is linked with the profit of the

Company

Retiral benefits are exclusive of provision for future liabilities in respect of retirement benefits which are based on actuarial

valuation clone on overall Company basis

The market price of the share of the Company onJanuary 20 2009 was Rs 215.15 Hence the aforesaid options were not

granted at discount The options granted are exercisable till expiry of ten years from the date of grant Vesting period

will commence on the expiry of one year from the date of grant of options and the entitlement will be in the graduated

scale over period of five years as provided in the Employees Stock Option Scheme of the Company

Mr Malvinder Mohan Singh was paid Rs.48 13.83 lacs as compensation for loss of office pursuant to the Employment

Agreement and Separation Agreement entered with him

Remuneration to Non-Executive Directors

Remuneration to Non-Executive Directors comprises commission and sitting fees The shareholders of the Company

at their Annual General Meeting held on May 29 2009 approved the payment of commission to Non-Executive

Directors not exceeding 10/0 of the net profits of the Company as computed under the relevant provisions of the

Companies Act 1956 The Board of Directors determines the commission payable to the Non-Executive Directors

keeping in view the independent status contribution at the Board and Committee meetings and responsihilities

considering the extensive global operations of the Company

Details of remuneration paid to the Non-Executive Directors for the year ended December 31 2009 are as under

Name of the Director Conunission Sitthig Fees

Rs.Lacs Rs Lacs

Di Lut imu tie 25 1.15

\lr Fakashi Shoda 25 2.20

Mr Rajesh Shah 30 2.80

Mr Percy Shroff 30 1.70

Dr Anthony Wild 30 2.00

Mr Akihiro Watanabe 30 .80

Mr Balinder Dhillon 2.10

_Mr Sunil Godhwani 2.10

None of the
present

Non-Executive Directors holds an shares in the Company
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iiiScience Committee

irms of Reference of Science Committee include

Approvai of focus areas of research especially New

1rug Iiscovery Research NDDR and Novel

Irug Delivery Systrns NDDS and

Monitoring progress of NDDR and NDDS

Minutes of meetings of the Science Committee are

circulated to members of the Committee and the Board

Composition and Attendance

During the
year 2009 one meeting of the Science

Committee was held on April 23 2009 The

composition of the Committee and the attendance

of the members at the said meeting is as under

Name of the Member No of Meetings

attended

lr IsililiiIi in h.iirin.ni

Mr Takashi hoda

Dr Anthony Wild

Mr Atul Sobti

Mr Malvinder Mohari Singh

Mr Sunil Godhwani --

Permanent Invitees

Head of RD Division of

the Company

Attended the meeting as permanent invitee

Mc Malvinder Mohan Singh and Mr Sunil Godhwani

ceased to he members of the Committee we.f May

24- 2009 Mr Atul Sobti was co-opted as member

of the Committee w.e.f July 24 2009

iv Management Committee

The Management Committee was dissolved by the

Board of Iirectors effective July 24 2009

Shareholders/Investors Grievance and

Share Transfer Committee

The ShareholdersYlnvestors Grievance and Share

1ransfer Committee has been constituted as per the

pro\sions
set out in the Listing Agreement The terms

of reference include

Approve transfers transmissions issue of duplicate

certificates transpositions change of names etc

and to do all such acts deeds matters and things

as connected therein

Review complaints of the shareholders and action

taken by the Company

Minutes of meetings of the Shareholders/Investors

Grievance and Share Transfer Committee are

circulated to members of the Committee and the

Board

Composition and Attendance

During the year 2009 four meetings of the Committee

were held on January 21 March July 23 and

November 30 2009

Name of the Member No of Meetings

attended

\Ii Piie K. hn ill hairmaii

Dr Isutonil lit

Mr Atul Sobti 1-

Mr Malvinder Mohan Singh

Mr Balinder Dhillon

Mr Sunil Godhwani

Note

The Shareholders/Investors Grievance and Share

Transfer Committee of the Company \vas

reconstituted on May 24 2009 as per details

Mr Sunil Godhwani ceased to he the Chairman

and Member of the Committee

Mr Malvinder Mohan Singh arid Mr Balinder

Dhillon ceased to be members of the Committee and

Mr Percy Shroff was co-opted as Member

and appointed as Chairman of the ommittee

The Company addresses all complaints suggestions

and grievances expeditiously and replies have been

sent/issues resolved usually within days except in

case of dispute over facts or other legal constraints

The Company received 4-9 shareholders complaints

which inter-alia include non-receipt
of dividend

annual report split shares non-receipt of share

certificates etc The complaints were duly attended

to and the Company has furnished necessary

documents/information to the shareholders

The Shareholders/Investors Grievance and Share

Transfer Committee reviews complaints received and

action taken by the Company in this regard

No requests for share transfers are pending except

those that are disputed or suh-judiee

Mr S.K Patawari Company Seeretary is the

Compliance Officer of the Company
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GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

Details of the General Meetings held in the last three years

Annual General Meeting

Year

2007

Date

31-5-2007

Day

Thursday

Time

11.00 A.M

Venue

2008 30-5-2008

Special Resolutions Passed

The National Institute of

Pharmaceutical Education

Research Sector 67
S.A.S Nagar Punjab

Friday

No Special Resolution passed

11.00 AM The National Institute of

Pharmaceutical Education

Research Sector 67

S.A.S Nagar Punjab

Appointment of Dr Brian %V

Tenspest as an Advisor to

Ranbaxy Europe Ltd wholly

owned subsidiary of the

Company for period of three

years effectiveJanuary 2008

Approval for ansendnsent in

existing Ensployees Stock Option

Schemes of the Company to

provide that Stock Options

granted and outstanding in the

hands of the employees who may

be transferred to any entity

affiliated to the Conipany would

vest on the date of transfer of

2009 29-5-2009 Friday 11.00 AM

such employees provided one

year
has elapsed between the

late of grant of stock options

and date of such transfer

The National Institute of

Pharmaceutical Education

Research Sector 67

S.A.S Nagar Punjab

IL Extra-ordinary General Meeting

2008

Approval under Section 3094 of

the Companies Act 1956 for

payment of commission to the

Non-executive Directors of the

Company not exceeding one

percent of net profits of the

Company in the aggregate for all

the Non-executives Directors in

financial year for period of five

years eomnseneing from January

2009

15-7-2008 Tuesday 9.00 AM Confederation of Indian

Industry CII

Block No Seetor-3

Dakshin Marg

Chandigarh

Approval under Section 811

of the Companies Act 1956 for

issue of Equity Shares and

Warrants of the Conipany ott

preferential basis to Daiiehi

Sankyo Company LisnitedJapan

Approval for amendment to the

existing Employees Stock Option

Scheme of the Company to

the effect that maxinsuni nunsber

of stock options that may be

granted to individual management

employee in year be increased

front 40000 to 300000
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Postal Ballot

During the year the shareholders of the Company passed

tvo ojdinary resolutions through postal ballot Detailed

procedure followed by the Company is provided

hereunder

The Board of Directors of the Company Board
in its meeting held on july 24 2009 sought the

approval of the shareholders through postal ballot for

the following two items as Ordinary resolutions

Item No Appointment of Mr Malvinder Mohan

Singh as Chairman CEO Managing Director for

the period from December 19 2008 to May 24 2009

the date he stepped down from the said positions and

lisymet of remuneration to him for the said period

Item No Appointment of Mr Atul Sobti as Chief

Executive Officer Managing Director of the

Company and payment of remuneration to him for

period of three
years

effective May 21 2009

The Board appointed Mr Sooraj Kapoor Practising

Company Secretary and Ex-Registrar of Companies

as Scrutinizer for conducting the postal ballot
process

The Notice of the Postal Ballot datecljuly 31 2009

Postal Ballot lorm and self-addressed pre-paid postage

envelope were sent to the shareholders The last date

for receipt of the Postal Ballot form from the

Shareholders was September 11 2009

Mr Sooraj Kapoor submitted his report dated

September 18 2009 with the Company and based on

the said report
results of Postal Ballot were declared

on September 22 2009 as under

Item No of No of Votes Votes

No Valid Invalid cast in cast in

Ballots Ballots favour against

Received Received

5811 .121 27 L37.550 153.172

19.830 0.1 7/o

5686 469 271623.671 35387

005 t.t5/o

The Resolutions were approved by the overwhelming

majority of the shareholders The results were also

published in Financial Express and Punjabi Tribune

and posted on the website of the Company

CODE OF CONDUCT

The Code of Conduct for the Directors and

Employees of the Company is posted on the website

of the Company

Certificate from CEO and CFO

Certificate trorii CEO EQ or tIll tiiitiini Veol

ended 1ecemher 31 200 lois ioii pro\lIed

elsewhere in the Annual Report

DISCLOSURES

Related Party Transactions

Fhe orrilJaI1\ has not eiiteitd Otto aitv toisotiiin

of material nature with the
lrllinotlrs

the

Iirectors or the managenietil iheii suIndi
or relatives etc that may have tii j.iteiititil 0111111

with the interests of the Conlpail\

Disclosure of Compliances by the

Company

During the last three years nit penalties or

strictures have been imposed nit he nm lii\

the Stock Exchanges or SEBI am other statotor\

authorities on mat tels related
ipi

al in arket

Disclosure of Accounting Treatment

There has not been any signihe.iitt chants in tIn

accounting policies during tIn

Risk Management

The Company has protdtirc inlorni the

Board about the risk assessment and ilIlnimisattoli

piocedures Ihe Board of Directors periodical1

reviews the risk management raniework do

Company

lhe Company has complied tilt all the

mandatory requirements and lll adopted 1100

mandatory relunemeIIts as pr lIttuls Ivllt below

The Board

llie Company maintains In nI ot lie

hair mait at its orpotat
Ft cc at Plot

No 90 Sector 32 2200 lituvatta

and also reimburses the l\leitns ttictiried ii

peifoirnattce of his duties

lheie is no fixed tenti re ni ndepeiidtti

Directors

Declaration as required under Clause 49 of

the Listing Agreement

All Diectors and Senior Manaitenieiit peisnnt1 It

the Company have affirmed comphtiuiee with tIn

provisions ol the Ranbaxy Code it ondtnt hr

the financial year ended leceml et 210

\tttl SolIti

iS \l ttict
Ii

Gurgaon Flarvana

February 22 2010
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Remuneration Committee

The Company has constituted Compensation

Committee as detailed in 4u hereinabove

The Chairman of the Compensation
Committee is an independent director and was

present at the last Annual General Meeting

Shareholders Rights

The quarterly financial results are published

in the newspapers as mentioned under the

heading Means of Communication at SI

No hereinbelow and also displayed on the

website of the Company The results are not

separately circulated to the shareholders

Audit qualifications

There are no audit qualifications in the

Companys financial statements for the year

under reference

Training of Board Members

No specific training programme was arranged

for Board members However at the Board/

Committee meetings detailed presentations are

made by Professionals Consultants as well as

Senior Executives of the Company on the

business related matters risk assessment

strategy effect of the regulatory changes etc

Mechanism for evaluating Non-

Executive Board Members

The Company has not adopted any mechanism

for evaluating individual performance of Non-

Executive Directors

Whistle Blower Policy

The Company has laid down Code of

Conduct for all its employees across the

organisation The Code of Conduct of the

Company lays down that the employees shall

promptly report any concern or breach and

suggests not to hesitate in reporting violation

or raising policy concern to the Code

Compliance Cell or concerned superior The

Code provides that the Company shall support

and protect employees for doing so The

Company does not have Whistle Blower Policy

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

The Company regularly intimates unaudited as

well as audited financial results to the Stock

Exchanges immediately after these are taken on

record by the Board These financial results are

normally published in the Business Standard/

Financial Express the Punjabi Tribune and are

displayed on the website of the Company

wwianhaxcum Further in compliance of

Clause 52 of the Listing Agreement the above

information and other communication sent to

Stock Exchanges have also been filed under

Corporate Filing and Dissemination System

CFDS and are available at website

wwwcorpfilingco.in

The official news releases and the presentations

made to the investors/analysts are also displayed

on the Companys website

Management Discussion and Analysis Report

forms
part

of the Report of the Directors

10 SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Annual General Meeting

Date MaylO20l0

Time 11.00 A.M

Venue The National Institute of Pharmaceutical

Education and Research NIPER
Sector-67 S.A.S Nagar

Mohali- 160 062 Punjab

No Special resolution is proposed to be passed by

Postal Ballot at the aforesaid Annual General Meeting

Financial Calendar

Adoption of Quarterly

Results for the

quarter ending

June3O2010

September 30 2010

December 31 2010

March3l20l1

3rd/4th week of

July 2010

October 2010

January 2011

April 2011

Subject to the amendment in the Listing Agreements

Book Closure Dates

May 32010 to May 10 2010

both days inclusive

LISTING ON STOCK EXCHANGES

The Equity Shares of the Company as on December

31 2009 were listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange

Ltd and National Stock Exchange of India Ltd

Global Depository Receipts GDRs are listed on the

Stock Exchange at Luxembourg Forcign Currency

Convertible Bonds FCCBs have been listed with the

Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited

The Company confirms that it has paid annual

listing fees due to the Stock Exchanges for the year

2009-2010

STOCK CODE

The National Stock Ranbaxy

Exchange of India Ltd

Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd 359 Physical

500359 Demat
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REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER AGENTS

M/s Alankit Assignments Ltd Alankit 2E/8 1st

iloor.Jhandewalan Extension New Delhi- 110 055 is

the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent for physical

shares of the Company Alankit is also the depository

interface of the Company with both National

Securities Depository Ltd NSDL and Central

Depository Services lndia Ltd CDSL
Fl owever keeping in view the convenience of

shareholders documents relating to shares will

continue to he received by the Company at Corporate

Office of the Company at Plot No 90 Sector 32

Gitrgaon-l 22001 Haryana Tel No 91-124-4135000

Registered Office at A-I Industrial Area Phase-Ill

Sahibzada Ajit Siugh Nagar Mohali-1 60055

Punjab and Head Office at 12th Floor Devika Towei

Nehru Place New Delhi- 110019 Tel No 9111

26237508 email address secrctarial@ranbaxy.com

Market Price Data Rs
Month Bombay Stock National Stock

Exchange Exchange

BSE NSE

High Low High Low

Janu.n 2009 257.70 101.15 257.70 165.10

1shriiai ttP 2H.Ittt I5t.ti5 2H.tt 159.25

\ltih 2tttt J11tttt Ii 1.15 l11.1i .3.Itt

\1nil 2t22tt tjttt 2t2tt ItO.tttt

\J 2ttt0 280 Itt 107.00 280 IS 1t1.t

june 20tt0 ii I.Ott 12.70 112.it 2.55

tl 2ttt 210t.15 lflttt 2911it 1t.ttt

\u8ut 2ttt0 183tt 257.tt .1 lOOt 257 lIt

ejteniher 2ttO II 718t .12 It lOOt 2.20

ol 2ttto lIt 162.tt5 lOSt 62.0S

l.euIIe 2tttl lhtt.75 17 tIlt 161.81 17 lIt

ltcetiiljer 2tttt i1.ttt lSlttt .5111 IS 155.10

SHARE TRANSFER SYSTEM

With view to expedite the process
of share transfers the

Board of Directors of the Company has delegated the

power of share transfer to some of the Directors with

appropriate individual limits The delegated Directors

attends to the share transfer formalities once in

fortrnglit The shares Ihr transfers received in physical lorm

are transferred expeditiousl provided the documenis are

complete and the shares under transfer an not under any

dispute The share certificates duly endorsed are returned

immediately to shareholders Confirmation in respect of

the requests for dematerialisation of shares is sent to the

respective depositories i.e NSDL and Cl SL expeditiously

DEMATERIALIZATION OF SHARES

The shares of the Company are in compulsory demat

segment and are available for trading in the depository

systems of both NSDL and CDSL As on December

2009 412.597.279 equity shares of the Compan forming

98.1 4o of the Share Capital of the Company stand

dematerialised

International Securities Identification Number

TNEOI5AOIO28 with NSDL and CDSI

Shareholding Pattern as on December 31 2009

Category

PronotcrsDaiichi

San kyo oIl ipally

Ltd. Japai

Mutual Funds UI
Banks Financial

Institutions Insurance

Coinptinics

FITs

Private orlorat

Bodies

Public Shareholding

GDRs

Grand Total 420417358 100.00

No of Percentage of

Shares held Skareholduig

26871 1.323

12389298

37344211

28382.838

14.791.602

5309685

5501185

3.81-1

2.63

1.31

Stock Price Performance

Ranbaxy vs BSE Sensex Year 2009

20.0000

18000.0

160000

It

6000

5500

1000

450.0

400.0

0- 350.0

300.0

250.0

2000

1500 41

5000

Jun Fub Mu Ap Muy Jun J01 Aug Sup Oct Non De

855 Se noon

Nate Efoned on dody cosiny dots of the 835 Senses lEts one Ronhasv IRs Per shore

140000

12000.0

50000.0
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From To No of SbarØboMers No of Sbares

Number lotal Number Total

50 104009 55.23 2346147 0.56

51 100 29819 15.84 2506213 0.60

101 -200 17732 9.42 2780601 0.66

201 -300 7784 4.13 1992293 0.47

301 -400 5391 2.86 1883531 0.45

401 500 3606 1.92 1687147 0.40

501 600 2633 1.40 1462535 0.35

601 700 1936 1.03 1266531 0.30

701 -800 1503 0.80 1142600 0.27

801 -900 1134 0.60 970424 0.23

901- 1000 1697 0.90 1650711 0.39

1001 -2000 5872 3.12 8399113 2.00

2001 3000 2070 1.10 5072374 1.21

3001 -4000 1052 0.56 3616659 0.86

4001 5000 542 0.29 2455376 0.58

5001 above 1498 0.80 381185103 90.67

Total 188278 100% 420417358 100%

in the Sensex of the leading Stock Exchanges

Outstanding Stock Options

Number of Stock Options outstanding

as on December 31 2009 7413016

Options granted upto October 2002 are entitled for

additional shares on proportionate basis in view of issue

of bonus shares by the Company in the proportion of

in October 2002

The Company had allotted 23834333 Warrants to

Daiichi Sankyo Company LimitedJapan on October 20

2008 Each Warrant is exercisable at any time between

six months to eighteen months from the date of allotment

at the option of the holder of the warrant for one fully

paid Equity Share of the Company of Rs each at

price of Rs 737 Rs.73.70 has been paid in
respect

of

each Warrant çbeing 100 of the exercise price at the

time of allotment and the balance amount of Rs.663.30

for each Warrant will be payable at the time of exercise

of Warrants These warrants are outstanding as on

December 31 2009

The Company had raised US$440000000 in the
year

2006 through Zero Coupon Convertible Bonds The

Bonds are convertible any time on or after April 27 2006

upto March 2011 by the holders into fully paid Equity

Shares of Rs.5 each of the Company which may subject

to certain conditions be represented by Global Depository

Shares GDS with each GDS representing one share at

conversion price of Rs.7 16.32 per share which is subject

to adjustment in certain circumstances In case if the

Bonds are not converted into shares the Company will

redeem each Bond at l26.765o of its principal amount

on the maturity date i.e March 18 2011

5501185 GDRs representing 5501185 Equity Shares

of Rs.5 each constituting l.31/o of the issued subscribed

and paid-up share capital of the Company were

outstanding as on December 31 2009

Plant Locations of the Company

A-8-11

Industrial Estate Phase- III

Sahibzada Ajit Singh Nagar

Mohali 160 055 Punjab

Village Toansa P0 Railmajra

Distt Nawansahar Punjab 144 533

A-41 Industrial Area Phase VIII-A

Sahibzada Ajit Singh Nagar

Mohali 160 071 Punjab

Industrial Area

A.B Road Dewas 450 001

Madhya Pradesh

Village P0 Ganguwala

Tehsil Paonta Sahib 173 025

Distt Sirmour H.P

Village Batamandi

Tehsil Paonta Sahib 173 025

Distt Sirmour HP
E-47/9 Okhla Industrial Area

Phase-Il Okhla New Delhi 110 020

Plot No B-2

Madkaim Industrial Estate Ponda Goa

K-5 67 Ghirongi

Malanpur Distt Bhind 477 116 M.P

Address for Correspondence

Shareholders are rec1uested to contact

Mr Patawari

Company Secretary

Ranbaxy Laboratories Ltd

Plot No 90 Sector 32 Gurgaon-122001

Haryana

Tel.No 91-124-4185888 4135000

Fax No.91-124-4106490

Email address secretarial@ranbaxy.com

Distribution of Shareholding as on December 31

2009

Liquidity of Shares

The Equity Shares of the Company have been included
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Certificate

To the Members of

Ranbaxy Laboratories Limited

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Ranbaxy Laboratories Limited

the Company for the year ended on December 31 2009 as stipulated in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement of the

Company with the stock exchanges

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management Our examination

was limited to procedures and implementation thereof adopted by the Compan for
ensuring

the ompliance of the

conditions of Corporate Governance It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of

the Company

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us sc certify that the

Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the abovementioned Listing

Agreement

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the ompany nor the

efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company

For Co
Chartered lccountants

Vikram Aggarwal

Place Gurgaon Partner

Dated 25 February 2010 Membership No 089826
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To the Board of Directors of Ranbaxy Laboratories Ltd

We Atul Sobti Chief Executive Officer Managing Director and Omesh Sethi President and Chief Financial

Officer certify that

We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended December 31 2009 and

that to the best of our knowledge and belief

these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements

that might be misleading

ii these statements together present true and fair view of the Companys affairs and are in compliance with

existing Accounting Standards applicable laws and regulations

There are to the best of our knowledge and belief no transactions entered into by the Company during the year

which are fraudulent illegal or violative of the Companys Code of Conduct

We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and have

evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting and we

have disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Committee deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal

controls if any of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies

We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee that

there has not been any significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year under

reference

ii there has not been any significant changes in accounting policies during the year requiring disclosure in the

notes to the financial statements and

iii there has not been any instances during the year of significant fraud of which we had become aware and the

involvement therein if any of the management or an employee having significant role in the Companys

internal control system over financial reporting

Atul Sobti Omesh Sethi

CEO Managing Director President and Chiff Financial Officer

Place Gurgaon

Date February 25 2010
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Dr Tsutornu Une

Chairman

Mr Takashi Shoda

Dr Anthony Wild

Mr Akihiro Watanabe

Mr Percy Shroff

Mr Rajesh Shah

Mr Atul Sobti

CEO Managing Director

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr Patawari

REGIONAL HEADQUARTERS
Gurgaon Ilndia London South Africa

NewJersey Rio deJaneiio

MARKETING OFFICES

Doula Kiev Moscow Ho Chi Minh City Kaunas Lithuania

Nairobi Abidjan vory Coast Yangori Myanmar Almaty Duhat UAEI
Harare Casablanca Morocco Sofia

STATUTORY AUDITORS
BSR Co Building No 10 8th Floor Tower-B DLF Cyber City Phase II Gurgaon 122002

BANKERS
ABN AMRO Bank Calyon Bank Citibank NA Deutsche Bank AC

Hong Kong Shanghai Banking Corporation Punjab National Bank Standard Chartered Bank

REGISTERED OFFICE

A-I Industrial Area Phase-Ill Sahibzada Ajit Singh Nagar 160 055 Punjab

Ph 2271450 Fax 2226925

CORPORATE OFFICE

Plot No 90 Sector 32 Gurgaon 122 001 Haryana Ph -124 4135000 Fax 35001

HEAD OFFICE

12th Floor Devika Tower Nehru Place New Delhi 110 01

Ph 26237508 Fax 26225987
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Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 49th Annual Report and Audited Accounts for the year ended December

31 2009

STANDALONE WORKING RESULTS UNDER INDIAN GAAP

Rs inMillion

Net Sales

Profit Loss before Interest Exchange Gain Loss Net
on Loans Depreciation Amortization Impairment and Tax

Interest

Exchange Gain/ Loss on Loans

Depreciation Amortization and Impairment

Profit Loss before Tax

Tax charge/ Benefit

Profit Loss after Tax

Balance as per
last Balance Sheet

Transfer from Foreign Projects Reserve

Surplus/Deficit carried forward

Year ended

December31
2009

45359.09

11002.73

394.66

1493.13

1482.03

10619.17

4899.33

5719.84

8265.83
13.76

2532.23

Year ended

December 31

2008

43393.63

5713.32

1458.28

7474.52

1544.69

16190.81

5742.79

10448.02

2162.69

19.50

8265.83

CONSOLIDATED WORKING RESULTS UNDER INDIAN GAAP
Net Sales

Profit Loss before Interest Exchange Gain Loss Net
on Loans Depreciation Amortization Impairment and Tax

Interest

Exchange Gain/ Loss on Loans

Depreciation Amortization and Impairment

Profit Loss before Tax

Tax charge Benefit

Profit Loss after Tax

Share in Loss/Profit of AssociatesNet

Minority Interest

Profit/Loss for the
year

Balance as per last Balance Sheet

Transfer from Foreign Projects Reserve

Surplus Deficit carried forward

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Consolidated Financial Statements for the year
ended December 31 2009 under Indian GAAP form part of the

Annual Report

OPERATIONS

The Company recorded net consolidated sales of Rs 73441 Mn against Rs.72555 Mn in the previous year Profit

before Tax stood at Rs 10098 Mn against loss of Rs 15000 Mn for the previous year Profit after Tax for the year

stood at Rs 3107 Mn against loss of Rs 9349 Mn for the previous year
The turnaround in profits from operations

was primarily on account of revenues from First to File products in the US market cost optimization and higher gross

margin due to changes in product mix The strengthening of rupee versus dollar also contributed towards increased

earnings The Company continues to focus on cost optimization and efficient working capital management

The Company has started pursuing Hybrid Business Model with Daiichi Sankyo Company Limited DS its Holding

Company to leverage the strengths of both the organizations During the
year

the Company launched DS branded

73441.32

11991.04

710.43

1493.13

2676.12

10097.62

6990.87

3106.75

32.38

109.45

2964.92

4009.92
13.76

1031.24

72555.23

2626.26

2055.01

7494.35

2824.69

15.000.31

5650.84

9349.47

78.21

84.37

9512.05

5482.63

19.50

4009.92
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product in india and another Innovator product in Romania The Company intends to launch such products in Africa

as well in other countries In addition the Company and DS arc working on various initiatives to leverage coSt synergies

arising
trom backend functions such as IT and manufaeturing

In regard to Application Integrity Policy warning letters to its manufacturing facilities at Poanta ahib India and

Gloversville USA and import alert issued USFDA the Company is continuously making sincere cfhrts or early

resolution of the issues raised by the SFD1\ and the lepartment of Justice and is fully cooperating with the said

authorities

DIVIDEND

In view of the
carry

thrward losses no dividend has been declared for the year

CHANGES IN CAPITAL STRUCTURE

Allotment of shares on exercise of Employees Stock Options

During the year the Company allotted Equity Shares on paripassu basis pursuallt to exercise ot Stcck Options

by the eligible employees as summarized below

Date of Allotment No of Shares

July 13 2009 2.160

October 12 2009 45.115

SUBSIDIARIES AND JOINT VENTURES

Japan

Japan as the second largest Pharmaceutical market in the world oilers significant opportunity in the generic arena

due to low generic penetration
and the Nlinistrv of Health Labor and \Velfares target of 3Oi genericization injapan

by 2012 With view to have larger participa1io1 in growth in the generic filing opportunities in Japan the Company

set up wholly-owned subsidiary in Japan under the name of Ranbaxy Japan and divested its stake in Nihon

Pharmaceutical Industry Co Limited joint venture in Japan with Nippon Chemiphar Co. Limited

China and Vietnam

As part of consolidating its operations the Company has divested its stake in its subsidiaries in Vietnam and China

having manufacturing operations However the Company continues to have marketing presence
in Vietnam and

China as these are important pharmaceutical markets

statement pursuant to Section 212 of the Companies Act 956 \ct relating to subsidiary companies is attached

to the accounts In terms of the approval granted by the Central Government vide letter no 17/708/2009-CL-Ill

dated December 2009 under Section 2128 oF the Act the audited accounts and Reports ot Board of Directors

and Auditors of the Companys subsidiaries have not been annexed to this Annual Report The consolidated financial

statements prepared in accordance with Accounting Standard issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of

India presented in this Annual Report include the financial intormation of the subsidiary eornpanlls

ACQUISITIONS

The Company has acqtnred

Marketing rights for dermatologieal and lifestyle products from Oehoa Laboratories Limited ti complement the

Companys existing derrna portfolio and

Business and inanutaeturing facility in Bangalore from Biovel Life Sciences Private Limited 1his will provide

platform to the Company to manufacture vaccines as well as biotherapeuties

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

Management Discussion and Analysis Report as recluired under the Listing Agreements with the Siock Exchanges is

enclosed at Annexure

EMPLOYEES STOCK OPTION SCHEME

Information regarding the Employees Stock Option Scheme is enclosed at Annexure
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LISTING AT STOCK EXCHANGES

The Equity Shares of the Company continue to be listed on Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd and The National Stock

Exchange of India Ltd Global Depository Shares are listed on the Stock Exchange at Luxembourg and Foreign

Currency Convertible Bonds are listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Ltd The annual listing fees for

the year 2009-20 10 have been paid to these Exchanges

DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS

As required by the Companies Disclosure of Particulars in the Report of Board of Directors Rules 1988 the relevant

information and data is given at Annexure

FIXED DEPOSITS

The Company has not invited received any fixed deposits during the year

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

In terms of provisions of Section 21 72AA of the Companies Act 1956 Act your Directors confirm that

In the preparation of the annual accounts the applicable accounting standards have been followed along with

proper explanation relating to material departures wherever applicable

ii The Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and

estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company

as at the end of the accounting year and of the profit of the Company for the year

iii The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in

accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and

detecting fraud and other irregularities

iv The Directors have prepared the annual accounts on going concern basis

DIRECTORS

On May 24 2009 Mr Malvinder Mohan Singh stepped down as Chairman CEO Managing Director Dr Tsutomu

Une was elected as the non executive Chairman of the Board of Directors and Mr Atul Sobti was appointed as the

CEO Managing Director of the Company The shareholders of the Company vide their resolution dated September

22 2009 passed through postal ballot approved the appointment of Mr Sobti as CEO Managing Director of the

Company for period of years Mr Sunil Godhwani and Mr Balinder Singh Dhillon resigned from the Directorship

of the Company effective May 24 2009 The Directors place on record their appreciation for valuable contributions

made by the outgoing Directors

Dr Tsutomu Une and Mr Atul Sobti who were appointed as Directors of the Company in the casual vacancies caused

by resignations of Mr VK Kaul and Mr Vivek Mehra respectivelc hold office upto the date of this Annual General

Meeting The Company has received Notices along with requisite deposit from members under Section 257 of the

Companies Act 1956 proposing the candidature of Dr Tsutomu Une and Mr Atul Sobti as Directors of the Company

Mm Atul Sobti being the Managing Director will not be liable to retire by rotation in terms of the Articles of Association

of the Company

Mr Percy Shroff was appointed as Director of the Company on March 27 2009 against the casual vacancy caused

by resignation of Mr Harpal Singh

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Report on Corporate Governance along with the Certificate of the Auditors M/s BSR Co Chartered Accountants

confirming compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreements

with the stock exchanges forms part of the Annual Report

COST AUDIT

The reports of M/s R.J God Co Cost Accountants in respect
of audit of the cost accounts relating to formulations

and bulk drugs for the year
ended December 31 2009 will he submitted to the Central Government in due course
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AUDITORS

M/s BSR Co Chartered Accountants retire as Auditors of the Company at the conclusion of ensuing Annual

General Meeting and have confirmed their eligibility and willingness to accept the oflice of the Auditors if re-appointed

STATEMENT OF EMPLOYEES

Statement of particulars of employees as required under Section 21 72A of the Companies Act 953 Act and

Rules framed thereunder forms
part

of this Report Howevei in terms of the provisions of Section 21 iiv of the

Act this Report and Accounts are being sent to all the shareholders excluding the statement of particulars of employees

under Section 21 72A of the Act Any shareholder interested in obtaining copy of the statement ma\ write to the

ornpany Secretary at the Corporate Office of the Company

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Ihe Directors wish to place on record their appreciation of the significant contribution made by each and every

employee of the Compan The Directors also thank all other stakeholders for their support and encouragement Your

Directors look forward to your continued support in the years to come

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Gurgaon Dr Tsutomu Line

March 25 2010 Chairman
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ANNEXURE

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

INDUSTRY STRUCTURE DEVELOPMENTS

The global pharmaceuticals market sales grew by approximately 5.7/s at constant exchange rate to reach USS 727

Bn in 2009 North America Europe andJapan remained the key markets accounting for about 86/a of the worldwide

pharmaceutical sales in 2009

Developed Markets US Japan UK Spain Germany France Italy and Canada grew by 4/s during the year The

Pharmerging markets Brazil Russia India China Turkey Mexico and South Korea continued to strengthen their

position in the global landscape and grew by 170/0 in 2009 Global pharmaceutical market is projected to grow at

cumulative average growth rate CAGR of 4-7/a for the 2008-20 13 period Forecasted CAGR for the Developed

Market
ranges

between 2-S/o while the Pharmerging markets are expected to have CAGR between 13-1 6/o for the

same period

Significant factors that have resulted in slowdown in the pharmaceutical market are lower consumer spend due to

the economic downturn increased volume for generic drugs leading to decrease in the total value for the industry

and lesser number of new patent protected products in the market

Pharmaceutical sales in North America the worlds largest market were US$ 316 Bn growth of 4.00/o constituting

43/o of the global sales in 2009 of these sales in the United States accounted for US$ 298 Bn and grew by 3.9/s

Europe clocked sales of US$ 226 Bn growth of 4.7/o and contributed 31/s to the global pharmaceutical industry

Sales in Latin America led by key markets of Brazil and Mexico grew by 11.90/0 to reach US$ 33 Bn Asia Africa and

Australia combined grew by 9.6/s to USS 152 Bnthe worlds second largest market recorded sales of USS 80

Bn and grew by 6.1/a

The industry especially in the generics market has become highly competitive This coupled with the drying up of

pipelines of innovator companies is leading to consolidation in the generics and innovator industry as consequence

new hybrid models between innovator and generic companies are evolving Thus the pharmaceutical industry is

witnessing adoption of new business models where innovator and generic companies work together to leverage each

others strengths The new business model will help innovator companies get access to emerging markets lower

manufacturing and RD cost base while generics companies will gain from higher RD capabilities of innovators

and access to innovator drugs

Generics2

The global generics market grew by 7.7/a in 2009 to USS 83 Bn with the top eight markets US Germany UK
Canada France Spain Italy andJapan contributing 76/s Growth in the generics segment in top eight markets was

8/s surpassing the 3/s growth witnessed in the branded segment in the same countries In Japan while generics

accounted for only l4/s of the market by volume growth during the year was promising 2/a

Ranbaxys collaboration with Daiichi SankyoCo Ltd DS gives the Company opportunity to tap the large genericizing

Japanese market

Growth in emerging markets is driven by increasing domestic consumption due to strengthening of healthcare

infrastructure greater awareness and improving economic conditions Generics segment in emerging markets is

predominantly branded which further improves attractiveness

With over US$ 80 Bn of drugs going off patent in the next two years and higher generic penetration across developed

and emerging markets the generics market will continue to provide attractive growth opportunities Ranbaxy with its

diversified geographic reach across developed and emerging markets is well positioned to capitalise on opportunities

in both
segments

of the market

Source IMS 31st EditionJanuary 2010

2Based on IMS MAT Nov 2009
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The collaborative business model as mentioned earlier will also leverage lower Rl cost and reach of the generics

companies especially in emerging markets for the innovator companies With competitive ark litta es in RD
manufbcturing and marketing Indian companies today stand at the forefront to partner with innovator pharmaceutical

organizations

prevailing market environment in these geographies is discussed below

USA Generics market grew by 7/o to US$ 34 Bn in 2009 Generics continued to play an increasingly pr minent role

in the US healthcare market and accounted for 72/s of total US pharmaceutical market volume rcaclnng an all Unic

high in 2009 major growth driver for generics is the upcoming patent expiries
for many blockbuster pharmaceutical

products which will become open to generic competition

According to the baseline forecast by IMS Health the US generics market is expected to deliver /\GR in excess ot

l4/o in value terms over the period 2005 to 2010

Europe Generics market in Europe grew by 6.2/o in value terms up from l.7 growth reported in the last year and

accounted for 37.4/o of the market in volume terms up from 36.1/s in previous ear

The key markets in Western Europe were under pressure
from

price erosion %Vhile the volumes rciiiaiiied at peak

during the year lower prices affected growth Generics market in Germany grew by 8o in France and Spaiii by

while in the UK growth was 5% during 2009 Rumania key market in Central Europe was impacted din to

healthcare reforms and the market was also under
pressure

from unprecedented currency fluctuation entral Eastern

Southern Europe continued to experience buoyant growth led by higher per capita pharmaceutu at expenditure

and an increasing utilization of generic drugs driven by the governments efforts to reduce healthcitrc spend

India The Indian pharmaceutical market grew at robust 16.9/o in 2009 to Rs 101 Bn ORG IMS r.iXi Dcc 2009

Acute therapy dominated the market with value contribution of 71 /o The acute segment grew 6.3 during the

year as against lB.7/s growth witnessed in the chronic segment Of the overall market growth existing prodttcls

contributed O.30u New products launched in the last two years contributed 5.7% while price changes contrilMited

0.9/a

The Indian pharmaceutical sector continues to demonstrate strong growth despite the global economic slowdown due

to inherent strength of the Indian domestic market economic growth heathcarc infrastructure expansion nsiig

incidence of chronic diseases and increase in healthcare access in the extra urban and rural markets The potential ot

the Indian pharmaceutical market is recognized by most of the major players which is manifested iii hverse strategies

being adopted by various organizations Such strategies include sales force and gecgraphical expansion and new pu ducts

launches etc En order to gain market penetration companies are increasing their reach into the extrituirhan and rural

markets as well

At
present USA Europe and India are the three largest markets for Ranhaxy

OUTLOOK ON OPPORTUNITIES

Outlook for the global generics industry continued to be positive and the segment is expected to itness significant

growth based on opportunities arising from the US$ 80 Bn drugs going off
lJtent in the next two ycais increasing

healthcare burden in developed economies leading to higher genericization rorm for more genericization in some

major markets such as Japan Australia and France and increasing healthcarc costs in developing cc tnt oflies where

generic pharmaceuticals generally have an edge over the innovator companies due to lower price strin ttirc and better

reach

Ranbaxy with ground operations in 16 countries and presence in 125 is among the top 10 genents pltrmtce11ti1al

companies globally With its exclusive FirsttoFile FTF marketing opportuniries in the nited States including sonic

of the worlds highest selling drugs e.g Atorvastatin and Esomeprazole Ranhaxy has balanccd rc\tuue-niix with

high growth emerging markets contributing 56/s to sales and developed markets contributing including revenue

from the Active Pharmaceutical Ingredients API business

Collaborating with DS our Holding Company Ranbaxy has adopted unique Hybrid Business iii ulel Durnig the

year Ranbaxv began to leverage its global marketing presence to market DSs innovator products In this context

Ranbaxy launched Olrnesartan an innovative product of DS in India Raloxifene another DS innovation vis launched
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in Romania by Ranbaxys subsidiary Terapia Ranbaxy The Company plans to launch such products in Africa as well

as some other countries new business division was established within Ranbaxys subsidiary in Mexico to market

DSs innovator products Ranbaxy and DS aim to harness synergies in other diverse areas such as RD manufacturing

distribution IT etc as we continue to engage together

In order to consolidate its operations optimize cost and improve efficiency Ranbaxy undertook change in the business

model of its global manufacturing operations divesting its manufacturing facilities in China and Vietnam It also

restructured its business operations in Europe

USA USA remains key market for the Company and will be the catalyst of future revenue growth on the back of

strong product pipeline As on December 31 2009 the Company had 204 ANDAs filed with the USFDA of which

138 have been approved Market size of pipeline of the Companys pending ANDAs at innovator prices is about

US$ 45 Bn Of these the Company believes that it has Paragraph-TV FTF status on 13 applications with sales of

close to US$ 24 Bn at current innovator prices

The Company launched three products with exclusivity during the year viz Sumatriptan in February Valacyclovir in

November and Oxcarbazepine suspension in December

Europe Business in Europe remained under pressure during the year Competition among generic companies continued

to increase putting pressure on prices Romania the Companys largest market in Europe is witnessing liquidity

crunch in the distribution channel and also expected to undergo multiple healthcare reforms which is adversely

affecting the market growth Despite the many challenges Ranbaxy has maintained its leadership position in

genericsOTC segment in this market The Company is variabalizing its cost structure in Europe to counter the

difficult market conditions

India The Indian pharmaceutical market is expected to grow at 11-1 2/a per annum to reach US$ 20 Bn by 2015 and

US$ 3OBn by 2020 which will place it among the worlds 10 largest pharmaceutical markets The key catalysts for this

will be strong economic growth increasing health awareness healthcare infrastructure expansion rising incidence of

chronic disease and increase in healthcare access in the extra urban rural markets

The emergence of an organized pharmaceutical retail segment and the fast growing area of medical insurance are

likely to be other important factors that would positively impact the sector in the coming years

OUTLOOK ON THREATS RISKS AND CONCERNS

The global generics business has risks associated with patent litigation regulatory issues and product liability particularly

in developed markets Innovator pharmaceutical companies also continuously develop ways to enhance lifecycle of

their patented drugs to delay entry of alternate generics Further emerging markets are becoming more competitive

with entry
of new players Ranbaxy as global generic Company faces all such regulatory compliance and market

risks

Manufacturing of pharmaceutical products heavily regulated and controlled by regulatory and government authorities

across the world Failure to fully comply with such regulations could lead to stringent actions from the authorities/

government revocation of drug approvals failure or delay in obtaining approvals for new products product recalls of

existing drugs sold in the market prohibition on the sale or import of non-complying products and criminal proceedings

against non-complying manufacturers

Regulators across the world including the USFDA have become stricter with the pharmaceutical industry Regulatory

requirements and consequences
for non-compliance are also getting more severe

The USFDA invoked its Application Integrity Policy AlP against Ranbaxys Poanta Sahib manufacturing facility in

February 2009 Further in December 2009 the Company received warning letter from the USFDA for its liquid

manufacturing facility located in Gloversville New York USA for certain cGMP violations

The Company continues to co-operate fully with the concerned authorities towards speedy resolution of the USFDA

and Department of Justice related issues As regards the warning lette the Company has retained the services of

global consulting firm to provide expertise and advice on issues cited by the USFDA The above-mentioned issues may

have negative impact on Company
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In the Indian pharmaceutical market pricing for certain pharmaceutical products is governed by the Drug Pricing

Policy through the Drug Price Control Order 1995 DPCO Ranbaxy has some pending legal cases and may face

negative consequences on this account Further adverse changes in IPCO Drug Policy may affect the Companys

performance

Overseas business contributes 77A of Ranbaxys total turnover Sharp movement in foreign exchange rates can therekwe

have significant impact on the Companys financial results

SEGMENT-WISE PERFORMANCE

Ranbaxy recorded global consolidated sales of US$ 1519 Mn in 2009 with emerging and developed markets

contributing 540/o and 38/o respectively to sales Dosage form sales constituted 92/s of global sales during the year

balance being the API business Overseas markets constituted 77/a of the total dosage form sales of the Company

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND ADEQUACY

With the objective of safeguarding the Companys assets and ensuring financ compliance there are documented

and well established operating procedures in the Company and its subsidiaries in India and overseas

The internal Audit function at Ranbaxy reports directly to the CEO MD and the Audit Committee lhe Internal

Audit function is headed by Vice President and the team comprises of well qualified experienced professionals who

conduct regular audits across the Companys global operations The matters brought up by the Internal Audit team arc

periodically communicated to the CEO MD and the Audit Committee in the form of Internal Audit reports

comments

On the financial operations the Finance function of the Company is adequately staffed with professionally qualified

and experienced personnel

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

During the year the Company recorded consolidated Global sales of Rs 73441 Mn US$ 1519 Mn Operating

margins improved significantly primarily due to the launch of Valacyclovir FTF in USA favourable lorcx movement

and close management of costs during the year Earnings before tax were at Rs 10098 Mn USS 209 Mn and

Earnings after tax were at Rs 3107 Mn US$64 Mn representing 4/o margin to sales

HUMAN RESOURCES

Human resources are the most valuable asset for the Company and Ranbaxy continues to seek retain and enrich the

best available talent The Company provides an environment which encourages initiative innovative thinking and

rewards perlbrmance The Company ensures training and development of its personnel through succession planning

job rotation on-the-job training and various training programs and workshops

The total number of employees of the Company and its subsidiaries as on December 31 2009 stood at 2995

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Statements in the Management Discussion and Analysis describing the Companys objectives estimates expectations

or projections may be forward looking statements within the meaning of applicable laws and regulations Actual

results could differ materially from those expressed or implied Important factors that could make difference to the

Companys operations include Government regulations patent laws tax regimes economic developments within

India and countries in which the Company conducts business litigation and other allied factors

Aote Mar/cd sc and growth ratefor 2009 are based on IMSMATSep 2009 data unie3s otheiwise indicated
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ANNEXURE

Information regarding the Employees Stock Option Scheme

As on December 31 2009

No Details Nos

Total No of Options in force at the beginning of the year 7272849

Options granted in the year 2009 1472725

No of Options vested during the
year 1257680

No of Options exercised during the year 36825

No of shares arising as result of exercise of options during the year

including additional shares allotted on account of bonus shares as

explained in Note below 47605

No of Options lapsed and forfeited during the year 1295733

Variance in terms of options N.A

Money realized by exercise of options during the year
Rs 11 190128

Tbtal No of Options in force at the end of the year 7413016

Notes

The Grant/ Exercise and number of Stock Options outstanding as onJune 30 2005 have been proportionately adjusted

in view of the sub-division of equity shares of the Company from the face value of Rs 10 each into equity shares of

Rs each

Options granted upto October 2002 are entitled for additional shares on account of bonus shares in the ratio of for

Pricing formula Closing price of the Equity Shares of the Company prior to the date of meeting of the Compensation

Committee CC in which stock options are granted on the stock exchange on which the shares of the Company are listed

The closing price of the shares of the Company at the National Stock Exchange of India Limited onJanuary 20 2009 was

Rs 215 15
per

share Accordingly exercise price of the options granted by the CC at the meeting held onJanuary 21 2009

was fixed at Rs 216 per share of Rs each

Options granted in the year 2009 to senior managerial personnel

Name Designation Present No of

Options granted

Mr Atul Sobti CEO Managing Director 50000

Mr Arun Sawhney President Global Pharmaceuticals Business 15000

Mr Omesh Sethi President Chief Financial Officer 10000

Dr Sudershan Arora President Research Development 7500

Mr Dipak Chattraj President Corporate Development 10000

Mr Ramesh Adige President Corporate Affairs Global Corporate Communications 15000

Dr Pradip Kumar Bhatnagar Senior Vice President New Drug Discovery Research 12500

Mr Sanjeev Dani Senior Vice President Regional Director Asia CIS Africa 12500

Mr Satjsh Kumar Chawla Vice President Global Internal Audit 10000

Mr Ranjan Chakravarti Vice President Global Therapy and Alliance Management 7500

Dr TG Chandrashekhar Vice President -Quality 10000

Mr Venkatachalam Senior Vice President Regional Director North America LATAM 15000

Mr Debashish Dasgupta Vice President Regional Director Europe 5000

Excludes the Senior Managerial personnel who ceased to be in employment with the Company

ii Employees who have been granted 5% of more Nil

of the options granted during the year

iii Employees who have been granted options during Nil

any one year equal to or exceeding l/o of the

issued capital of the Company at the time of grant
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Stock Options Weighted average Weighted average Closing market price

granted on exercise price in Rs Fair value in Rs at NSE on the date of

grant in Rs

12.01.2001 336.50 115.00 321

03.12.2001 297.50 188.50 369.18

1.04.2002 372.50 226.00 19.13

07.02.2003 283.50 132.50 317 IS

22.01.2004 496.00 212.50 503.10

17.01.2005 538.50 215.68 531.33

17.01.2006 392.00 194.07 391.15

17.01.2007 430.00 232.57 429.65

16.01.2008 391.00 107.06 390.75

1.06.2008 561.00 72.89 560.75

19.12.2008 219.00 63.31 218.60

21.01.2009 216.00 92.97 215.15

Ihe main assumptions used in the Black-Scholes option pricing model during the year were as follows

Particulars Options

granted on

21.01.2009

Dividend yield
19

Expected life of options
from the lates of grant 9.5 years

Risk free interest rate 6.22

Expected volatility 38.60

iv Diluted earnings per share EPS Rs 1071

Method of calculation of employee

compensation cost

Difference between the employee compensation Rs 105.99 Mn

cost so computed at above and the employee

compensation cost that shall have been recognized

if it had used the/ho due of the options

1he Company has calculated the employee

compensation cost using the Jntnnwc rode of

the stock options

The impact of this difference on profits and

on EPS of the Company

vi Weighted-average exercise price and

fair value of Stock Options granted

Post split adjusted price

Profit/Loss after tax Rs 5719.81 Mn

Less additional

employee compensation

cost based onjao due Rs 15.99 Mn

Adjusted PAF Rs.5.6l3.85 Mn

Adjusted EPS diluteft Rs 13.51

vii Description of the method and

significant assumptions used during

the year to estimate the fair value of

the options including the following

weighted average information

The Black Scholes option priting model was developed for estimating

fair value of traded options that have no vesting restrictions and are

fully transferable Since Option pricing models requirc use of

substantive assumptions changes therein can niateridlv affect fair

value of Options The option pricing models do not necessarily

provide reliable measure of fair value of options

48



Ranbaxy Laboratories Limited

ANNEXURE

Information pursuant to Companies Disclosure of Particulars in Report of Board of Directors

Rules 1988 forming part of the Report of the Directors

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY AND ITS IMPACT
Measures for Conservation of Energy Impact resulting into

saving in Rs Million
Power Factor maintained UNITY Load Factor maintained above

500/o concession for Load Factor received 19.80

Reduction of steam high pressure
header from 8.2 to 7.4 Kg CM2 0.02

KGK chillers replaced by trane chiller and Brine facility modified from central

generation to user areas 7.70

Combining the Cooling tower Pump Discharge lines for Utilities 3X6OKL
Fermentation Plant thereby Running only one 110 KW pump instead of Nos

being run separately for different streams 6.60

55KW Nitrogen Plant Air compressor is stopped by looping the Instrument Air

compressor supply to inlet of Nitrogen plant resulting in substantial saving as

well as optimum utilization of Instrument Air Compressor 4.84

Re-engineering of Brine system in old utility Re-engineering has improved flow rate

resulting in efficiency improvement This has resulted in stoppage of one compressor 3.62

Rebate in power tariff by maintaining unity power factor through automatic and

manual controls 3.60

Air flow optimization in Air Washers and VAHUs Two nos inefficient AHUs and

Air Washer replaced in MP-01 2.91

500 KVA Diesel Generation installed and running during weekly off days and

Peak load restriction hours instead of running of 1500KVA Generator earlier 2.50

Chilled Water facility modifications from central generation to users areas energy

savingof 90KW 2.10

KW 35CFM Air compressor is installed and running for purified water plant

during 2nd and 3rd shifts instead of 97 KW Air
compressors

2.00

Integration of two cooling water Chilled water headers of Mohali-3 Mohali-2 1.26

Power saving by auto switching Motion Sensor Running time of light fixtures

reduced from 24 hours to 10 hours 1.11

Replacement of steam traps and recovery of Hot condensate back to boiler house 1.0

Looped the raw water header with the process water line thereby using Bore well

pressure for Process water circulation this stopped 7.5 KW pump operation for

process water this also has led to substantial
energy saving 0.66

Optimization of pump head in New Utility Cooling tower 0.64

Replacement of Fan Type cooling towers with Jet type cooling towers 0.41

Increase in condensate recovery from 2O/o to 4O/o from 7011 Tons of steam

production The additional automatic condensate
recovery systems installed in two plants 0.30

Replacement of old lamp type
indicators Each watt with LED type

indicators0.8 watt total number 550 0.10

RESEARCH DEVELOPMENT

Specific areas in which RD is carried out

--

Develop technology for Active Pharmaceutical Ingredients APIs conventional value added innovative

dosage forms complying with international quality regulatory norms

Develop Platform Technologies and Products in the area of Novel Drug Delivery Systems

--

Discovery and Development of new drug molecules in select areas Infectious Diseases Metabolic Diseases

Inflammatory/Respiratory Diseases and Oncology

GLP/cGCP complying Bioavailability/Bioequivalence Toxicology and Clinical Studies Phase II III

-- Innovation in packaging for improved patient convenience compliance

Up-gradation of existing technologies products on ongoing basis

Benefits derived as result of RD activities

Technology to manufacture APIs and Dosage Forms

Oral Controlled Release Dosage Forms leading to better patient convenience and compliance

Improved productivity process
efficiencies

--

Internationally competitive prices and product quality
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Safe and environment friendly processes

Generation of Intellectual wealth for the Company in key potential markets

Grant of process patents for Active Pharmaceutical Ingredients APIs as well as dosage forms

both conventional novel drug delivery systems
-- Product patents in the areas of drug discovery research

Self reliance and import substitution for conservation of Foreign Exchange

Foreign exchange earnings savings

Speed to marketplace
-- Enhanced business through Licensing arrangements and strategic alliances

Enhanced Global presence visibility

Future plan of action
-- Continue augmenting RD capabilities productivity through technological innovations use of modern

scientific and technological techniques training and development benchmarking and global networking

Greater thrust in the areas of Novel Drug Delivery Systems
-- Continue developing innovative commercially viable process know-how for both Active Pharmaceutical

Ingredients APIs and dosage forms

-- Continue strengthening the Clinical Research infrastructure and capabilities complying international GLP/

cGCP norms

Continue improvements in packaging for pharmaceuticals to ensure shelf-life/stability quality and better

patient convenience and comjliance

Enhance national and international research networking and strategic alliances

Expenditure on RD Rs Million

1rendpd Year ended

December31 December 31

2009 2008

Capital 221.98 558.28

Revenue 4721.84 4155.46

Total 4943.82 4713.71

/o to turnover lO.90% IO.86o

TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION ADAPTATION AND INNOVATION

Efforts in brief made towards technology absorption and innovation

As
per 2a above

Benefit derived as result of the above efforts e.g product improvement cost reduction product development

As per 2b above

Future course of action

To continue developing innovative and commercially viable process
know-how for APIs and Dosage Hrms

Conventional and Noval Drug Delivery System

Information in case of imported technology imports during the last five years

Not applicable

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO
Activities relating to exports initatives taken to increase exports development of new export markets of proclucis

and export plans

-- Overseas sales excluding sales to Nepal were Rs 28258.24 Mn for the financial year
December 31 2009

Drug Master Files DMFs for API were filed with the regulatory authorities in several markets

-- Continued to receive income by way of royalty technical and management service fee and dividend from

overseas subsidiaries affiliates

Initiatives were taken for development of new export markets These include setting up new division to

co-market Daiichi Sankyos innovator products

Also launched differentiated branded products of Originator in Romania through Terapia Ranbaxy

-- Japan export market was also tapped for API
-- In the year under review the Company launched Dosage Formulations of Valacyclovir.Oxycodone Surnatreptan

in the International markets

-- Ranbaxy plans to further leverage its association with Daiichi Sankyo DS its Holding Company to launch

DSs products in other export markets including African countries for which plans are already underway

Rs Million

Yearende4 ti lldCd

December 31

2OO9 2008

Earnings 31364.51 28.53783

Outgo 13100.41 11103.56
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Form for disclosure of particulars with respect to conservation of energy

Current Yeai Previous Year

2009 2008

Electricity and Fuel Consumption

Electricity

Purchased Units KWH 132372169 127981552

Total Amount Rs Million 561.87 521.70

Rate/Unit Rs Rs 4.24 Rs 4.08

Own Generation

Through Diesel Generator Unit KWH 12308322 8070600

Unit
per

Ltr of Diesel Oil 3.48 3.61

Cost/Unit Rs 8.29 Rs 8.94

ii Through Steam Turbine/Generator Not Applicable Not Applicable

Coal Specify quality and where used1 Not Applicable Not Applicable

Furnace Oil Qty Ltrs 16364 16188

Total Amount Rs Million 378.90 476.62

Average Rate Rs per Ltr Rs 23.15 Rs 29.44

Others/internal generation Not Applicable Not Applicable

Consumption per unit of production

Units Standards Current Year Previous Year

if any

Electricity

Active Pharmaceutical Ingredients kwh per kg No specific 91.36 70.55

Dosage Forms kwh per standards 105.78 91.73

1000 packs consumption

per
unit

depends on

product mix

Furnace Oil

Active Pharmaceutical Ingredients \Ltrs per Kg 11.05 8.95

Dosage Forms K.Ltrs per 0.01 0.01

1000 packs

Coal Not Applicable Not Applicable

Others Not Applicable Not Applicable

51



Million

2000 01 200 2004 200 2006 20 2008 2000

u1t On year

Ipot 11211 2832

CO of 121 11002

PC0III fnfo 1a Il 6001302

IN Clii dtcr 719B

oufty Divtdeod

.1

quuy HP nil of

pt
ohrc 61 10024

Icn ond Ilisiloon

Goo BloC3 3038026

33

200832

no Ut
19 10

01 14

No Woo.h 11 1611 413

11

nIl-C 4p2aI 11 11 01 210239

ICeo Snoplus II II 1943026

Book alou 111
ii 98

p0 SCUC

y000 16 11

Index No of times

Ii ii
44

ii

\Ot 11 ic oil 0111 rsf ii of lot

Ii 101 Dit It od ito hi to ii oi ii

6116 it if ii

of it ii II

II
ii If

dl lIlt II

itt Ii oi Ii il



AUDITORS
REPORT

To the Members of

Ranbaxy Laboratories Limited

We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of Ranbaxy Laboratories Limited the Company as at 31 December

2009 and also the Profit and Loss Account and the Cash Flow Statement together known as financial statements of

the Company for the
year

ended on that date annexed thereto These financial statements are the responsibility of the

Companys management Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in India Those standards require

that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of

material misstatement An audit includes examining on test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures

in the financial statements An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates

made by management as well as evaluating the overall financial statements presentation We believe that our audit

provides reasonable basis for our opinion

As required by the Companies Auditors Report Ordei 2003 the Order issued by the Central Government of India

in terms of sub-section 4A of Section 227 of the Companies Act 1956 the Act we enclose in the Annexure

statement on the matters specified in paragraphs and of the said Order

Further to our comments in the Annexure referred to above we report that

we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were

necessary
for the

purposes
of our audit

ii in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as appears from

our examination of those books

iii the Balance Sheet Profit and Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this
report are in

agreement

with the books of account

iv in our opinion the Balance Sheet Profit and Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this report

comply with the Accounting Standards referred to in sub-section 3C of Section 211 of the Act to the extent

applicable

on the basis of written representations received from the directors of the Company as at 31 December 2009 and

taken on record by the Board of directors we report
that none of the directors is disqualified as at 31 December

2009 from being appointed as Director in terms of clause of sub-section of Section 274 of the Act

Without qualifying our opinion we draw attention to note on schedule 23 to the financial statements Consequent to

the Food and Drug Administration FDA of United States of America import alerts and the FDA letter dated 25

February 2009 imposing the Application Integrity Policy the Company had recorded provision of Rs 2631.11

million during the year ended 31 December 2008 towards loss of inventory in hand expected higher sales returns and

expected reversal of export benefits The basis and assumptions used by the management in calculating these provisions

were based on significantjudgment and estimates due to involvement of uncertainty and actual result could have been

different from managements estimate

During the year the Company carried out reassessment and determined that the related provision of Rs 937.81

million is no longer required and accordingly the same has been written back in the Profit and Loss Account

in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us the said accounts give

the information required by the Act in the manner so required and gives true and fair view in conformity with the

accounting principles generally accepted in India

in the case of the Balance Sheet of the state of the affairs of the Company as at 31 December 2009

ii in the case of the Profit and Loss Account of the profit of the Company for the year ended on that date and

iii
in the case of the Cash Flow Statement of the cash flows of the Company for the

year
ended on that date

ForB SRCo
Chartered Accountants

Vikram Aggarwal

Place Gurgaon Partner

Dated 25 February 2010 Membership No 089826
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Annexure to the Auditors Report

Referred to in our report
of even date

The Company has maintained
proper

records showing full particulars including quantitative details and

situation of its fixed assets

The Company has regular programme of physical verification of its fixed assets by which all fixed assets

are verified in phased manner over period of three
years

In our opinion this perioclicity of physical

verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets No material

discrepancies were noticed on such verification

Fixed assets disposed off during the
year were not substantial and therefore do not affect the going concern

assumption

ii The inventory except goods-in-transit has been physically verified by the management during the year In

our opinion the frequency of such verification is reasonable

The procedures of physical verification of inventory followed by the mallagelnent ale reasonable and

adequate in relation the size of the Company and the nature of its business

The Company is maintaining proper records of inventory The discrepancies noticed on verilication between

the physical stocks and the book records were not material

iii The Company has neither granted nor taken any loans secured or unsecured to or from companies finns or

other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 301 of the Companies Act 1956

iv In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us there is an adequate internal

control system commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature of its business with regard to pwchase

of inventories and fixed assets and with regard to the sale of goods and services In our opinion and according to

the information and explanations given to us we have not observed any major weakness in the internal control

system during the course of the audit

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us there are no contracts ad

arrangements the particulars of which need to be entered into the register maintained under section of the

Companies Act 1956

vi The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public

vii In our opinion the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business

viii We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules prescribed

the Central Government for maintenance of cost records under section 209Id of the Companies Act 1956 in

respect of its products and are of the opinion that prima facie the prescribed accounts and records have been

made and maintained However we have not made detailed examination of the records

ix According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the

records of the Company amounts deducted accrued in the books of account in respect of undisputed

statutory dues including Provident fund Investor education and protection fund Employees state insurance

Income tax Sales tax Wealth tax Service tax Customs duty Excise duty and other material statutory dues

have generally been regularly deposited during the year by the Company with the appropnate authorities

There were no dues on account of cess under section 441 of the Companies Act 95h since the date

from which the aforesaid section comes into force has not yet been notified by the Central Government

According to the information and explanations given to us no undisputed amounts payable in respect of

Provident fund Investor education and protection fund Employees state insurance Income ta Sales tax

Wealth tax Service tax Customs duty Excise duty and other material statutory dues were in arrears as at

31 December 2009 for period of more than six months from the date they became paabIe

According to the information and explanations given to us there are no dues of Income tax Wealth tax

and Customs duty which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities oji account of
any

dispute According to the information and explanations given to us the following dues of Sales tax Service

tax and Excise duty have not been deposited by the Company on account of disputes

54



Ranbaxy Laboratories Limited

Name of the Nature Amount Period to which Forum where

statute of dues Rs in Million the amount dispute is

relates pending/Remarks

Central Excise Central 44J2 2001-2006 Delhi high court/

Act 1944 Excise Cenvat CESTAT/

Interest and Commissioner/

Penalty Joint Secretary

The Finance Service Tax 3.07 2006-2007 Commissioner

Act 1994/2003 Penalty Indore

Service Tax

Punjab General Purchase Tax 2.25 1989-90 and Sales Tax Tribunal

Sales Tax Act 1948 Interest and 1990-91

Penalty

U.P Sales Tax Sales Tax 3.67 2008-09 Sales tax tribunal

Act 1948 Additional

Commissioner

In our opinion the Companys accumulated losses at the end of the financial year are less than fifty percent of its

net worth Further the Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year However the ompaiy had

rncurred cash loss during the irnrnediatey precedingfinancialveai

xi In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the Company has not defaulted in

repayment of dues to its bankers or debenture holders There were no dues to financial institutions

xii The Company has not granted any loans and advances on the basis of security by way of pledge of shares

debentures and other securities

xiii In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the Company is not chit fund or

nidhi mutual benefit fund society

xiv According to the information and explanations given to us the Company is not dealing or trading in shares

securities debentures and other investments

xv According to the information and explanations given to us the Company has not given any guarantee for loans

taken by others from banks or financial institutions

xvi In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the term loans taken by the

Company have been applied for the purpose for which they were raised

xvii According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the balance sheet of

the Company we are of the opinion that the funds raised on short-term basis have not been used for long-term

investment

xviiiThe Company has not made any preferential allotment of shares during the
year

to Companies firms/ parties

covered in the register maintained under section 301 of the Companies Act 1956

xix The Company issued non-convertible debentures during the year which were redeemed before the
year

end

According to the information and explanations given to us security was not created in respect of these debentures

as they were redeemed before expiry of the time limit for creation of security as stipulated in the letter of

allotment

xx The Company has not raised any money by public issues during the year

xxi According to the information and explanations given to us no fraud on or by the Company has been noticed or

reported during the course of our audit

For Co
Chartered Accountants

Vikram Aggarwal

Partner

Membership No 089826

Place Gurgaon

Dated 25 February 2010
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Balance Sheet as at 31 December 2009

Rupees in millions except for share data and if otherwise stated As at 31 As at 31

December December

Schedule 2009 2008

SOURCES OF FUNDS
Shareholders funds

Share capital 2102.09 .85

Equity share warrants 233b 1756.59
Share application money pending allotment 1.95

Reserves and surplus 37485.42 33.30922

Loan funds

Secured loans 1758.27 2122.72

Iiiiseciirecl loans 725.53 31565.27

33483.80 36.9899

74829.85 71.1 JaIL

APPLICATION OF FUNDS
Fixed assets

Gross block 26209.20 23.8h7 IS

Less Accumulated depreciation amortisation 10275.15 9300.67

and impairment
________ ______

Net bhck 1.O5 lL56ft78

apitaI work-in-progress including capital advancesi 235 4149.16 4287.66

20083.21 l8.85L1

Investments 38336.90 36.1 8ft28

Deferred tax assets net 4199.08 10.62738

Current assets loans and advances

Inventories 12304.82 11985.19

Sundry debtors 15346.48 10215.35

Cash and bank balances 10 7541.24 93 19.39

Loans and advances 11 9648.16 6.7 tS.27

Other current assets 12 1558.74 1.3 15.51

46399.44 19.67t.71

Less Current liabilities and provisions

Current liabilities 13 26558.44 35679.71

Provisions 14 7630.34 5197.15

34188.78 JLJ2l
Net current assets 12210.66

_____

74829.85 71.15565

Significant accounting policies 22

Notes to the financial statements 23

The schedules referred to above form an integral part
of the Balance Sheet

per our report attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For Co Dr Tsutomu Une Atul Sobti

diartdled .1rountants Chairman CEO IanO1n7 IuoIn

Vikram Aggarwal Omesh Sethi Sushil Patawari

Partner President ann FO oinpam SO1l/dl

Membership No 089826

Place Gur.gaon Place Gurgaon

lated 25 February 2010 Dated 25 February 201
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Profit and Loss Account for the year ended 31 December 2009

Rupees in millions except for share data and if otherwise stated

For the year ended For the year ended

31 December 31 December

Schedule 2009 2008

INCOME

Operating income 15 47974.89 45031.48

Less Excise duty 147.29 310.01

47827.60 44721.47

Other income 16 2763.87 2086.64

Net foreign exchange gain other than on loans 2311 1790.40
_________

52381.87 46808i1

EXPENDITURE
Materials consumed 17 20480.28 20453.61

Personnel expenses
18 7284.04 6087.86

Operating and other expenses
19 13614.82 15715.50

Net foreign exchange loss other than on loans 2311 10264.46

41379.14 52521.43

Profit loss before interest exchange gain 11002.73 5713.32

ioss net on loans depreciation amortisation

impairment and tax charge/benefit

Interest 236 394.66 1458.28

Exchange gain/ loss net on loans 1493.13 7474.52

Profit loss before depreciation amortisation

impairment and tax charge benefit 12101.20 14646.12

Depreciation amortisation and impairment 1482.03 1544.69

Profit loss before tax 10619.17 16190.81

Tax charge benefit 20 4899.33 5742.79

Profit loss after tax 5719.84 10448.02

Balance brought forward 8265.83 2162.69

Transfer from foreign projects reserve 13.76 19.50

Deficit carried forward to Schedule 2532.23 8265.83

Earnings loss per share Rs 21

Basic Par value of Rs per share 13.61 27.29

Diluted Par value of Rs per share 10.74 27.29

Significant accounting policies 22

Notes to the financial statements 23

The schedules referred to above form an integral part
of the Profit and Loss Account

As
per our report attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For Co Dr Tsutomu Une Atul Sobti

C7sartered Accountants Charrman CEO Managing Duector

Vikram Aggarwal Omesh Sethi Sushil Patawari

Partner President and CEO Company Secretary

Membership No 089826

Place Gurgaon Place Gurgaon

Dated 25 February 2010 Dated 25 February 2010
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Schedules forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2009

Rupees in millions except for share data and if otherwise stated

Asat Asat

31 Deàember 31 December

SCHEDULE-i 2009 2008

Share Capital

Authorised

598000000 Previous year 598000000 Equity shares of Rs each 2990.00 2990.00

100.000 Previous year 100000 10.00 10.00

Cumulative preference shares of Rs 100 each

3000.00 3000.00

Issued subscribed and paid up

420.117358 Previous year 420.369753 Equity shares of 2102.09 2101.85

Rs each fully paid
__________ _________

2102.09 2101.85

Notes

Issued subscribed and paid up capital includes

293698988 previous year 293698988 equity shares of Rs each allotted as fully paid bonus shares by

capitalisation out of share premium and reserves

6562308 previous year 6562308 equity shares of Rs each allotted as fully paid up pursuant to contract

without payment being received in cash

5501.185 Global Depository Shares GDSs previous year 7227121 representing 5501185 previous year

7227121 equity shares of Rs each constituting 1.3 previous year 1.72 of the issued subscribed and

paid-up share capital of the Company

268.711323 previous year 268711.323 equity shares of Rs each are held by Daiichi Sankyo Company Limited

Japan the holding company also being the ultimate holding company

Also refer to note on schedule 23

SCHEDULE -2

Reserves and surplus

Capital reserve 5.41 5.41

Amalgamation reserve 43.75 43.75

Share premium account

Balance at the beginning of the
year 37862.17 5010.50

Add Received during the
year

11.26 34.16417

Add Transferred from employees stock option outstanding 1.89 31.15

37875.32 39.206 12

Less tilised for preferential allotment issue
expenses

201

Less Premium payable on redemption of Zero Coupon 1083.41 1731.33

Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds FCCBs
Less Tax benefit /reversal for premium payable on 1227.17 588.48

redemption of FCCBs ___________ ___________

35564.74 37862.17

Also refer to note on schedule

Foreign projects reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year 18.35 37.85

Less Transfer to Profit and Loss account 13.76 19.50

4.59 18.35

Hedging reserve ml of tat

Balance at the beginning of the year 792.58

Utilised additions during the sear 763.85 792.58

28.73 792.58
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Asat Asat

31 December 31 December

2009 2008

67.67 95.75

8.17 3.37

59.50 99.12

1.89 31.15

57.61 67.67

6.15121

II .780.96

4370.28 4370.28

2532.23 8265.83

37485.42 33.30922

1758.27 2422.72

1758.27 2422.72

inoveable assets both present and future

SCHEDULE -4

Unsecured loans

Short term loans from banks

Other Icans

Zero coupon foreign currency
convertible bonds FCCB

From Banks

From Others

Notes

Ihe Company has outstanding FCCBs aggregating to US 410 million

The bondholders have an option to convert FCCBs into equity shares

of the Company at price of Rs 716.32 per share subject to

adjustment if any with fixed exchange rate of Rs 44.15 per US at

any time on or after 27 April 2006 hut before March 2011 Further

these FCCBs may be redeemed in whole at the option of the Company

at any time on or after 18 March 2009 but on or before February

2011 subject to the satisfaction of certain conditions These FCCBs

are redeemable on 18 March 2011 at premium of 26.765 percent

cud of withholding tax of their principal amount unless previously

converted redeemed purchased or cancelled

Other loans due for repayment within one year

From banks 1112.19

From others 19.78

Schedules forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2009

Rupees in millions except for share data and if otherwise stated

Lmplovees stock option outstanding

Balance at the beginning of the
year

idcl Amortisation/ reversal of deferred employee compensation

Less Transferred to share premium on exercise of stock option

Also refir to note on schedule 23

General reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year

Less Iransitional loss recognised pursuant to early adoption

of Accounting Standard 30 Financial Instruments

Recognition and Measurement

Deficit brought forward from Profit and Loss Account

SCHEDULE -3

Secured loans

oans from banks

Note the above is secured against inventories sundry debtors and

4370.28

4676.95

20475.40

6395.71
177.47

31725.53

6.25778

21 .379.6

6765.59

l62.3

34.56527

11.83
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Schedules forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2009

Rupees in millions except for share data and if otherwise stated

SCHEDULE -5

Fixed assets

ross block Accumulated depreciation

amortisation and impairment

Net block

Description Ass.t Additions Deletions Asat Asat Forthe Deletions Aat Asat Asat

Ijanuary adjustments 31 December IJanuary year adjustments 31 December 31 December 31 December

2009 20095 2009 2009 NO9 2000

Tangible assets

Lion

Frcchsill 173.69 173.69 173.69 173.69

Leasclosid 259.49 259.49 259.49 259.49

Buildings 3064.45 628 IF 0.72 3692.17 517.75 8a.80 0.30 603.25 3088.92 2546.70

Plant and niahinnts 16858.48 1ib8.hf 41.04 18586.24 6756.37 1137.13 2uu.u8 7693.72 10692.52 10102.11

Fuinituri and i\turns 1001.69 ba.08 19.82 1046.95 272.58 60.01 8.23 324.36 722.59 729.11

Vnhicls.s 405.09 80.70 119.03 366.76 98.71 36.60 3880 96.51 270.25 306.38

Intangible assets

Piodus.t deselopmeitt 361.74 361.74 361.74 361.74

Patent iiad masks 778.27 28016 2b0.13 798.30 666.38 44.11 260.13 450.36 347.94 111.89

designs and Iseennes

Softss ate 753.55 159.3 0.03

Non romps Se

Total

211.00

23867.45

Previous Year

912.86

211.00

26.209.20

426.44

200.70

9.300.67

Notes

\ddinon its
Iced Ct ins uris 221 itt pus iou tar silt 28 toss au sit ii for tart isd des elopms iii

he altos ins lode the lollssss in st hi 12 for di ii iits are being sari ted at the loss si sit theit situ bliss and us iii sisle slits

107.78

10.30

.482.032982.52 640.77 507.55

22614.80 1669.60 416.9a 23867.45 7919.59 1.4469 163.61 9300.67 14566.78

0.01 534.21

211.00

10275.15

378.65

15.934.05

D5 ii i1stissn
Gin Islos ssnitihiisil tins

dr in is iaiuon

Land 1.23 123

Building 411.39 123 36

Plant intl mas hiners 13 .03

here sseo nut .51 sshis It sssre held sir di po ii as at 31 Des coPier 2058

iit3i

327.11

10.30

14566.78

Freehold land ins lisds isnd ilusd at 25 411 si es on seat 48 si nding is gi isa lion in the nirne is site simpuns

he Jssmp.ins dus sng the sear isro
idd lssr an inipairment Its ot nil

pres tots sear III 12 sits ci isis pit sdui tilt sc lssisrnini

onditussn sit the underls tog moles ule lot si his ihs pr sdus tilts lss1snient rs ht sssi at quit
ed

Outing the urrsnt tsr urn eqssent
its hanss in the prssls.slsiliis or intro sin ssl lea urns sirs let ed sisspsi is ilsi Lssnsjssns

amounussig si 141 Tl pt issu esr nil

Reniatnuns sItu us ss of iniangilsle set st
31 Des smiser 2119 unds

Dr
ripiusin

Rsniainins it elul hs

Iaurni is isle nssik de ign stid Its srscs stat

Ssftss srs Is sits

right Its mpairnssiii
Isis dciii mined tess in iii hi

ii ss tiling nsa rh

is ssrsls ii
ii

sIs iaied sls1sres saisssis isti .s ii ssn ii tii is .1 is list Isa s2 IsissliCi
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Schedules forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2009

Rupees in millions except for share data and if otherwise stated

As at As at

31 December 31 December
SCHEDULE 2009 2008

Deferred tax assets net
Deferred tax asset arising on account of

Provision for doubtful debts and advances 134.06 117.96

Provision for employee benefits 80.91 83.24

FCCB loan revaluation 413.77

Revlauation of External commercial borrowings ECBs 237.59

FCCB redemption premium charged to share premium account 1227.17

Tax losses carried forward 7960.24 11655.67

Others 56.73 116.65

8469.53 13614.46

Less Deferred tax liability arising on account of

Depreciation amortisation and impairment 2807.68 2821.14

Others 165.94 165.94

2973.62 2987.08

Less Deferred tax asset not carried forward 1296.83
____________

Deferred tax assets net 4199.08 10627.38

Note

On the basis of profit from operations made subsequent to year end profit on sale of materials relating to First to File

FTF product in the United States of America milestone payment from an exclusivity settlement and certain other

factors the Company believes that there is virtual certainty in respect of the carrying amount of net deferred tax asset

Consequently an amount of Rs 1296.83 representing excess over the amount arrived at on the basis of test of virtual

certainty has not been recognized as deferred tax asset

Further due to similar assessment as mentioned above the deferred tax asset of Rs 1227.17 relating to premium payable

on redemption of FCCBs has not been carried forward with corresponding adjustment through Share Premium Account

SCHEDULE -8

Inventories

Stores and spares
74.15 92.31

Raw materials 4720.32 4707.81

Packaging materials 398.64 412.93

Finished goods

-- Own manufactured 3147.26 3256.88

Others 698.07 719.42

Work-in-progress 3266.38 2795.84

12304.82 11985.19

SCHEDULE -9

Sundry debtors

Considered good except where provided for

Debts outstanding for period exceeding six months

Secured 0.65 0.01

Unsecured

-- Considered good 2167.05 2086.71

Considered doubtful 294.75 252.74

2462.45 2339.46

Other debts

Secured 330.71 296.40

-- Unsecured considered good 12848.07 7862.23

13178.78 8158.63

15641.23 10498.09

Less Provision for doubtful debts 294.75 252.74

15346.48 10245.35

Refer to note 15 of schedule 23 for dues from parties parties

under the same management as defined under Section 370IB of the Companies Act 1956
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SCHEDULE -10

Cash and bank balances

Cash in hand

Cheques in hand

Remittances in transit

Balances with scheduled banks in

AB Vilnius Bankas Kaunas Lithuaiiia

ABN AMR Bank Moscow Russia

Banque Internationale Pour Le

Commerce Et Lindustrie du

Cameroun Doula Cameroon

Barclays Bank of Kenya Ltd

Nai bi Kenya

Bank Handlowy Warszawie SA
\Varsas Poland

Calyon Corporate HO Chi Minh
Vietnam

Calyon Corporate Kiev Ukraine

Citi Bank Almaty Kazakhstan

Citi Bank Sofia Bulgaria

10 Credit Du Maroc
Boulevard Mohammed
Casablanca Morocco

Myaninar Investment and Commercial

Bank \angon Myanmar

12 Societe Generale Dc Banques

Au ameroun Doula Ivory Coast

13 The HongKong Shanghai Banking

Corporation Singapore

11 Standbic Bank Nairobi Kenya

15 Standbic Bank Zimbabwe Limited

Causeway Zimbabwe Harare

16 The Hongkong Shanghai Banking

Corporation Dubai UAE

Asat Asat

31 December 31 December

2009 2008

Balance Maximum balance during

the year ended

As at As at

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2009 2008 2009 2008

10.85 6.91 17.73 18.28

10.21 8.43 9314 158.13

4.41 0.63 7.56 1.13

1.11 1.44 1.11

16.21 16.24 16.57

2.86 3.49 2.93

23.21 63.83 61.86

1.92 21.36 10.17

0.80 5.10

0.5 0.90 1.16

.91 6.67 1.90

1.50 9.52 8.1

0.56 0.60 7.50

0.50 7.47 6.35

0.82 3.67 2.53

3.02 6.73 1.i8

Schedules forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2009

Rupees in millions except for share data and if otherwise stated

4.75

3.35

59.95

53.16

7285.60

66.33

68.10

7541.24

-- Current accounts

Ieposit accounts

Unclaimed dividend accounts

Balances with non-scheduled Ianks in

Current accounts

Includes deposit receipts of Rs 0.79 Previous year Rs 0.75 pledged with Government Authorities

Closing and maximum balance outstanding at any time during the year on current accounts with non scheduled

banks is given hereunder

1.98

217.50

122.28

18 .850.75

76.57

77.31

19.34939

0.54

2.71

19.17

0.02

1.82

0.49

2.17

5.13

5.86

1.77

2.95

68.10 77.31
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52.35

93.30

1285.43
73.83

1962.65

1533.78
4720.65

664.09

559.63

12.41

236.86

85.75

25.84

1584.58
25.84

1558.74

21.69

9053.41
49.78

36.67

66.33

16669.65
317.97

342.94

26558.44

371.62

140.52

7.54

1274.24

70.33

1873.14

1858.20

1219.00

654.69

458.80

8.42

140.74

82.89

23.97

1369.51

23.97

1345.54

19.38

8096.00

265.72

74.10

76.57

26760.86

69.05

318.06

35679.74

2120.72

129.96

0.59

Schedules forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2009

Rupees in millions except for share data and if otherwise stated

Asat Asat

31 December 31 December

SCHEDULE-il 2009 2008

Loans and advances

Considered good except where provided for

Secured loans to employees
44.33

Unsecured loans and advances

Loans to employees
85.07

Advances recoverable in cash or in kind

or for value to be received

Considered good

Doubtful

Balances with central excise and customs

Loans and advances to subsidiaries

Minimum alternative tax MAT credit entitlement

Advance income-tax net of provision for tax

Rs 1814.50 as at 31 December 2008 391.29

9721.99 6815.60

Less Provision for doubtful advances 73.83 70.33

9648.16 6745.27

Includes amount due from an officer of the Company of Rs 4.02 previous year 0.34 The maximum balance

at any time during the year was Rs 4.02 previous year Rs 0.43
Refer to note 18 of schedule 23 for loans and advances to parties under the same management as defined under

Section 370IB of the Companies Act 1956

SCHEDULE -12
Other current assets

Unsecured considered good except where provided for

Export incentives accrued

Exchange gain accrued on forward contracts

Insurance claims receivable

Interest accrued but not due

Others

-- Considered good
Doubtful

___________ ___________

Less Provision for doubtful other current assets
_____________ _____________

SCHEDULE -13
Current liabilities

Sundry creditorsA

-- Dues to micro and small enterprises@

-- Others
Book overdraft

Interest accrued but not due on loans

Unpaid dividend

Payable towards unrealised loss on currency options

Advance from customers

Other liabilities
________________ ________________

Includes due to subsidiary companies entities

Includes payable to employees such as salary bonus etc

Includes statutory clues payable in respect of employees

benefits such as provident fund ESI etc

The Ministry of Micro Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an Office Memorandum dated 26 August 2008

which recommends that the Micro and Small Enterprises should mention in their correspondence with its customers

the Entrepreneurs Memorandum Number as allocated after filing of the Memorandum Based on the information

available with the management there are no overdues outstanding to micro and small enterprises as defined under

the Micro Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act 2006 Further the Company has not received any

claim for interest from any supplier under the said Act

65



Ranbay Laboratories Limited

Schedules forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2009

Rupees in millions except
for share data and if otherwise stated

As at

31 December

2009

As at

31 December

2008

SCHEDULE -14

197 IS

SCHEDULE -15

Operating income

Sates

Domestic

Exporl

Royalty technical knowhow and product development

Export incentives

Income from settlement agreements

Others

SCHEDULE -16

Other income

lnterest of tax deducted at source Rs.179.58

previoUS year Rs 194.35

Dividend from overseas subsidiaries

Igross of tax deducted at source Rs 0.43 previous year Rs 0.13
Profii on sale of assets of loss Rs 26.54 previous year

Rs 1945
Profit on sale of current investments

Profit on sale of investment in subsidiary

Unclaimed balances excess provision written back

Also refer to note on schedule 23

Reversal of deferred employees compensation

Reversal of provision for diminution in the value of long term investments

Mi scell an eons

Notes

Interest includes

Current investments non trade

Income-tax refunds

Loans and deposits

Short term deposits with banks

Long term deposits

Subsidiary companies
-- Employees loans

Others

Year ended

31 December

2009

16981.62

28377.47

45359.09

476.68

546.73

1441.15

151.24

2615.80

47974.89

945.47

9.54

237.34

420.33

1116.76

8.17

26.26

2763.87

2.35

936.35

0.36

5.51

0.90

945.47

Year ended

31 December

2008

15.51.78

27 38 .85

13393.03

139.31

870.73

72.69

155.09

1637.85

15.03 1.18

866.76

11.01

91 3.98

12.83

177.19

35.01

2.086.ti

569.11

8.33

281.75

.03

0.73

866.76

Provisions

Lmploee retirement benefits

Income-tax net of advance tax Rs 2760.20 as at 31 December 2009

Premium payable on redemption of FCCB

Also refer to note on schedule 23

2108.31

828.24

4693.79

7630.34

1.88707
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Year ended

31 December

2008

2795.84

3256.88
719.42

6772.14

3266.38

3147.26
698.07

7111.71

SCHEDULE -17

Materials consumed

Raw materials consumed

Stores and
spares

consumed

Packaging materials consumed

Finished goods purchased

Increase in work in
progress

and finished goods

Opening stock

Work-in-progress

Finished goods

Own manufactured

Others

Less

Closing stock

Work-in-progress

Finished goods

Own manufactured

Others

Net increase

Increase in excise duty

Includes site variation cost amounting to Rs 412.60

previous year Rs nil paid to subsidiaries

SCHEDULE -18

Personnel expenses
Salaries wages and bonus

Contribution to provident and other funds

Workmen and staff welfare

Amortisation of deferred employees compensation

SCHEDULE -19

Operating and other expenses

Freight clearing and forwarding

Advertising and sales promotion

Travel and
conveyance

Legal and professional Refer to note of Schedule 23

Market research

Commission

Communication

Insurance

Rent refer to note of schedule 23

Claims paid

Rates and taxes

Regulatory filing fee

Printing and stationery

Analytical charges

Processing charges

Excise duty

Power and fuel

Running and maintenance of vehicles

Year ended

31 December

2009

13460.05

1027.31

1533.43

4812.06

2190.53

3029.95

395.77

5616.25

2795.84

3256.88

719.42

6772.14

339.57

13.00

20480.28

6478.80
477.85

327.39

7284.04

1046.52

2098.36

1055.64

2340.90
661.39

503.75

222.87

298.02

482.99

100.27

182.03

264.23

84.22

81.01

804.81

24.74

1367.98
129.24

14565.21

995.43

1924.22

4211.64

1155.89

\87.00

20453.61

5375.60

430.18

278.33

3.75

6087.86

1588.79

1956.52

1054.03

1794.24

903.71

648.94

207.25

248.59

458.73

1907.22

156.41

58.62

85.85

63.53

866.66

18.69

1406.76

112.20
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Year ended

31 December

2009

35.92

138.90

339.74

54.46

77.11

454.89

124.26

12.00

48.71

53.92

525.94

13614.82

Year ended

31 December

2008

13.29

116.03

33 .97

55.01

110.79

509.52

118.53

50.28

93.12

66/16

578.13

15715.50

SCHEDULE -20

Tax charge benefit

Current incometax

Minimum alternative tax credit entitlement

Deferred tax charge/ credit

Fringe benelit tax

Tax earlier years

Net of credit adjusted of Rs 6.50 previous year Rs 27.01

Schedule 21

225.80

0.01

6083.11

55.20

0.38

5712.79

Earnings per share

Net profit loss attributable to equity shareholders

Net profit/loss available for equity shareholders

Less Exchange gain on FCCBs

Number of weighted average equity shares

Basic

Effect of dilutive equity shares on account of

Employees stock options outstanding

Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds

iluted

Nominal value of equity share Rs
Earning loss per share Rs
Basic

ilut ed

Following are the potential equity shares considered to be

anti dilutive in nature hence these have not been adjusted

to arrive at the dilutive earnings per
share

Employees stock options outstanding

Foreign Curency Convertible Bonds

5719.84

904.20
__________

4815.64

420380856 382846.32

819480

27119165

448319501

5.00

300186

27.119.165

Schedules forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2009

Rupees in millions except for share data and if otherwise stated

Repairs and maintenance

Buildings

Plant and machinery

Oihers

Cash discounts

Conferences and meetings

Clinical trials

Recruitment and training

Fixed assets written off

Investment written off

Provision write-off of doubtful debts advances and other current assets

Provision for diminution in value of current investment

Miscellaneous expenses

3546.90

3501.65

4807.81

35.50

10.77

4899.33

10 148 02

10.1180

382846.324

5.00

27.29

27.29

13.61

10.74

Equity share warrants 23834333 23.834.333
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Schedules forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2009

SCHEDULE -22

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of accounting

The financial statements have been prepared and presented under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis of

accounting and comply with the Accounting Standards as specified in the Companies Accounting Standards Rules

2006 other pronouncements of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ICAI and the relevant provisions of

the Companies Act 1956 and guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India to the extent applicable

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles GAAP requires

management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure

of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses for the

year Examples of such estimates include provisions of future obligation under employee retirement benefit plans the

useful lives of fixed assets and intangible assets etc Actual results could differ from these estimates Any revision to

accounting estimates is recognised prospectively in the current and future periods

Fixed assets and depreciation

Fixed assets are stated at the cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses

Cost comprises the purchase price and any attributable costs of bringing the assets to their working condition for

intended use

Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of fixed assets which necessarily take substantial

period of time to be ready for their intended use are capitalized

Depreciation on fixed assets except leasehold improvements is provided using the straight-line method and at the

rates specified in Schedule XIV to the Companies Act 1956 which are reflective of the estimated useful lives of the

fixed assets Leasehold improvements are depreciated over their estimated useful life or the remaining period of lease

from the date of capitalization whichever is shorter

Depreciation is calculated on pro-rata basis from the date of installation till the date the assets are sold or disposed

off Assets costing individually Rs 5000 or less are fully depreciated in the year of purchase

intangible assets and amortization

Intangible assets comprise patents trademarks designs and licenses computer software non-compete fee and product

development rights
and are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses if any

These are amortized over their estimated useful lives on straight-line basis commencing from the date the asset is

available to the Company for its use The management estimates the useful Jives for the various intangible assets as

follows

Years

Patents Trademarks Designs and Licenses

Computer Software

Non-Compete Fee Term of the respective agreements ranging from to 10 years

Product Development

impairment of assets

The carrying values of assets arc reviewed at each reporting
date to determine if there is indication of any impairment

If any indication exists the assets recoverable amount is estimated For assets that are not yet available for use the

recoverable amount is estimated at each reporting date An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying

amount of an asset or its cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount and is recognised in the Profit and Loss

Account An impairment loss is reversed if there has been change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable

amount An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the assets carrying amount does not exceed the carrying

amount that would have been determined net of depreciation or amortisation if no inspairment loss had been recognised

Revenue recognition

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized on transfer of significant risks and rewards of ownership to the customer

Revenue includes excise duty and is shown net of sales tax value added tax and applicable discounts and allowances

Allowances for sales returns are estimated and provided for in the year of sales
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Service income is recognised as per the terms of contracts with customers when the related services ate rendered or

the agreed milestones are achieved

Income from royaIty technical knowhow arrangements exclusivity and patents settlement licensing arrangements is

recognized on an accrual basis in accordance with the terms of the relevant agreement

Export entitlements are recognised as income when the right to receive credit as per the terms of the scheme is

established in
respect

of the
exports

made and where there is no significant uncertainty iegarcli ig
the ultimate collection

of the relevant export proceeds

Dividend inconse is recognised when the right to receive the income is established Income from interest on deposits

loans and interest hearing securities is recognised on the time proportion method

Investments

Investments that are readily realizable and intended to be held for not more than ear are classified as current

investments All other investments are classified as longterm investments

Current investments are carried at the lower of cost or fair value determined on an individual investment basis

Longterm investments are carried at cost less any otherthantemporary diminution in value determined separately

in respect
of each category of investment

Inventories

Raw material packaging material and stores and spare parts are carried at cost Cost includes purchase price those

subsequently recoverable by the enterprise from the concerned revenue authorities freight inwards and other expenditure

incurred in bringing such inventories to their present location and condition In determining the cost weighted average

cost method is used The carrying cost of raw materials packaging materials and stores and spare pints arc appropriately

written down when there is decline in replacement cost of such materials and finished products in huh the will be

incorporated are expected to sold below cost

Work in
progress

manufactured finished goods and traded goods are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable

value The comparison of cost and net realisable value is made on an item by item basis Cost of work iii progress
and

manufactured finished goods is determined on weighted average
basis and

comprises
direct material cost of conversion

and other costs incurred in bringing these inventories to their present location and condition Cost it traded goods is

detemniinecl on weighted average basis

Excise duty liability is included in the valuation of closing inventor of finished goods

Research and development costs

Revenue expenditure on research and development is expensed out under the espectivc heads of acc nint in the ear

in which it is incurred

Expenditure on development activities whereby research findings are applied to plan or design for the production of

new or substantially improved products and processes is capitalised if the cost can he reliably measured the product

or process
is technically and commercially feasible and the Company has sufficient resources to complete the development

and to use and sell the asset The expenditure capitalised includes the cost of matcnials direct labour and an appropriate

pmoportioi of overheads that are directly attributable to preparing the asset for its intended use thei development

expenditure is recognised in the Profit and Loss account an expense as incurred

Capitalised development expenditure is stated at cost less accumulated amnortisation and Impairment losses Fixed

assets used for research and development are depreciated iii accordance with the ompanvs polic

Materials identified for use in research and development process are carried as inventories and charged to Profit and

Loss Account on issuance of such materials for research and development activities

Employee stock option based compensation

The Company calculates the compensation cost based on the intrinsic value method sherein the excess of value of

underlying eqult shares as of the date of the grant of options over the exercise price
of the options giveii to employees

tinder the employee stock option schemes of the Coinpan is recognised on straight line basis and annrtised over the

vesting period on straight line basis
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SCHEDULE -22

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currency are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing at the date of the transaction Exchange

differences arising on foreign currency transactions settled during the year are recognised in the Profit and Loss Account

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies as at the balance sheet date not covered by forward

exchange contracts are translated at year end rates The resultant exchange differences are recognised in the Profit and

Loss Account Non-monetary assets are recorded at the rates prevailing on the date of the transaction

Profit and Loss items at representative offices located outside India are translated at the respective monthly average

rates Monetary Balance sheet items at representative offices at the balance sheet date are translated using the year-end

rates Non-monetary Balance Sheet items are recorded at the rates prevailing on the date of the transaction

Forward contracts are entered into to hedge the foreign currency
risk of the underlying outstanding at the balance

sheet date The premium or discount on such contracts is amortized as income or expense over the life of the contract

Any profit or loss arising on the cancellation or renewal of forward contracts is recognized as an income or expense for

the period The exchange difference on such forward exchange contract is calculated as the difference between

the foreign currency amount of the contract translated at the exchange rate at the Balance Sheet date or the

settlement date where the transaction is settled during the reporting period and

the same foreign currency amount translated at the later of the date of inception of the forward exchange contract

and the last reporting date Such exchange differences are recognized in the Profit and Loss Account in the

reporting period in which the exchange rates change

Derivative instruments and hedge accounting

The Company uses foreign exchange forward contracts and options to hedge its
exposure

to movements in foreign

exchange rates These foreign exchange forward contracts and options are not used for trading or speculation purposes

Forward and option contracts are fair valued at each Balance Sheet date The resultant gain or loss except relating to

effective hedges from these transactions are recognised in the Profit and Loss Account The gain or loss on effective

hedges is recorded in the Hedging Reserve reported under Reserves and Surplus until the transactions are complete

On completion the gain or loss is transferred to the Profit and Loss account of that period To designate forward or

options contract as an effective hedge the management objectively evaluates and evidences with appropriate supporting

documents at the inception of each contract whether the contract is effective in achieving offsetting cash flows attributable

to the hedged risk In the absence of being designated as an effective hedge gain or loss is recognised in the Profit and

Loss Account

Employee benefits

Short term employee benefits

All employee benefits payable available within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term

employee benefits Benefits such as salaries wages and bonus etc are recognised in the Profit and Loss Account in the

period in which the employee renders the related service

Defined benefit plans

Defined benefit plans of the Company comprise gratuity provident fund and pension plans

Gratui

The Company has an obligation towards gratuity defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible employees The

plan provides for lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement death while in employment or on termination

of employment of an amount based on the respective employees salary and the tenure of employment Vesting occurs

upon completion of five years of service The Company makes annual contributions to gratuity fund established as

trust

Proc dent fund

In respect of employees the Company makes specified monthly contribution towards the employees provident fund to

the provident fund trust administered by the Company The minimum interest payable by the provident fund trust to

the beneficiaries every year is notified by the Government The Company has an obligation to make good the shortfall

if any between the return on respective investments of the trust and the notified interest rate
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Feiwon

The Company has an obligation towards pension defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible employees

plan provides for lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement death while in employment or on termination

of employment of an amount based on the respective employees salary and the tenure of employment \esting occurs

upon completion of 20 years of service

.tcttiariaL mLuuwit

The liability in respect of defined benefit plans other than provident fund schemes is accrued in the books of account

on the basis of actuarial valuation carried out by an independent actuary primarily using the Projected Jnit Credit

Method which recognizes each year of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee heneht entitlement and

measure each unit separately to build up the final obligation The obligation is measured at the present value of

estimated future cash flows The discount rates used for determining the present value of obligation under defined

benefit plans is based on the market yields on Government securities as at the balance sheet date having maturity

periods approximating to the terms of related obligations Actuarial gains and osses are recognised immediately in the

Profit and Loss Account Gains or losses on the curtailment or settlement of
any

defined benefit plan are recognised

when the curtailment or settlement occurs

The contributions made to provident fund trust are charged to Profit and Loss Account as and slicn they become

payable In addition the Company recognizes liability for shortfall in the plan assets visàvis the fund obligation ii

any Guidance on implementing AS 15 Employee Benefits revised 2005 issued by Accounting Standard Board

ASB states that benefits involving employer established provident funds which require interest shortfalls to be

recompensed are to be considered as defined benefit plans Pending the issuance of the guidance tc to lfl 11w Actnaiial

Society of India the Companys actuary has expressed an inabilit to reliably measure piovident fund liabilities

Accordmgly the Company is unable to exhibit the related information

Defined contribution plans

Under ihe superannuation scheme defined contribution plan the Company pays fixed contributions and has no

obligation to iat further amounts Such fixed contributions are recognized in the Profit and Loss Account on accrual

basis

Other long term employee benefits

rnpkdithieiLc

the Companys policy eligible leaves can be accumulated by the emplovcesaisd carried forward to future

periods to either be utilised during the service or encashed Encashment can he made during service oii early retirement

on withdrawal oi scheme at resignation and upon death of the employee The value of benefits is determined based

in the seniority and the employees salary

Losiuceawwx1

per the Companys policy employees of the Company are eligible fur an award alter completion of specified

number of veais of service with the Company

The Company accounts for the liability for compensated absences payable in future and long service awards based on

an independent actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method as at the
year

end Actuarial gains and losses

are recognized immediately in the Profit and Loss Account Cams or losses on the curtailment or seithiiient ui any

defined benefit plan are recognized when the curtailment or settlement occurs

Th.xes on income

Income tax expense comprises current tax i.e amount of tax for the ear determined in accordamicc with the Income

tax law and deferred tax charge or credit

Deferred tax charge or credit rellects the tax effects of timing difircnces between accounting income and taxable

income for the period The deferred tax charge or credit and the corresponding deferred tax liabilities or assets arc

recognised using the tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date Dcfrrred tax

assets are recognised only to the extent there is reasonable certainty that the assets can he realised in luture however

where there is unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward of losses deferred taxassets are recognised only if there is
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virtual certainty of realisation of such assets Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date and are

written-down or written-up to reflect the amount that is reasonably virtually certain as the case may be to be

realised

Provision for Fringe Benefit tax for the year has been determined in accordance with the provisions of section 11 5WC
of the Income Tax Act 1961

Minimum alternative tax payable under the provisions of the Income Tax Act 1961 is recognized as an assets in the

year
in which credit become eligible and is set off to the extent allowed in the

year
in which the Company becomes

liable to pay income taxes at the enacted tax rates

Provisions contingent liabilities and contingent assets

provision is created when there is
present obligation as result of

past event that probably requires an outflow of

resources and reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation disclosure for contingent liability is

made when there is possible obligation or present obligation that may but probably will not require an outflow of

resources When there is possible obligation or present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of

resources is remote no provision or disclosure is made

The Company does not recognise assets which are of contingent nature until there is virtual certainty of realisability of

such assets However if it has become virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise asset and related

income is recognised in the financial statements of the period in which the change occurs

Leases

Lease arrangements where the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset substantially vest with the

lessoi are recognised as an operating lease Lease payments under operating lease are recognized as an expense
in

the Profit and Loss Account on straight-line basis over the lease period

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders by the

weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year The weighted average number of equity shares

outstanding during the period are adjusted for events of bonus issue and share split For the purpose of calculating

diluted earnings per share the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted

average
number of shares outstanding during the

year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares

The dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period unless they have been

issued at later date
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SCHEDULE -23

Notes to the financial statements

Background

Ranbaxv Laboratories Limited the Company together with its subsidiaries joint venture and asoeiates operates

as an integrated international pIrinaceutica1s organisation with businesses enconipassilig
the clOne value chain

in the marketing production and distribution of pharmaceuticals products

The Companys shares are listed fbr trading on the National Stock Exchange and the Bombay Sun Exchange in

India Its Global Depositor Shares representing equity
shares of the Companv are listed on the uxemhonrg

Stock Exchange and Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds FCCBs are listed on the Singapore Stock Exchange

Food and Drug Administration FDA investigation

On 16 September 2008 the Company received two warning letters and an Tinlort Alert from tue nitcd States

of Ainericarlj SA FIA covering 30 generic drugs being manufactured at its Paonta Sahib and Desvas

manufacturing facilities in India The issue raised in the warning letters relate to Current Good \lanufactunng

Practice being Ibllowed at the said plants and does not in an way raises questions on products quality safety or

effectiveness

In 2008 consequent to Import Alert the Company was not ahle to sell the products covered nm kr linpomt Alert

and accordingl it had recorded provision of Rs 2631.11 million in that
year

towards inveimt irs expected sales

return and related exports benefits

25 February 2009 the Company received letter from the FDA indicating that the .\gen mad invoked

its Application Integrity Policy AJP against the Paonta Sahib fiscility the facihit the mtumgcnieimt of the

Company believes that there was no falsification of data generated at the facility and also believes that there is no

indication of pattern and practice of submitting untrue statements of material facts and theme was no other

improper conduct Accordingly the Company based on opinion from its legal council beli eve that there is no

incremental
present obligation existing at the balance sheet date on account of these notices

Ihe company continues to fully cooperate with the concerned authorities tor their final clearance pending wInch

there would be delays for new product approvals and sale of existing prodmicts in the nited States of America

During the current year the Company has performed reassessment of the amount of pros sinus created ut

2008 and reversed provision of Rs 93781 million which is included in unclaimed balances/ excess provisions

written hack which in view of the Company is no longer required now

In the year 2008 the department of Justice DOJ USA had filed certain charges against the ouipanv citnig

possible issues with the data submitted by the Company in support of product filing Ike onllammi\ conti mucs ti

work diligently with the concerned authorities towards resolution of the issue

On 28 October 2008 Daiichi Sankyo Company Limited.Japan Daiichi Sankvo acquired umat rit\ stake in tile

Coinpany lie Company issued the following shares/ warrants to Daiichi Sankvo

16.258.063 equity shares of Rs .5 each allotted as fully paid up on preferential basis

23.834333 warrants issued on 20 October 2008 Each warrant is convertible into one cquilv shame if Rs .4

each at premium of Rs 732 per
share at any time between six months to eighteen montli mom the late of

allotment of warrants iRs 73.70 per warrant being 1000 of the exercise price
retetvcd

Share-based compensation

flsc Conspanys Employee Stock Option Schemes ESOSs provide for the grant of stock options to eligible

management employees and Directors of the Company and subsidiaries The ESOSs ale iduinmistered h\ the

ompensation Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company Committee pt inns ire granted oii

the basis of performance and the grade of the employee Presently there aie three ES Ss ES ES II

and ESOS 2005T Options are granted at the discretion of the committee to select enuplovccs depending upon

ci rt ai ii emion

lhe ESOSs limits the maximum grant of options to an employee at 25.000 for ESOS amid Ut each or

ESOS II and ESOS 2005 in any given year ESOS and II provide that the giant price
of options is to he

determined at the
average

of the daily closing price of the Companvs equity shares on the NSIl dumnig period
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SCHEDULE -23

Notes to the financial statements

of 26 weeks preceding the date of the grant ESOS 2005 provides that the grant price of options will be the latest

available closing price on the stock exchange on which the shares of the Company are listed prior to the date of

the meeting of the Committee in which the options are granted If the shares are listed on more than one stock

exchange then the stock exchange where there is highest trading volume on the said date shall be considered

The options vests evenly over period of five years from the date of grant Options lapse if they are not exercised

prior to the expiry date which is ten years from the date of the grant

The Shareholders Committee from time to time have approved issuance of options under the Employees Stock

Options Schemes as per details given below

Date of approval No of options

29Junc 2002 2500000

25 june 2003 4000000

3OJune 2005 4000000

The stock options outstanding as on 30 June 2005 are proportionately adjusted in view of the sub-division of

equity shares of the Company from the face value of Rs.10 each into equity shares of Rs each

Options granted upto October 2002 are entitled for additional bonus shares in the ratio of 35
The movement of the options post split for the year ended 31 December 2009 is given below

Weighted- Weighted-

average average

Range of exercise remaining
Stock options exercise prices prices contractual life

numbers Rs Rs years

Outstanding beginning of the
year 7272849 219.00-561.00 439.59 6.73

Granted during the \ear 1472725 216.00-216.00 216.00 9.05

Forfeited during the year 530760 216.00-538.50 310.84

Allotted during the ear 36825 216.00-372.50 312.03

Lapsed during the year 764973 283.50-538.50 471.97

Outstanding end of the year 7413016 216.00-561.00 401.68 6.30

Exercisable at the end of the year 3906091 216.00-561.00 455.98 4.08

Includes options exercised pending allotment as at 31 December 2009

The movement of the options post split for the year ended 31 December 2008 is given below

Weighted- Weighted-

average average

Range of exercise excercise

Stock options exercise prices prices prices

numbers Rs Rs years

Outstanding beginning of the year 7168956 283.50-538.50 446.52 6.87

Granted during the
year 1774825 219.00-561.00 373.05 9.15

Forfeitedduringthcyear 456910 283.50-538.50 436.56

Exercised during the
year 880605 283.50-538.50 350.65 --

Lapsed during the year 333.417 283.50-538.50 473.41

Outstanding end of the year 7272849 219.00-561.00 439.59 6.73

Exercisable at the end of the year 3.450209 283.50-538.50 457.3 5.50
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Particulars

pening balance

Add Addition during the year

salaries wages and bonus 63.91

Contributions to provident and other fusids 6.05

Workmen and staff welfare 2.33

Raw materials 26.66

Power and fuel 28.15

Insurance 2.39

Others
_______

2762

366.12

Less Capitalised during the year
________

9.26

Balance as at year end 356.86

For the year ended

31 December

Statutory auditors 2009 2008

Statutory audit fee 9.50 6.30

Fax audit fee 3.25 2.75

Limited review fee 4.50 .60

Other matters 6.02 2.01

Out of pocket expenses
1.07 .56

24.34 11.22

Cost auditors

Audit fee

Certification

Out of pocket expenses
________

The Company has leased facilities under cancellable and noncancellable operating leases art iligememits ith

lease term ranging trom to 17 years which are subject to renewal at mutual consent thereafter lhe cancellable

arrangements can be terminated by either
party

after giving due notice The lease rent expense recognised during

the ear amounts to Rs 482.99 previous year Rs 458.73 The future minimum lease paymTets ut respect of

noncancellable operating leases as at 31 December 2009 and December 2008 arc

not later than one year

later than one year but not later than five years

ci later than five years
___________

Schedules forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2009

Rupees in mifflons except for share data and if otherwise stated

SCHEDULE -23

Notes to the financial statements

Capital work-in-progress including capital advances

Capital advances to vendors amounting to Rs I6L44 previous year Rs .59.33

Project related expenses directly allocable amounting to Rs 277.68 previous ear Rs 356.86 as under

As at 31 December

2009 2008

356.86 208.68

39.35

4.97

1.18

4.54

3.67

0.14

15.76

426.47

148.79

277.68

Payment to auditors exclusive of service tax

Interest on fixed loans and debentures

Interest includes interest paid on fixed period loans amounting to Rs 18.04 previous veir 867.73

Paid to previous statutory auditors

Includes Rs 0.50 paid to previous statutory auditors

Includes Rs 2.22 paid to previous statutory auditors

Includes Rs 0.37 paid to previous statutory auditors

Leases

0.66

0.29

0.08

1.03

0.76

0.29

111

As at 31 December
2009 2008

135.05 129.91

311.32 381.0

107.37 169.33

553.74 683.67
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SCHEDULE -23

Notes to the financial statements

Employee benefits

The Company primarily provides the following retirement benefits to its employees

Pension

Gratuity

Compensated absences

During the year the Company has reconised an expense
of Rs 257.09 Previous year Rs 223.36 pertaining to

employers contribution to provident fund schemes and superannuation fund which is included in personnel

cost in schedule 18

The following tables sets out the disclosures relating to pension and gratuity benefits as required

by Accounting Standard 15 Employee Benefits

Pension Gratuity

Unfunded Funded

Change in the present value of obligation

Present value of obligation as at January 2009 1571.19 482.17

1205.49 378.88

Add Interest cost 117.84 40.03

99 -15 30.74

Add Current service cost 93.20 36.40

706.91 39.09

Less Benefits paid 54.56 130.15

32.59 48.80

Add Actuarial gain/loss on obligations 28.83 96.62

191.92 82.25

Present value of obligation as at 31 December 2009 1756.50 525.07

1571.18 482.16

Gratuity

Funded

Change in the Fair value of Plan Assets

Fair value of plan assets as of lJanuaiy 2009 439.19

354.53

Add Actual return on plan assets 35.89

29.62

Add Contributions 94.36

103.84

Less Benelits paid 130.15

48.80

Fair value of plan assets as of 31 Iccember 2009 439.29

439 19
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SCHEDULE -23

Notes to the financial statements

Gratuity

Funded
Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation

and the fair value of assets

Present value of funded obligation as of 31 December 2009 525.07

482.16

Less Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the period funded status 439.29

-139 19

Present value of unfunded obligation as of 31 December 2009 85.78

12.97

Unfunded net liability recognised in Balance Sheet 85.78

42.97

Pension Gratuity

Unfunded Funded

Expenses recognised in the Profit and Loss Account

Current service cost 93.20 36.40

106.91 39.09

Add Interest cost 117.84 40.03

99 30 7-1

Add Expected return on plan assets 38.57
30.3/

Less Settlement credit 2.51 2.11

15.34 2.80

Add Net actuarial gain/loss recognised 28.83 99.30

191.92 82.94

expenses recognised in the Profit Loss account 237.36 135.05

382.94 119.66

Note- Figures in italics are for the year ended December 2008

The major categories of plan assets as percentage of total plan assets are as under

Particulars Gratuity

Central Government securities 18%

1500

State Government securities 110/0

12o

Bonds and securities of public sector Financial Institutions 6O%
620

Deposit with Reserve Bank of India 11
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SCHEDULE -23

Notes to the financial statements

The following table sets out the assumptions used in actuarial valuation of leave encashment

pension and gratuity

Leave

Particulars Encashment Pension Gratuity

Unfunded Unfunded Funded
Discount rate 7.50% 7.50% 7.50%

8.25% 8.25% 8.25%

Rate of increase in compensation levels 10.0% 10.0% 10.0%

5.5% 5.5% 5.5%

Rate of return of plan assets N.A N.A 8%
jVA JA 8%

Expected average remaining working lives of 20.55 24.08 20.58 20.58-24.08

employees years 21.74-24.50 21.20 21.20-24.50

The liability for leave encashment pension and gratuity as at 31 December 2009 was Rs 266.03 Previous year

Rs 272.90 1756.50 previous year Rs 1571.19 and Rs 85.78 previous year
Rs 42.97 respectively

1O/ for the first three years and 5/s thereafter

Figures in italics are for the
year

ended 31 December 2008

10 Hedging and Derivatives

The Company uses foreign exchange forward contracts and options to hedge its
exposure to movements in

foreign exchange rates These foreign exchange forward contracts and options are not used for trading or

speculation purposes

The following are the outstanding forward exchange contracts and currency options entered into by the Company

As at 31 December 2009

Category Currency Cross Amount Buy
Currency in millions Sell Purpose

Forward contracts USD INIR USD 20.00 Sell Hedging

Forward contracts EUR TJSD USD 1.44 Sell Hedging

Currency options USD INR USD 1038.5 Sell Hedging

Currency Swaps jPY USD JPY 10350.00 Buy Hedging

Interest rate swap JPY LIBOR JPY JPY 1800.00 Hedging

As at 31 December 2008

Category Currency Cross Amount Buy
Currency in millions Sell Purpose

Forward contracts USD INR USD 218.40 Sell Hedging

Forward contracts EUR USD USD 35.30 Sell Hedging

Forward contracts GBP LTSD USD 0.17 Sell Hedging

Currency options USD INR USD 1403.00 Sell Hedging

Currency Swaps JPY USD JPY 10350.00 Buy Hedging

Interest rate swap JPY LIBOR JPY JPY 1800.00 Hedging
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SCHEDULE -23

Notes to the financial statements

The outstanding forward contracts which are classified as cash flow hedges and effective as at lecernhcr

289 are as follows

Currency Cross Currency Amount Loss

in millions net of tax

ITS INR US1 20.01 28.73

le ompanys unheciged foreign currenc exposures on account of payablcs/ receivables not hedged are as follows

As at 31 December 2009 As at 31 December 2008

in original in original

currency in Rupees currency in Rupees

Receivables

EURo 22.05 1469.99 LbS 10.58

BRL 24.98 666.21

ZAR 102.30 640.96 103.53 531.18

RUB 410.90 267.24 5.18 8.57

GBP 2.73 205.53 3.31 237.21

ALD 2.04 85.18 2.22 76.20

SEK 10.62 68.99 13.88 86.34

Nil 1.10 37.18 2.10 59.69

MYR 2.73 37.05 0.98 3.72

NY 2.99 20.40

jPY 36.22 18.31 23.99 2.86

Afl 0.65 8.28 5.95 78.68

VNI 231.38

MMK 0.18 .36

TSl INR
currency exposure for receivable balances Is hedged fully however TS1 to above currency is

unlieclged to the extent stated above

Payables

1JSF 51.73 2406.05 9.38 455.77

EURO 4.27 284.68 0.77 52.31

CAl 2.61 115.30 0.01 0.40

GBP 0.44 33.08 0.02 1.12

jPY 24.22 12.24 11.11 1.20

1KK 2.23 20.45

Others 5.36 15.33

Bank balances

ITSD 0.62 28.84 0.71 31.5

UFL 0.56 10.81 0.35 689
-- FR 94.04 9.55 49.29 5.21

-- RUB 5.90 3.83 2.11 3.17

-- PLN 0.03 0.49 1.00 16.22

UAH 0.53 3.04 0.72 L48

Others 5.92 560

Loans

USI 666.86 31016.74 637.3 30.966 14

JPY 1800.00 965.15

Exposures in other currencies which are not significant has been aggregated bu this disclosure

lor derivat es refer slot above
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Schedules forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2009

Rupees in millions except for share data and if otherwise stated

SCHEDULE -23

Notes to the financial statements For the year ended

31 December

11 Foreign exchange gain loss other than loans 2009 2008

Foreign exchange loss gain 1423.48 725.96

Fair valuation gain loss on derivatives 3213.88 10990.42

1790.40 10264.46

For the year ended

31 December

12 Directors remuneration 2009 2008

Salaries and allowances 186.44 229.08

Contribution to provident and other funds 20.67 44.40

Directors fee 1.99 2.46

Commission 52.00

Perquisites 4.84 1.34

265.94 277.28

Does not include the following

Liabilities in respect of gratuity pension and leave encashment for one of the directors as the same

is determined on an actuarial basis for the company as whole

Amortisation of deferred employee compensation on grant
of stock options

Compensation cost of Rs 481.38 for the loss of office to director previous year Rs nil

Pension paid payable to non-executive directors for the services rendered in earlier years as whole

time director/ employees Rs nil previous year Rs 229
During the year the Company has received requisite approvals for managerial remuneration paid to its

director in the previous yeai which was in excess of the limit under the Companies Act 1956

Determination of net profits in accordance with the provisions of section 349 of the

Companies Act 1956 and commission payable to directors

For the year ended

31 December 2009

Profit before tax as per
Profit and Loss account 10619.17

Less

Profit on sale of assets net 237.34

Profit on sale of investments 420.33

657.67

Add
Directors remuneration including commission 265.94

Fixed assets written off 12.00

277.94

Net profit 10239.44

Maximum remuneration which can be paid to Whole-time Directors

as per Companies Act 1956 1023.94

Maximum commission which can be paid to other Directors as per Companies Act 1956 102.39

Commission to directors

As determined by the Board of Directors

Whole-time 35.00

Others 17.00

52.00

in view of losses in the year ended 31 December 2008 net profit under section 349 of the Companies Act 1956

was not determined
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Notes to the financial statements

13 Commitments and Contingent liabilities

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts under dispute

DPC
Ii Excise matters

Octroi tax matters

Sales tax matters

el Other matters

Service tax matters 3.07

The Company has received demand for payment to the credit of the Drug Prices Equalisittion Aceotitit

under Drugs Price Control Order 1995 DP which is being contested by the Company in respect

of its various products Further the Company has deposited Rs 3l9.59 previous year Rs 297.91

under protest

The Company has been contesting case with Municipal Corporation of Moliali NICI under

which MCM is contesting that Octroi has to paid by the Company at oasaaiiist 950 being

paid by the Company The amounts represents the differential

These represent cases pending at various forums on account of emplovee/ worker related eases State

electricity board Punjab Land Preservation Act etc

The Company believes that the probability of
any liability on account of any cases petiittig including

those pending with DQJ is remote

ii Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital 773.85

account and not provided for net of aclvances

14 The aggregate amount of revenue expenditure incurred on research and development is shown

in the respective heads of account The break-up of the amount is as under

For the year ended

31 December

2009 2008

Salaries wages and bonus 1309.08 .225.26

Contribution to provident and other funds 81.57 76.52

Workmen and staff welfare 68.37 55.81

Raw materials consumed 1135.09 665.60

Stores and spares consumed 531.99 537.80

Power and fuel 272.27 1.86

Clinical trials 451.55 507.78

Rent 213.09 198.36

Printing and stationery 16.61 20.77

Insurance 38.06 30.92

Communication 56.37 18 19

Legal and professional charges 53.95 29.30

Travel and conveyance 85.50 103.73

Running and maintenance of vehicles 34.34 20.51

Analytical and processing charges 49.32 63.81

Repairs and maintenance

Buildings 6.44 0.07

Plant and machinerv 44.34 15.85

Others 94.54 87.61

Recruitment and training 13.43 10

Others 165.93 I753

4721.84 4155.46

As at 31 December

2009 2008

1703.30
75.42

171.00

12.76

190.71

.5

68.57

171 .01

7.96

17151

517.28
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Notes to the financial statements Continued

15 Related party disclosures

Relationship

Holding company also being the ultimate holding company

Daiichi Sankvo Co. Ltd Japan from 20 October 2008

ii Subsidiaries domestic

Ranhaxy Drugs and Chemicals Company

Solus Pharmaceuticals Limited

Ranbaxy SEZ Limited

Rexcel Pharmaceuticals Limited

Gufic Pharma Limited

Ranhaxy Life Sciences Research Limited

Ranbax Drugs Limited

\Tidyut Investments Limited

Solrex Pharmaceuticals Company Partnership firm

iii Subsidiaries including step down subsidiaries overseas

Ranhaxy Netherlands BV The Netherlands

Ranhax Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong

Ranhaxy Inc USA

Ranbaxy Egypt L.L.C. Egypt

Ranhaxy Guangzhou China Ltd China upto 29 December 2009

Ranbaxv Farmaceutica Ltda Brazil

Ranhaxy Signature LLC USA

Ranbaxy PRPPeru SAC

Ranbaxy Australia Pty Ltd Australia

10 Lapharma GmhH Germany
11 Ranbaxy Unichem Co Ltd. Thailand

12 Ranbaxy USA Inc USA

13 Ranbaxy Italia S.p.A Italy

11 Ranbaxy Malaysia Sdn Bhd Malaysia

15 Be-Tabs Investments Proprietary Ltd South Africa

16 Ranhaxyjapan KK from 09 November 2009

17 Ranbaxy NANV The Netherlands

18 Ranbaxy Poland Zoo Poland

19 Ranbaxy Nigeria Limited Nigeria

20 Ranhaxy Europe Limited U.K

21 Ranhaxy UK Limited U.K

22 Basics GmhH Germany

23 ZAO Ranbaxy Russia

Tcrapia S.A Romania

25 Ranhaxy Pharmaceuticals Inc USA

26 Ranhaxy Laboratories Inc USA

27 Ohm Laboratories Inc USA

28 Ranhaxy Hungary Kft Hungary upto 22 May 2009
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Notes to the financial statements Continued

29 Terapia Iistributie S.R.L Romania

30 Ranbaxy Pharma AB Sweden

31 Office Pharmaceutique Industriel et Hospitaher SARL France

32 Ranbaxy Ireland Limited Ireland

33 Ranbaxy S.A Proprietary Limited South Africa

34 Ranbaxy Holdings UK Ltd U.K

35 Ranbaxy Do Brazil Ltda Brazil

36 Laboratorios Ranbaxy S.L Spain

37 Ranbaxy Vietnam Company Ltd Vietnam upto 05 October 2009

38 Ranbaxy Pharmacie Gerieriques SAS France

39 Ranbaxy Pharmaceuticals Canada Inc Canada

40 Sonke Pharmaceuticals Pty Ltd South Africa

41 Ranbaxy Mexico S.A.de CV from 13 November 2009

42 Ranbaxy Portugal Com Desenvolv De Prod Farmaceuticos Unipessoal Lda Portugal

43 Ranbaxy Beligium NV Belgium

44 Be-Tabs Pharmaceuticals Proprietary Ltd

45 Rexcel Egypt L.L.C Egypt

iv Joint Venture Overseas

Nihon Pharmaceuticals Industry Co Ltd.Japan Investment made by Ranbaxv Netherlands BV

The Netherlands upto December 2009

Associates domestic

Zeriotech Laboratories Limited

Shimal Research Laboratories Limited

vi Key management personnel

Mr Malvinder Mohan Singh Chairman CEO Managing Director upto 21 Ma 2009

Mr Atul Sobti CEO and Managing Director

Mr Ramesh Adige Upto 19 December 2008

vii Relatives of Key management personnel with whom transactions during the year and

or previous year

J\Irs Nimmi Singh mother of Mr Malvinder Mohan Singh upto 21 May 200ft

viii Entities over which significant influence is exercised by Mr Malvinder Mohan Singh

with whom transactions were carried out in the current year and or previous year

Fortis Healthcare Limited Including its subsidiaries

Religare Securities Limited

Ran Air Services Limited

Religare Travels India Limited

Religare Capital Markets Limited

Super Religare Laboratories Limited

Fortis Clinical Research Limited

Religare Enterprises Limited

Escorts Heart Institute and Research Centre Limited

10 Religare Technova IT Services Limited formerly Fortis Financial Services Limited

11 Oscar Investments Limited
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Transactions with the related parties

Transactions Holding Subsidiaries Key Entities over Total

Company Joint Ventures management which

and Associates personnel significant

influence is

exercised

Sales

Royalty technical know-how

and product development

Dividend from overseas

subsidiaries

Sale of Intellectual property

rights fixed assets

Unclaimed balances excess

provision written back

Interest received

Rent received

Other income

Finished goods purchased

Market research
expenses

Procurement cost of

exhibit batches

Regulatory filing expenses

Advisory services

Analytical and processing

charges

Clinical Trials

Product quality claim

Business support expenses

18.03

13.73

32.33

201.40

0.23

1.46

17199.19

15418.91

195.06

78.22

9.54

11.01

166.89

928.42

0.36

281.75

1.04

2.40

9.26

1199.32

1259.54

656.86

898.40

412.35

127 10

193.24

153.58

164.10

61.02

55.39

57 14

1668.45

1.30

2.51

17199.19

15436.94

195.06

78.22

9.54

11.01

166.89

928.42

0.36

281.75

1.04

16.13

41.59

1199.55

1259.54

658.32

898.40

412.35

127 10

193.24

201.40

153.58

164.10

61.02

55.39

57.14

1668.45

1.30

2.51
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Investments made

Loans and advances given

Loan and advance received

back

Purchase of fixed assets

Sale of investment

Sale of fixed assets

Equity capital contribution

including premium

Equity share warrants

money received

2.20

1.51

.66

168

1.56

0.35

0.23

250.64

27130

98.03

103.36

112.05

2.40t 19

393615

5.50

0J88.50

3t .05

8.15982

97.57

431.34

14.00

38.05

34.092.19

1.75659

Schedules forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2009
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SCHEDULE -23

Notes to the financial statements Continued

Transactions Holding Subsidiaries Key Entities over Totall

Company Joint Ventures management which

and Associates personnel significant

influence is

exercised

Travel and conveyance

Royalty paid

Freight clearing and

forwarding

Commission

Personnel expenses

Technical services availed

Amount written off

250.64

279.30

1.18

.66

0.68

0.56

0.35

0.2

112.05

2.404 f9

3936.45

5.50

10488.50

330.05

8.159.82

38.05

2.20

0.36

34092.19

1756.59

98.03

403.36

97.57

134.31

4100

Note Figures in brackets are for previous year
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Notes to the financial statements Continued

Sales

Ranbaxy Pharmaceuticals Inc USA

ZAO Ranbaxy Russia

Royalty Technical know-how and

product development

Ohm Laboratories mc USA

Ranbaxy Malaysia Sdn Bhd Malaysia

Ranbaxy Guangzhou China Limited China

Ranbaxy Nigeria Limited Nigeria

Ranbaxy Pharmaceuticals Inc USA

Ranbaxy Unichem Company Ltd Thailand

Dividend from overseas subsidiaries

Ranbaxy Malaysia Sdn Bhd Malaysia

Ranbaxy Unichem Company Ltd Thailand

Ranbaxy Nigeria Limited Nigeria

Sale of Intellectual property rights fixed assets

Basics GmbH Germany

Unclaimed balances excess provision-written back

Ranbaxy Pharmaceuticals Inc USA

Interest received

Ranbaxy Drugs and Chemicals Company India

Rexcel Pharmaceuticals Ltd India

Solus Pharmaceuticals Ltd India

Rent Received

Soirex Pharmaceuticals Company India

Partnership firm

Other Income

Solrex Pharmaceuticals Company India

Partnership firm

Zenotech Laboratories Limited India

Ranbaxy Unichem Company Ltd Thailand

Finished goods purchased

Solrex Pharmaceuticals Company India

Partnership firm

Ranbaxy Malaysia Sdn Bhd Malaysia

Subsidiary Company

Subsidiary Company

Subsidiary Company

Subsidiary Company

Subsidiary Company

Subsidiary Company

Subsidiary Company

Subsidiary Company

Subsidiary Company

Subsidiary Company

Subsidiary Company

Subsidiary Company

Subsidiary Company

Subsidiary Company

Subsidiary Company

Transaction in excess of 100o of the total related party transactions

Sr Transactions Related party For the For the

No relationship year ended year ended

31 Dec 31 Dec
2009 2008

Subsidiary Company

Subsidiary Company

4-

8557.05

1318.95

65.86

50.68

45.76

18.46

5.22

2.17

2.15

166.89

850.93

0.36

1.04

1.71

0.69

1003.26

144.19

6671.58

1875.18

19.13

23.45

19.99

10.19

6.68

1.96

2.37

110.52

110.35

9.26

1172.77

0.77

Subsidiary Company

Associates

Subsidiary Company

Subsidiary Company
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Sr Transactions Related party For the For the

No relationship year ended year ended

31 Dec 31 Dec
2009 2008

10 Market research
expenses

Ranbaxy Inc USA Subsidiary Company 339.11 315.79

Ranbaxy Europe Limited U.K Subsidiary Company 268.19 582.61

11 Procurement cost of exhibit batches

Ohm Laboratories mc USA Subsidiary Company 412.35 102.28

Terapia S.A Romania Subsidiary Company 24.82

12 Regulatory filing fee

Basics GmbH Germany Subsidiary Company 45.16

Lahoratorios Ranbaxy S.L Spain Subsidiary Company 22.47

Ranbaxy Italia S.p.A Italy Subsidiary Company 24.95

Ranbaxy Pharmacie Generiques SAS France Subsidiary Company 30.96

Ranbaxy Beligium N.V Belgium Subsidiary Company 19.85

13 Analytical and processing charges

Soirex Pharmaceuticals Company India Subsidiary Company 34.06 48.64

IA Partnership firm

Ranbaxy Ireland Limited Ireland India Subsidiary Company 96.15 107.98

Terapia S.A Romania Subsidiary Company 23.37 7.48

14 Clinical trials

Terapia S.A Romania Subsidiary Company 61.02 55.39

15 Product quality claim

Ranbaxy Farmaceutica Ltda Brazil Subsidiary Company 34.55

Ranbaxy Pharmacie Generiques SAS France Subsidiary Company 13.10

ZAO Ranbaxy Russia Subsidiary Company 5.97 8.65

Ranbaxy Pharmaceuticals Inc USA Subsidiary Company .2 70.98

Ohm Laboratories mc USA Subsidiary Company 266.84

16 Business support expenses

Ranbaxy Inc USA Subsidiary Company 1.30 2.51

Travel and conveyance

Daiichi Sankyo Co LimitedJapan Holding company 2.20

18 Royalty paid

Iaiichi Sankyo Co Limited Japan Holding company 0.36

Gutic Pharma Limited Subsidiary Company 0.24 0.24

Terapia S.A Romania Subsidiary Company 0.94 .42

19 Freight clearing and forwarding

Ranbaxy Ireland Limited Ireland Subsidiary Company 0.68 0.56
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Schedules forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2009

Rupees in millions except for share data and if otherwise stated

SCHEDULE -23

Notes to the financial statements Continued

Sr Transactions Related party For the For the

No relationship year ended year ended

31 Dec 31 Dec
2009 2008

20 Commission paid

Ranbaxy Drugs and Chemicals Company India Subsidiary Company 0.35 0.23

21 Personnel Cost Also refer to note 12

Mr Malvinder Mohan Singh Key Management 167.41 237.18

Upto 24th May 2009 Personnel

Mr Atul Sobti Key Management 79.54 29.08

Personnel

22 Services availed

Fortis Clinical Research Limited India Entities over which 48.54 233.50

significant influence

is exercised

Religare Technova IT Services Limited India Entities over which

significant influence

is exercised 33.38 65.13

23 Amount written off

Ranbaxy Nigeria Limited Nigeria Subsidiary Company 112.05

24 Investments made

Ranbaxy Netherlands By The Netherlands Subsidiary Company 2404.50 1248.74

Zenotech Laboratories Limited Associate 1385.21

Rexcel Pharmaceuticals Limited Subsidiary Company 525.00

Solus Pharmaceuticals Limited Subsidiary Company 553.00

25 Loans and advances given

Ranbaxy Drugs and Chemicals Company India Subsidiary Company 5.50

Rexcel Pharmaceuticals Limited India Subsidiary Company 4992.50

Solus Pharmaceuticals Limited India Subsidiary Company 4992.50

26 Loan and advances received back

Rexcel Pharmaceuticals Ltd India Subsidiary Company 164.99 4082.29

Solus Pharmaceuticals Ltd India Subsidiary Company 165.00 4065.50

27 Purchase of fixed assets

Religare Technova IT Services Limited India Entities over which 97.57 145.84

significant influence

is exercised

Fortis Clinical Research Limited India Entities over which 288.50

significant influence

is exercised

28 Sale of Investment

Religare Enterprises Limited Entities over which 4400

significant influence

is exercised
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SCHEDULE -23

Notes to the financial statements Continued

Ranbaxy Hong Kong
Limited Hong Kong

Ranbaxv Malaysia

Sdn Bhd. Malaysia

Ranhaxy UK Limited

ZAO Ranbaxy Russia

Ranbaxy Nigeria Limited

Nigeria

Ranbaxy Ireland Limited

Ireland

vii Ranbaxy PRPPeru SAC

Ranbaxy S.A Proprietary

Limited South Africa

Be-Tabs Investments

Proprietary Ltd South Africa

Ranbaxy Egypt LEG.
Egypt

Ranbaxy Farmaceutica Ltda

Brazil

Ranbaxy Australia Pty Ltd

Australia

0.84

29.14

686.74

898.63

140i3

79.70

0.84

29.li

686.71

898.63

140.13

79.70

St Transactions Related party For the For the

No relationship year ended year ended

31 Dec 31 Dec
2009 2008

29 Sale of Fixed Assets

ZAO Ranbaxy Russia Subsidiary Company 38.05

30 Equity capital contribution including premium

Daiichi Sankyo Co Ltd. Japan Holding Company 31.092 19

31 Equity share warrants money received

Daiichi Sankyo Co Ltd Japan Holding Company .756.59

Balances due from/to the related parties

Sr Transactions Holding Subsidiaries joint Key Total

No Company Ventures and management
Associates personnel

Debtors

11

Ill

iv

vi

U.K

101.34

11 1.93

122.98

32.50

114.13

230.25

629.11

1672.51

58.75

242.14

329.36

390.08

150.19

213.22

602.92

531.08

38.15

101.34

111.93

122.98

32.50

11 1.13

230.25

629.11

1.672.54

58.75

212.14

329.36

390.08

150

213.22

602.92

531.08

38.15

viii

ix

xi

xii
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SCHEDULE -23

Notes to the financial statements Continued

Sr Transactions Holding Subsidiaries Joint Key Total

No Company Ventures and management
Associates personnel

xiii Ranbaxy Italia S.p.A Italy 182.21 182.21

95.81 95.81

xiv Ranbaxy Portugal Corn 5.89 5.89

Desenvolv De Prod 14.86 14.86

Farmaceuticos Unipessoal

Lda Portugal

xv Ranbaxy Pharmacie 53.49 53.49

Generiques SAS France 130.96 130.96

xvi RanbaxyPharmaAB 80.16 80.16

Sweden 151.43 151.43

xvii Ranbaxy Beligium N.V 46.97 46.97

Belgium 82.84 82.84

xvii Ranbaxy Pharmaceuticals 7104.67 7104.67

Inc USA

xix Basics GmbH Germany

23.77 23.77

Ranbaxy Vietnam Company

Ltd Vietnam 3.08 3.08

xxi Laboratorios Ranbaxy S.L

Spain 105.27 105.27

Creditors 0.96 371.62 4.11 376.69

2.120.72 3.30 2124.02

Loansandadvancesto 1533.78 1533.78

subsidiaries 1858.20 1858.20

Payable to directors 35.00

commission

Note figures in brackets are for previous year

Dues from parties parties under the same management as defined under Section 370JB of the Companies

Act 1956

16 Segment Information

In accordance with AS- 17 Segment Reporting segment information has been given in the consolidated financial

statements of Ranbaxy Laboratories Limited and therefore no separate disclosure on segment information is

given in these financial statements
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Schedules forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2009

Rupees in millions except for share data and if otherwise stated

SCHEDULE -23

Notes to the financial statements ontinued

17 Additional information pursuant to paragraphs of part of schedule VI to the Companies

Act1956

As certified by the management and accepted by the auditors

Particulars of installed capacities and actual production

Unit of Installed Actual Actual

measure capacity production Installed production

as at for the capacity for the

31 December year ended as at yea ended

2009 31 December 31 December 31 Iecembcr

2009 2008 2008

Dosage forms

Tablets Nos in million 9601.60 4056.81 9424.00 5665.98

Capsules Nos in million 2862.00 1218.33 2992.00 1632.25

Iry syrups/Powders Bottles in million 43.80 23.79 43.8 32.85

Ampoules Nos in million 48.00 83.06 48.0 108 11

Vials Nos in million 35.00 41.81 39.0 45.75

Liquids Kilolitres 561.60 -- 712.17

Irops Kilolitres 38.78 32.88

Active pharmaceuticals

ingredients anti
drugs

intermediates Tonnes 1917.89 1060.09 2001.57 l322.57

Ointments Tonnes 504.95 49759

In d/frrent denominations than actual production

Inclusne of production usedJr captue consumption

Installed caJncity is not go en as the same is manufactured by loan licensees

Notes

In terms of press Note no 1994 series dated October 25 1994 issued by the department of Industrial

Development Ministry of Industry Government of India and Notification no SO 137 dated March 01

1999 issued hy the Department of industrial Policy and Promotion Ministry of Industry Government of

India Industrial licencing has been abolished in respect of bulk drugs and formulations Hence there are 110

registered/ Liceneed capacities for these bulk drugs and formulations

Installed capacity being effective operational capacity has been calculated on double shift basis for dosage

firms facilities and on continuous basis for active pharmaceuticals ingredients and drug intermediates it

may vary according to the production mix

Actual production includes production at loan licencee locations
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Schedules forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2009

Rupees in millions except for share data and if otherwise stated

SCHEDULE -23

Notes to the financial statements

Particulars of Production Purchases Sales and Stock of finished goods

Consumption of raw materials quantity in metric tonnes

Raw material

3- CI -7- ACCA

Erythromycin A95

Cefuroxime Axetil Crystalline

ADCA

6APA

Others

For the year ended

31 December 2009

Quantity Amount

92.21 1035.69

121.60 334.02

39.81 325.74

123.94 295.69

192.10 251.40

11217.51

13460.05

For the year ended

31 December 2008

Quantity Amount

85.36 1317.23

299.60 687.05

33.89 311.91

133.38 355.23

269.94 503.09

11390.70

14565.21

Class of Goods Unit of Opening Stock Production Purchases Sales Closing Stock

measure Quantity Value Value Quantity@ Value Quantity Value

Tablets Nos./Million 836.33 1057.82 6131.67 17087.42 786.661079.98

73/0.66 20622.8/ 83633 1057.82669.87 820.53

Quantity Quantity

4056.81 2025.19 1376.06

5665.98 /8111/1 1068.07

Capsules Nos./Million 205.72 336.17 1218.33 359.27 492.87 1605.90 5135.74 177.42 289.95

2/2.06 293.77 /632.25 384.08 533.21 2.02267 61062.95 205.72 336117

Dry syrups/ Bottles /Million 8.27 101.93 23.79 73.62 139.40 97.82 1462.41 7.86 91.20

Powders 5-12 77.11 32.85 20.85 3-17./S 50.86 2661.50 8.26 101.93

Ainponles Nos./Million 21.83 67.31 83.06 3.17 24.92 96.64 971.85 11.42 65.26

/6121 71.80 108.1/ 2.07 /2.18 /0-1.59 788.40 21.83 67.31

Vials Nos./Million 8.63 250.27 41.81 53.92 530.97 95.55 2879.71 8.81 261.12

/2.30 197.1/ 45.75 53.88 482.87 103.30 2810.46 8.63 250.27

Liquids Kilolitres 594.06 110.28 561.60 2312.30 358.54 3136.39 959.75 331.57 59.80

587.53 92.7/ 742.17 2885.58 349.17 3621.52 970.45 591.06 /10.28

Drops Kilolitres 8.94 7.46 38.78 8.14 11.60 51.02 78.73 4.84 3.01

5.82 5.16 32.88 9.38 15.17 39.13 76195 8.95 7.16

Active

pharmaceuticals

ingredients and

drugs
intermediates Tonnes 127.32 1866.17 1060.09 171.54 1177.90 1247.70 14323.39 111.25 1808.94

/30.00 1778.30 1322.57 206/5 814.17 1.53/.10 61931.45 127.32 1866/7

Ointments Tonnes 219.14 119.22 504.95 862.16 463.44 1414.66 1676.82 171.59 108.71

128/0 74.3/ 497.59 950.95 297.27 1357.50 1501.88 219.14 1/9.22

Others 59.67 236.36 635.98 77.36

11.59 292.38 650 75 59.67

3976.30 4812.06 45211.80 3845.33

3425.72 1.21/64 43083.60 3.97630

Notes Inclusive of
physician saniples

Excludes 446.70 previous veai- llti3.6O t000es used Fr capils consumptIon

Figures in italics are fr 2008

Sales are exclusive ol excise duty and trade discount
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Rupees in millions except for share data and if otherwise stated

SCHEDULE -23

Notes to the financial statements

Consumption of raw materials components and spares

For the year ended For the year ended

31 December 2009 31 December 2008

Raw Components Raw Components
materials Spares materials Spares

Packaging Packaging

materials materials

Indigenous Rs Million 4604.26 2218.21 7.054.6 2403.07

As of total 34.21% 86.62% 8A3ro 82.3l

Imported Rs Million 8855.79 342.53 7510.61 516.57

As of total 65.79% 13.38% 51.57 17.69

Inchisne of components and spares u.sedJbr maintenance of plant and mathiner

For the year ended

31 December

2009 2008

Imports on basis

Raw materials 6076.74 6148.99

Components arid
spares

151.53 70.11

Capital goods 312.75 503.90

6541.02 6723.OO

Expenditure in foreign currencies

Interest 314.00 199.38

Royalty paid 3.46 2.31

Legal and professional charges 1778.17 1.370.21

Others 76 5807.87

6559.39 7680.29

Other includs orerseas personnel espenses advertisement and sales

p1w/lotion ectulatorvfillingfie commission market iesearch expenses ient

and travel and conveyance etc

Dividend paid to non-resident shareholders

Final dividend

Number of shareholders 27

Number of shares held

1ividend remitted

Year to which it relates 2007

hi Earnings in foreign exchange

FOB value of exports 27728.90 26.81 7.32

excluding Nepal

Royalty/Technical know-how and isroduct development 265.90 82.25

Dividend 9.54 11 .00

Others freight insurance etc 3360.17 1.52726

64.51 28537.83
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SCHEDULE -23

Notes to the financial statements

18 Information pursuant to clause 32 of the listing agreements with stock exchanges

Loans and advances in the nature of loans to wholly-owned subsidiary companies are as under

Balance Maximum balance

As at during the year

31 December ended 31 December

2008 2009 2008

Interest free with no specified payment schedule

RanbaxyDrugsLimited 3.16 3.10 3.16 3.10

Rexel Pharmaceuticals Limited 753.22 918.20 918.20 2948.47

Solus Pharmaceuticals Limited 771.90 936.90 936.90 2369.89

Ranbaxy Netherlands By The Netherland 12.44

1528.28 1858.20 1858.26 5333.90

Interest hearing with no specified

payment schedule

Ranbaxy Drugs Chemicals Company Limited 5.50 5.50
________

5.50 5.50
_______

1533.78 1858.20 1863.76 5333.90

The above parties are also companies under the same management as defined under Section 370IB of the

Companies Act 1956

19 Previous year figures have been regrouped/ reclassified wherever necessary to conform to current years classification

Previous
year figures have been audited by another firm of chartered accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Dr Tsutomu Une Atul Sobti Omesh Sethi

Chairman CEO Managing Director President and CFO

Sushil Patawari

Company Secretar5

Place Gurgaon

Dated 25 February 2010
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Ranbaxy Laboratories Limited

Statement Regarding Subsidiary Companies Pursuant to Section 123 of the Companies Act 1956

Net aggregate amount of subsidiary Net aggregate amount

companys profits after deducting its of Subsidiary Companys

losses or vice-versa so far as it profit after deducting its

Name of Subsidiary Financial Holding Companys interest concerns memlseis of Holding losses or sire-versa

CompanY year to as at close of financial
year Company which are not dealt sviihin dealt ssithin the

which of subsidiary company the Companys account Companys account

accounts

relates Shareholding 5/sage For the For the For the For the

current previous current previous

financial financial fmancial financial

year years year years

Profit Ioss Profit Loss Ra Million Rs Million

Rs Million Rs Million

Domestic

Gufic Pharma Limited 2009 98.00 0.25 2.02 Nil Nil

Ranhaxy Drugs Iimited 2009 100.00 0.06 0.42 Nil Nil

Ranbaxy Drugs and 2009 101.00 0.05 6.23 Nil Nil

Chemicals Company

public company with

unlimited liability

Ranlsaxy Life Sciences 2009 80.07 10.06 9.86 Nil Nil

Research Itd

Ranlsaxy SEZ 1imited 2009 100.00 0.04 0.03 Nil Nil

Rcxccl Pharmaceuticals limited 2009 100.00 4.87 30.05 Nil Nil

Sislus Pharmaceuticals Limited 2009 100.00 1.64 6.62 Nil Nil

Vidyut Insestments 1.imited 2009 100.00 0.63 233.82 Nil 78.45

Overseas

Ranhax1 Australia Pty ltd 2009 100.00 115.16 372.97 Nil Nil

Australia

Ranfsaxy Belgium N.\ 2009 100.00 28.06 45.07 Nil Nil

Belgium

Ranhaxy Farmaceutica ltda 2009 100.00 206.46 386.84 Nil Nil

Brazil

Ranbaxv Do Brazil Ltda 2009 100.00 0.65 12.32 Nil Nil

Brazil

RanbaxyPharmaceuticals 2009 10000 16043 309.83 Nil Nil

Canada Inc

Canada

Ranhaxy Egypt L.L.C 2009 100.00 25.43 23.23 Nil Nil

Egypt

Rexcel Egysi L.L.C 2009 100.00 8.43 14.94 Nil Nil

Egypt

Ranhaxy Pharmacie 2009 100.10 0.17 187.25 Nil Nil

Generiques SAS

France

Office Pharmaceutiijuc 2009 100.00 4.69 43.40 Nil Nil

Industrici Et Hospitalier

SARI OPIH SARL
Frait

Basics GmhH 2009 10000 1384 239.31 Nil Nil

Germany

Lapharma GmbH 2009 100.00 0.26 0.13 Nil Nil

Germany

Ranbax1 Hong Kong Limited 2009 100.00 83.98 9.89 Nil Nil

Hong Kong

Ranhaxy Hungary 2019 100.00 0.28 Nil Nil

Gyogyszereszeti Kft

Hungars
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Ranbaxy Laboratories Limited

Name of Subsidiary
Financial Holding Companys interest

Company year
to as at close of financial

year

which of subsidiary company

accounts

relates Shareholding /oage

Net aggregate amount

of Subsidiary Companys

profit after deducting its

losses or vice-versa

dealt within the

Companys account

For the For the

current previous

financial financial

year years

Rs Million Rs Million

Net
aggregate

amount of subsidiary

companys profits after deducting
its

losses or vice-versa so far as it

concerns members of Holding

Company which are not dealt within

the Companys account

For the For the

current previous

financial financial

year years

Proflt Loss Profit Loss

Rs Million Rs Million

692.43 1159.10

355.49 390.27

113.42 372.12

50.94 200.15

124.56 333.15

6.65 9.76

1.97 28.67

94.67 123.91

Ranbaxy Ireland Ltd

Ireland

Ranbaxy Italia S.l.A

Italy

Ranhaxy Malaysia Sdn Bhd

Malaysia

Ranbaxy Mexico S.A de CV
Mexico

Ranbaxy Nigena Ltd

Nigeria

Ranbaxy-PRP Peru SAC
Peru

Ranbaxy Poland S.P Z.o.o

Poland

Ranbaxy Portugal

Corn Desenvolv De Prod

Farmaceuticos Unipessoal Lda

Portugal

Ranbaxy

Guangzhou China Limited

Republic of China

Terapia S.A

Romania

Terapia
Distributie SRI

Romania

ZAO Ranbaxy

Russia

Ranbaxy S.A Proprietary Ltd

South Africa

Be-Tabs Pharmaceuticals

Proprietary Ltd

South Afnca

Be-Tabs Investments

Proprietary Ltd

South Africa

Sonke Pharmaceuticals Pty Ltd

South Africa

Laboratorios Ranbaxy S.L

Spain

Ranbaxy Pharma AB

Sweden

Ranbaxy Netherlands

B.V RNBV
The Netherlands

Ranbaxy N.A.N.V

Antilles The Netherlands

Ranbaxy Unichem Company Ltd

Thailand

2009

2009

2009

2009

2009

2009

2009

2009

2009

2009

2009

2009

2009

2009

2009

2009

2009

2009

2009

2009

2009

100.00

100.00

68.09

100.00

85.31

100.00

100.00

100.00

83.00

96.70

96.70

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

68.40

00.00

100.00

100.00

100.10

88.56

Nil

Nil

5.22

Nil

2.16

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

32.77

Nil

18.39

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

78.08

675.36

267.37

287.91

51.21

112.54

0.72

10.26

0.05

86.34

504.71

0.31

29.44

247.49

3009.75

50.12

32.35

204.63

800.40

58.52

54.82

801.11

88.35

70.18

12.48

151.41 2.17 6.49
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Ranbaxy Laboratories Limtted

Net
aggregate amount of

subsidiary Net aggregate amount

companys profits after deducting its of Subsidiary Companys
losses or vice-versa so far as it

pmfit
after

deducting
its

Name of Subsidiary Financial Holding Companys interest concerns membecs of Holding losses or vice-vecsa

Company year to as at close of financial
year Company which are not dealt within dealt within the

which of solssidiacy company the Companys account Companys account

accounts

relates Shareholding /oage For the For the For the For the

current previous current previous

financial financial financial financial

year years year years

Profit Losa Pmfit Loss Ra Million Rs Million

Ra Million Rs Million

Ranbaxy U.K Ltd 2009 100.00 73.26 1223.23 Nil Nil

United Kingdom

Ranbaxy Holdings U.K ltd 2009 100.00 0.25 12.70 Nil Nil

United Kingdom

RanhaxyEoropeLtd 2009 100.00 14.04 26.94 Nil Nil

United Kingdom

Ranbaxy Inc 2009 100.00 507.80 1191.22 Nil Nil

USA

Ranhaxy Pharmaceutical Inc 2009 100.00 957.94 1621.18 Nil Nil

USA

RanbaxyUSAInc 2009 100.00 42.08 174.32 Nil Nil

USA

Ohm Laboratories Inc 2009 100.00 111.87 1922.91 Nil Nil

USA

Ranbaxy I.aboratories Inc 2009 100.00 241.52 146.31 Nil Nil

USA

RanbaxySignatoreLLCUSA 2009 67.50 21.28 392.95 Nil Nil

USA

Ranbaxy Vietnam Company Ltd 2009 100.00 35.82 52.67 Nil Nil

Vietnam

Exchange rate conversion at
year

md

Note

In terms of aplsroval granted by the Central Government under Section 2128 of the Companies Act 1956 the annual accounts of the subsidiary companies and the

related detailed information will be made available upon request by the investors of the Company and of its subsidiary compnaies These docoments will also be

avaslablc for inspection by any investor as she Head Office of the Company at 12th Floor Devika Towei Nehm Place New Delhi 111019 and that of the

sobsidiary cssmpanies concerned

The Board of Directors at its meeting held on Octssher 26 2009 appmved for seeking excemption fmm the Gosernment under Section 128 of the Companies Act

1956 in respect of the subsidiary Companies

iii Ranbaxyjapan KKJapan and Ranhaxy Maxico Servicios S.A de CV Maxico step
down whollyowned subsidiaries were incorporated on November 2009 and

November 13 2009 respectivel Audited accounts of these tsvo subsidiary companies not yet
became due

Divested/liquidated during the year

Ranbaxy Goangzhoo China Limited Repoblic of China

Ranhaxy Hungary Gyogyszereszesi Kft Hongarv

Ranlsaxy Vietnam Company Ltd Vietnam

For and on bchalf of thc Board of Dircctors

Dr Tsutomu Une Atul Sobti

Chairman CEO Managing Director

Placc Gurgaon Omesh Sethi Sushi Patawari

Datcd 25 Fcbroary 2010 President and CEO Company Secretary
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INDIAN GAAP

Auditors report to the Board of Directors of Ranbaxy Laboratories Limited on the consolidated financial statements

of Ranbaxy Laboratories Limited and its subsidiaries associates and joint ventures

We have audited the attached consolidated Balance Sheet of Ranbaxy Laboratories Limited the Company its subsidiaries

associates and joint ventures collectively known as the Group as at 31 December 2009 and also the consolidated Profit and

Loss Account and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement together known as consolidated financial statements for the year

ended on that date annexed thereto These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Companys management

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in India Those standards require that we

plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of

material misstatement An audit includes examining on test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the

consolidated financial statements An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates

made by management as well as evaluating the overall consolidated financial statement presentation We believe that our audit

provides reasonable basis for our opinion

We did not audit the financial statements and other financial information of certain subsidiaries and of certain joint ventures

and associates interests in which have been incorporated in these consolidated financial statements These subsidiaries joint

ventures and associates account for 23/o of total assets and 39/s of total revenues and other income as shown in these

consolidated financial statements Of the above

The financial statements and other financial information of some of the subsidiaries incorporated outside India as drawn

up
in accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles of the respective countries the local GAAP have

been audited by other auditors duly qualified to act as auditors in those countries These subsidiaries account for 21 0/ of

total assets and 36/a of total revenue and other income as shown in these consolidated financial statements Forpurposes

of preparation of consolidated financial statements the aforesaid local GAAP financial statements have been restated by

the management of the said entities so that they conform to the generally accepted accounting principles in India This

has been done on the basis of reporting package prepared by the Company which covers accounting and disclosure

requirements applicable to consolidated financial statements under the generally accepted accounting principles in India

The reporting packages made for this purpose have been audited by the other auditors and reports of those other

auditors have been furnished to us Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements insofar as it relates to these

entities is based on the aforesaid audit reports of these other auditors

The financial statements and other financial information of the remaining subsidiariesjoint ventures and associates have

not been subjected to audit either by us or by other auditors and therefore unaudited financial statements for the year

ended 31 December 2009 of these entities have been furnished to us by the management These subsidiaries joint

ventures and associates account for only 20/o of total assets and 3% of total revenues and other income as shown in these

consolidated financial statements and therefore are not material to the consolidated financial statements either individually

or in the aggregate

We report that the consolidated financial statements have been prepared by the Companys management in accordance with

the requirements of Accounting Standards 21 Consolidated Financial Statements Accounting Standard 23 Accounting for

Investments in Associates in consolidated Financial Statements and Accounting Standard 27 Financial Reporting of interests

in Joint Ventures prescribed by the Companies Accounting Standards Rules 2006

Without qualifying our opinion we draw attention to note on schedule 23 to the consolidated financial statements Consequent

to the Food and Drug Administration FDA of United States of America import alerts and the FDA letter dated 25 February

2009 imposing the Application Integrity Policy the Group had recorded provision of Rs 2631.11 million during the year

ended 31 December 2008 towards loss of inventory in hand expected higher sales returns and expected reversal of export

benefits The basis and assumptions used by the management in calculating these provisions were based on significantjudgment

and estimates due to involvement of uncertainty and actual result could have been different from managements estimate

During the year the Group carried out reassessment and determined that the related provision of Rs 937.81 million is no

longer required and accordingly the same has been written back in the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account

Based on our audit and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and on consideration of

reports of other auditors on separate financial statements and on the consideration of the unaudited financial statements and

on other relevant financial information of the components in our opinion the consolidated financial statements give true and

fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India in the case of

the Consolidated Balance Sheet of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2009

the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account of the profit of the Group for the year ended on that date and

the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement of the cash flows of the Group for the year ended on that date

For Co
Chartered Accountants

Vilcram Aggarwal

Place Gurgaon
Partner

Dated 25 February 2010 Membership No 089826
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Ranbaxy Laboratories Limited

Reserves and surplus

Minority interest

Loan funds

Secured loans

Unsecured loans

Fixed assets

Gross block

Inventories

Sundry debtors

Cash and bank balances

Loans and advances

Other current assets

10

11

12

2102.09

1756.59

1.95

39573.29

43433.92

533.22

2186.62

34108.60

36295.22

160.54

80422.90

62785.54

17880.49

44905.05

6230.66

51135.71

5407.40

4906.19

18406.99

18399.47

12416.34

9065.26

1797.90

60085.96

13 32510.83

14 8601.53

41112.36

18973.609O

2101.85

1756.59

39104.03

12.962 f7

674.61

2911.35

3993 7.32

12.88.67

216.63

86732.38

61.9fl.61

17011.97

44899.67

1707.37

49607.01

5431.50

121J6.01

19613.14

13310.08

23956.38

6.1-36.21

1755.19

65101.03

39.800 .36

6082.84

45883 .20

19217.83

86732.38

As per our report attached

For Co
Chartered Accountants

Vikram Aggarwal
Partner

Membership No 089826

Place iurgaon

Dated 25 February 2010

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Dr Tsutomu Une
Chairman

Omesh Sethi

Piesident and CEO

Place Gurgaon

Dated 25 February 2010

Atul Sobti

CEO Managing Dnectoi

Sushil Patawari

Compaiy cietaip

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 December 2009

Rupees in millions except share data and if otherwise stated

SOURCES OF FUNDS
Shareholders funds

Share capital

Equity share warrants

Share application money pending allotment

As at

31 December
2009

As at

31 December
2008

Deferred tax liability net

APPLICATION OF FUNDS

Schedule

235b

237

Less Accumulated depreciation

amortisation and impairment

Net block

Capital work-in-progress including capital advances

Investments

Deferred tax asset net
Current assets loans and advances

Less Current liabilities and provisions

Current liahilties

Provisions

Net current assets

Significant accounting policies 22

Notes to the consolidated financial statements 23

The schedules referred to above form an integral part of the Consolidated Balance Sheet
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Consolidated Profit and Loss Account for the year ended 31 December 2009

Rupees in millions except share data and if otherwise stated

Schedule

15 76117.65

147.29

75970.36

16 2935.45

2310 1931.23

80837.04

32079.98

14174.73

22591.29

68846.00

11991.04

710.43

1493.13

12773.74

2676.12

10097.62

6990.87

3106.75

32.38

109.45

2964.92

4009.92
13.76

1031.24

7.05

4.60

Profit loss before interest exchange

gain/loss net on loans depreciation

aniortisation impairment tax charge

benefit share in loss of associates and

minority interest

Interest 238

Exchange gain loss on loans

Profit loss before depreciation

amortisation impairment tax charge

benefit share in loss of associates and

minority interest

Depreciation amortisation and impairment

Profit loss before tax charge
benefit share in loss of associates and

minority interest

Tax charge benefit
20

__________

Profit loss after tax charge
benefit and before share in loss of

associates and minority interest

Less Share in loss of associates net 2320

Less Minority interest 2319 ___________

Profit loss for the year

Balance brought forward

Transfer from foreign projects reserve ___________

Deficit carried forward to Schedule

Earnings loss per share Rs 21

Basic Par value of Rs per share

Diluted Par value of Rs per share

Significant accounting policies
22

Notes to the consolidated financial statements 23

The schedules referred to above form an integral part
of the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account

As per our report attached

ForBSRCo
Chartered Accountants

Vikram Aggarwal
Partner

Membership No 089826

Place Gurgaon

Dated 25 February 2010

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Dr Tsutomu Une
Chairman

Omesh Sethi

President and CFO

Place Gurgaon

Dated 25 February 2010
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Atul Sobti

CEO Managing Director

Sushil Patawari

Company Secretan

INCOME

Operating income

Less Excise duty

Other income

Net foreign exchange gain other than on loans

EXPENDITURE

Materials consumed

Personnel expenses

Operating and other expenses

Net foreign exchange loss other than on loans

17

18

19

2310

For the year ended

31 December

2008

74449.96

310.01

74139.95

2599.46

76739.41

31831.49

12626.47

23843.68

11064.03

79365.67

2626.26

2055.01

7494.35

12175.62

2824.69

15000.31

5650.84

9349.47

78.21

84.37

9512.05

5482.63

19.50

4009.92

24.85

24.85



Ranbaxy Laboratories Limited

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement For The Year Ended 31 De
Rupees in millions except share data and if otherwise stated

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACT WITIES
Net profit/ loss before taxes

Adjustments for

Depreciation amortisation and impairment
Fixed assets written off

Deferred employees compensation charge
Deferred employees compensation reversal

Unrealised foreign exchange gain loss net
Foreign exchange loss/gain on

integral operations
Fair valuation gain loss on derivatives

Dividend income

Profit on sale of long term investments

Unclaimed balances excess provision written back

\lso refer to note of schedule 23
Profit on sale of assets net
Provision for diminution in value of long term investment

Loss on valuation of current investments

Interest expense
Interest income

Investment written off

Provisions write off for doubtful debts advances and other current assets

Operating profit before working capital changes
Adjustments for

Decrease increase in inventories

Llncrease decrease in sundry debtors

Decrease in loans and advances

Decrease increase in other current assets

Increase decrease in trade other payables

Cash ginerated/ used in from operating activity before taxes

Direct taxes paid net of refunds
Net cash used in operating activity

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTiVITIES
Purchase of fixed assets

Proceed from sale of fixed assets

Purchase of investments

Investment in associates

Cash paid for
acquisition

of minority interest

Sale proceeds of investments net of cash transferred

Decrease increase in fixed deposit with original maturity of more than 90 days
Interest received

Dividend received

Net cash generated from used in investing activity

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of capital including premium
Proceeds from equity share warrants

Decrease in short term bank borrowings net
Decrease in long term borrowings net
Increase in other borrowings net
Short term borrowings from non convertible debentures

Re-payment of short term borrowings of non converable debentures

Issue expenses of share capital and warrants

Interest paid

Dividend paid to minority shareholders of subsidiaries

Dividend paid

Tax on dividend

Net cash used in generated from financing activities

INCREASI IN CASIIAND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the yesr
Effect of exchange loss gain on cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year
Notes

Cash and cash equivalents include

Cash and cheques in hand arid remittances in transit

With banks in

Current accounts

Deposit accounts

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year
Add
Fixed deposit pledged restricted cash

Unclaimed dividend

Fixed de osit with
original maturity of more than 90 days

Cash and balances at the end of the year

10097.62

2676.12
7.97

8.17
2013.55

160.53

8932.47
9.78

533.22
858.40

137.67

127.78

710.43

1106.21

3.44
9.563.20

34.42

865.11

774.95
I66.21

90.59

5220.51
316.14

237.46

739.S4
1499.61
4008.56
1OlLOl

9.78

651.59

13.44

2830.91
1644.52

15.17

2000.00

2000.00

769.59
6.28

11782.77
114.32

5476.10

75.79

3319.44
Z.081.01

5.47L24

5476.91

0.79

66.33

6.872.98

12416.34

For the year ended

31 December

2008

15000.31

2824.69

3.75

5909.84

204.73
7702.14

29.38

42.83

177.38

933.20
433.72

2055.01

1053.26
93.42

273.61

17210.16

2209.85

3359.10
1880.04

970.60

639.43

1.222.23

2370.12
160.27

1359.94

1520.21

5748.80
1410.98

5212.01

1391.53

21.32

3055.72

10881.54
913.51

29.38

17845.61

34389.19

1756.59

2805.07

1725.25

33.40

16870.00

16870.00
201.40

2055.01
7.53

2239.42
380.59

26764.91

7399.09

4295.80

87.82
11782.71

388.60

2609.94

8784.23

11782.77

11782.77

1215.50

76.57

10881.54

23956.38

As per our
report

attached

For SR Co
Chartered Accountants

Vikraan Aggarwal
Partner

Membership No 089826

Place Gurgaon

Dated 25 February 2010

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Dr Teutomu Une

Chairman

Omesh Sethi

President and CFO

Place Gurgaon

Dated 25 February 2010

Atul Sobti

CEO Managing Director

Sushil Patawari

Company Secretary
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Ranbaxy Laboratories Limited

Schedules forming part of the consolidated financial statements

Rupees in millions except share data and if otherwise stated

Asat Asat

SCHEDULE -1
31 December 31 December

Share Capital
2009 2008

Authorised

598000000 pre\ous year 598000.000 equity shares of Rs each 2990.00 2990.00

100.000 previous year 100000

cumulative preference shares of Rs 100 each 10.00 1000

3000.00 3000.00

Issued subscribed and paid up

420.4-1 7758 previous year 420369753

equity shares of Rs each fully paid 2102.09 2.101 .85

2102.09 2101.85

Notes

Issued subscribed and paid capital includes

293.698988 previous year 293698988 equity shares of Rs each allotted as fully paid bonus shares by

capitalisation out of share premium and reserves

6562308 previous year 6562308 equity shares of Rs each allotted as full paid up purstalit to contract

without payment being received in cash

5501185 Global Depository Share GDSs previous year 7.227121 representing 5501.185 previous year

7227.121 equity shares of Rs each constitute 1.3100 of the issued subscribed and paid-up share capital ol

the Company are outstanding

268.7 11.323 previous year 268.711.323 equity shares of Rs each are held Daiichi Sankyo Compan Amited

Japan the holding company also being the ultimate holding company

Also refer to note on schedule 23

SCHEDULE -2

Reserves and surplus

Capitalreserve
71.77 71.77

Amalgamation reserve 43.75 13.75

Revaluation reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year
185.11 187.31

Less Utilised during the
year 113.95 2.21

71.16 185.11

Also refer schedule

Share premium account

Balance at the beginning of the year 37862.18 5.01051

Add Received during the year 11.26 34161.17

Add Transfered from employees stock option outstanding 1.89 31 .15

37875.33 39.206 13

Less Utilised for preferential allotment issue expenses 201.10

Less Premium payable on redemption of

Zero Coupon Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds FCCBs 1083.41 .731.33

Less Tax reversal benefit for premium payable on

redemption of FCCBs 1227.17 588 18

35564.75 37862.18

Also refer schedule

Foreign projects reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year
18.35 37.85

Less Transfer to Consolidated Profit and Loss Account 13.76 9.5

4.59 18.35

Hedging reserve net of tax

Balance at the beginning of the year 792.58

Add Utilised addition during the year 763.85 792.5ft

28.73 792.58
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Schedules forming part of the consolidated financial statements

Rupees in millions except share data and if otherwise stated

Asat Asat

31 December 31 December

2009 2008

Employee stock options outstanding

Balance at the beginning of the
year

67.67 95.75

Add Reversal amortisation of deferred employees compensation 8.17 3.37

59.50 99.12

Less Transferred to share premium on exercise of stock option 1.89 31.45

57.61 67.67

Also refer to note on schedule 23

General reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year 4370.28 16151.24

Less Transitional loss recognised pursuant to eady adoption

of Accounting Standard 30 Financial Instruments

Recognition and Measurement
__________

11780.96

4370.28 4370.28

Foreign currency translation reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year 1287.42 922.79
Add Deduction addition during the

year 838.07 221 0.21

449.35 1287.42

Deficit brought forward from Consolidated Profit and Loss Account 1031.24 4009.92

39573.29 39104.03

SCHEDULE -3

Secured loans

Loan from banks 1807.60 2474.47

Finance lease liability 379.02 436.88

2186.62 2911.35

Notes
______

Secured against certain assets property equipment and other immovable property inventories and sundry debtors

of Ranbaxy Laboratories Limited and Ranbaxy U.K Ltd

Secured against assets taken on finance lease by Ranbaxy Phamaceuticals Inc United States of America Also

refer to note 9a on schedule 23

SCHEDULE -4

Unsecured loans

Short term loans from banks 5684.54 8407.79

Other loans

Zero coupon foreign currency
convertible bonds FCCB5 20475.40 21379.60

From banks 7771.19 9.987.63

From others 177.47 162.30

34108.60 39937.32

Notes

The Parent Company has outstanding FCCBs aggregating to US 440 million The bondholders have the option

to convert FCCBs into equity shares of Ranbaxy Laboratories Limited at price of Rs 716.32 per share subject

to adjustment if any with fixed exchange rate of Rs 44.15 per US at any time on or after 27 April 2006 but

before March 2011 Further these FCCBs may be redeemed in whole at the option of Ranbaxy Laboratories

Limited at any time on or after 18 March 2009 but before February 2011 subject to the satisfaction of certain

conditions These FCCBs are redeemable on 18 March 2011 at premium of 26.765 percent net of withholding

tax of their principal amount unless previously converted redeemed purchased or cancelled

Other loans due for repayment within one year

From banks 2487.67 1738.97

From others 19.78 14.83
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Ranbaxy Laboratories Limited

Schedules forming part of the consolidated financial statements

Rupees in millions except share data and if otherwise stated

As at

31 December

2009

As at

31 December

2008

SCHEDULE -5

Deferred tax asset liability net
Deferred tax asset arising on account of

Provision for doubtful debts and advances

Employee benefits

FCCB loan revaluation

FCCB redemption premium charged to share premium account

lax losses carried forward

Others

Less Deferred tax liability arising on account of

Depreciation amortisation and impairment

Others

Deferred tax asset net

Aggregate of net deferred tax assets jurisdictions

Aggregate of net deferred tax liabilities jurisdictions

Deferred tax asset net

22.54 .83

23.56 152.51

113.77

1227.17

7222.49 12748.92

648.22 815.97

7916.81 15.190 17

3005.22 3091.85

165.94 165.91

3171.16 3260.79

4745.65 12229.38

4906.19 12.17601

160.54 216.63

4745.65 12229.38

In respect of Ranbaxy Laboratories Limited on the basis of profit from operations made subsequnt to year end

profit on sale of materials relating to First to File FTF product in the 1.Tnjted States of America milestone 1ayrnrnt

from an exclusivity settlement and certain other factors the Group helieves that there is virtual certainty in respect of

the carrying amount of net deferred tax asset Consequently deferred tax asset of Rs .296.83 has been written oil

Further due to similar assessment as mentioned above the deferred tax asset of Rs 1.22717 relating to premium

payable on redemption of FCCBs has not been carried forward with corresponding adjustment through share 1emiiim

account

In respect of other countries where there is carry forward tax losses as at year end deferred tax asset amounting to

Rs 917.30 has not been recognised
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Schedules forming part of the consolidated financial statements

Rupees in millions except share data and if otherwise stated

SCHEDULE -6

Tangible assets

Land

Freehold

Leasehold

BuildingsA

Plant and machinery

Furniture and fixtures

Vehicles

Assets taken on lease

Building

Plant and machinery

Vehicles

Intangible assets

Goodwill

Product development

Patent trade marks

designs and licences@@

Softssare@@

Non compete fee

Gross block

Additions Deletionsl

______ adjustments

918.80

262.66

6919.86

22546.31

1877.35

855.09

605.56

1.21

8.48

21518.91

361.75

5021.88

832.78

211.00

61941.64 4158.79

55690.25 4628.06

830.83

269.00

6983.63 1076.48

23374.45 10126.23

1871.53 777.61

832.48 400.62

579.96 246.47

3.95 0.08

3.86 4.91

21446.32 61334

361.75 361.75

4985.45 2735.86

1031.33 497.72

211.00 200.70

62785.54 17041.97

61941.64 13645.14

Accumulated depreciation

amortisation and impairment

For the Deletions/ Translation

year adjustments

0.01
115.85 31.62
914.12 115.29
103.46 9.96

69.96 14.23

51 13 9.941

0.27 0.02

0.23 2.08 0.10

78.88 13.96

440.77

114.68

10.30

2676.12 1569.05 268.55

2824.69 572.14 1144.28

Net block

830.83 918.80

1.18 267.82 262.66

1137.30 5846.33 5843.38

1M77.41 12697.04 12420.09
821.26 1050.27 1099.74
428.03 404.45 454.47

287.66 292.30 359.00

0.33 3.62 1.13

3.16 0.70 337

520.70 20925.62 20905.37
361.75

2823.43 2162.02 2286.02

607.28 424.05 335.06

211.00 10.30

17880.49 44905.05 44896.67

17041.97 44899.67

Fixed assets

Description Translation

37.71

0.41

232.58

152.28

12.95

17.41

25.601

0.23

0.21

61.89

132.05

5.88

0.46 jO.72

6.75

644.98 348.63

2094.57 1114.15

153.32 148.19

106.81 112.01

2.97

4.83

541.26 331.96

397.69 302.07

207.98 3..t

1.19

208.29

1580.59

157.07

111.60

Total

Previous year

2636.11 678.78

793.58 2416.90

Notes

Additions to fixed assets during the year include Rs 221.98 previous year Rs 558 28 towards assets used for research and deselopment

The above includes the following assets held for disposal which are being carried at the lower of their net block and net realisable value

282.95

1.75

70.25

3.37

Description Gross block Accumulated

depreciation

INet block

Land

Building

Plant and mac hiners

204.22

202.99

48.39

85.03

11.63

85.03

20422

202.99

36.76

Squres in brackets are for presious year

Freehold land includes Rs 25.48 presious year
Rs 2.48 pending registration in the name of Ranhaxs Laboratories Limited

During the year Ranbaxy Laboratories Limited pros ided for an imp.sirment loss of Rs nil pres ious sear Rs 331.32 on ertain product deselopment rights The impairmeni loss was determined owing to the
prevailing

market condiiions of the underling molecules for whith the product development rights were acquired

During the current year consequent to change in the
probabilit

for extension of lease term for leased propert Ranbaxy Laboratories Limited has ret orded accelerated depreciation on assets tonstrut ted that

leased
property aiauunting to 141.70 presiou year nil

Remaining useful uses of intangible assets as ai 31 Dci ember 2009 is in the range of 1-10 years

Description Remaining useful lives

Patents trade marks designs and licences I-b
years

Software 1-6 years

nludes adjustment of Rs 18499 atumulated
depreciation

of Rs 71 04 on account of resaluation tarried out bs Ranbaxy Ireland Limited



Ranbaxy Laboratories Limited

CURRENT

Trade

Quoted
Krehs Biochemicals Industries Limited

Non trade

Quoted

Orchid Chemicals and Pharmaceuticals Limited

Trust securities

Non trade unquoted

Zero NABARD-2019

Zero O/ NABARD-2019

Zero O/ NABARD-2019

6.85/a IIFCL

LONG TERM
Investments in shares/ warrants of companies fully paid

Trade

Quoted

Krehs Biochemicals Industries Limited

Sawai Pharmaceutical Co Ltd

Non trade

Quoted

The Great Eastern Shipping Company Limited

Fortis Healthcare Limited

Orchid Chemicals and Pharmaceuticals Limited

Autobacs Seven Co.Ltd

Unquoted

Kapasa B.\

Associates trade

Quoted

Zenotech Laboratories Limited

Unquoted

Shimal Research Laboratories Limited

Less Provision for diminution in value of long tirm investments

Aggregaie hook value of quoted investments of associates

Market value of c1uoted investments of associates

Aggregate book value of long term quoted investments of others

Market value of long term quoted investments of others

Book value of long term unquoted investments in associates

Book value of long term unquoted investments in others

Investment bank certificates of diposit purchased and sold during thc sear

ABN Amro Bank

Corporation Bank

Federal Bank

-- 1DB Bank

Punjab National Bank

State Bank of India

Notes
Held by Nihon Pharmaceuticals Industry Co Ltd.Japan

Includes goodwill Rs 1900.18 previous year
Rs 1900.18

Includes guodscill Rs 681.67 previous year
Rs 681.67

Asat

31 Dec

2008

Nature of Face N-ers
investment value 2008

Equityshares Rs 10 1030000 35.33

9169977 1684.98

9245 86.97

2650 24.92

2650 24.92

1000000 100.65
_______

23.46 ________

1957.77

Rs 10 10500 119.25

1500 2.76

Rs 10 286000 250000 2.50 2.50

Rs 10 20 20.100 0.20 020

Rs 10 50 500011 0.50 0.51

2501 1.89

Rs 10 167330 li7330 10.54 10.54

13.74 107.64

Rs 10 500 0.03

Rs 10 14097660 l4097fii 140.98

Rs 10 1669977

871

485.90

141.01 2482.50

Equity shares Rs 10 16127293 lhl 27.2 2313.63 2161.82

Equity shares Rs 10 9340000 .340010 981.75 965.94

3295.38 1.12776

5407.90 5117.90

0.50 486.40

5407.40 5431.50

2313.63 2161.82

1841.74 .728.85

141.01 2.188.62

1930.12 1841.28

981.75 65.94

13.24 15.63

79.32

246.22

147.34

728.61

183.26

180.03

Schedules forming part of the consolidated financial statements

Rupees in millions except share data and if otherwise stated

Schedule

Investments

Equity shares Rs 10

Bonds Rs 10000

Bonds Rs 10000

Bonds Rs 10000

Bonds Rs 100

Unquoted

Nimhua Greenfield Punjab Limited

Shivalik Solid Waste Management Limited

Biotech Consortium India Limited

Fomita Pharmaceutical Co Ltd

Sidmak Laboratories India Limited

Equity shapes

Equity shares

Equity shares

Equity shares

Equity shares

Equity shares

Equity shares

Equity shares

Equity shares

Equity shares

Equity shares

0.03

140.98

1854.75

0.84
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Schedules forming part of the consolidated financial statements

Rupees in millions except share data and if otherwise stated

4.sat Asat

31 December 31 December

SCHEDULE -8
2009 2008

Inventories

Stores and spares 140.64 181.49

Raw materials 6683.91 6689.18

Packaging materials 715.55 795.20

Finished goods 6979.84 8788.35

Work-in-progress 3887.05 3188.92

18406.99 19643.14

SCHEDULE-9

Sundry debtors

Considered good except where provided for

Debts outstanding for period exceeding six months

Secured 0.65 0.01

Unsecured

Considered good 2757.28 2889.11

Considered doubtful 575.90 565.52

3333.83 3454.64

Other debts

Secured 1525.24 1237.49

Unsecured considered good 14116.30 9183.47

15641.54 10420.96

18975.37 13875.60

Less Provision for doubtful debts 575.90 565.52

18399.47 13310.08

SCHEDULE 10

Cash and bank balances

Cash in hand 12.49 15.39

Cheques in hand 3.35

Remittances in transit 59.95 373.21

Balances with banks

Current accounts 3319.44 2609.94

Deposit accounts 8954.78 20881.27

Unclaimed dividend account 66.33 76.57

12416.34 23956.38

Include deposit receipts pledged with

Government authorities 0.79 0.75

Banks 1214.75

Schedule-li

Loans and advances

Considered good except where provided for

Secured loans to employees 55.32 49.37

Unsecured loans and advances

Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received

Considered good 4102.58 4318.61

Doubtful 77.42 85.19

Minimum alternate tax MAT credit entitlement 4720.65 1219.00

Advance income tax net of provision for tax of respective tax jurisdiction 186.71 849.26

9142.68 6521.43

Less Provision for doubtful advances 77.42 85.19

9065.26 6436.24
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ilSidered good

Ioubiful

664.26

559.63

12.41

241.38

320.22

25.84

1823.74
25.84

_h7970

14393.92
49.78

36.37

1.75

66.33

16669.65

1293.03

32510.83

2342.51

1501.96

4693.79
63.27

8601.53

Year Ended

31 December

2009

73441.32

73441.32
546.80

505.92

1441.15
182.46

2676.33

76117.65

1106.21
533.22

137.67

858.40

8.17

9.78

282.00

354

As at

31 December

2008

562.75

8.63

1108

375.0

21.17

.770.36

24-17

L755.H

11 .30
26.72

1.10

20.73

/0.

26.76.11i

1.1-621

30.110036

2.1 01.11

232.18

1.6 10.38

15.5

3.082.8

Year Ended

31 December

2008

72.555.2%

72.555.21

870

580
72.60

262.13

1891.73

.119.96

29.38

36.22

2.59 1-6

Schedules forming part of the consolidated financial statements

Rupees in millions except share data and if otherwise stated As at

SCHEDULE -12
31 December

Other current assets
2009

Unsecured considered good except where provided for

Export incentives accrued

Exchange gain accrued on forward contracts

Insurance claims

Interest accrued hut not due

Others

Less Provision for doubtful other current assets

SCHEDULE 13

Current liabilities

Sundry creditors

Book overdraft

Interest accrued but not due on loans

Accepta flues

ripaid dividend

Payables towards unrealised loss on currency options

Other liabilities

Including advance from customers

SCHEDULE -14

Provisions

Employee benefits

Incometax net of advance income tax paid in respective jurisdiction

Premium 1asyahle on redemption of FCCB
Provision for contingency

Also icier to note 12 on schedule 23

SCHEDULE -15

Operating income

Sales

Export incentives

Rovalt technical knowhow and product development

Income from settlement agreements

Other service income

SCHEDULE -16

Other income

Interest

Profit on sale of long term investments

Also refer to note on schedule 23

Profit on sale of assets of loss Rs 26.54-
previous year Rs 25.88

Profit on sale of current investments

IJnelairned balances excess provisions written back

Also refer to note on schedule 23

Reversal of deferred employees compensation

1ividend

NI iseellaneous

.053.26

910.39

2.83

177.38
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Schedules forming part of the consolidated financial statements

Rupees in millions except share data and if otherwise stated

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2009 2008
SCHEDULE -17

Materials consumed

Raw materials consumed 19968.77 20254.10

Stores and spares consumed 1380.63 1285.78

Packaging materials consumed 2613.08 3.23692

Finished goods purchased 7020.12 888773

Decrease/increase in work-in-progress and finished goods

Opening stock

Work-in-progress 3188.92 2715.57

Finished goods 8788.35 7485.66

11977.27 10231.23

Less

Closing stock

Work-in-progress 3887.05 3188.92

Finished goods 6979.84 8788.35

10866.89 11977.27

Decrease increase net 1110.38 1746.04

Increase in excise duty 13.00 87.00

32079.98 31831.49

Includes site variation cost amounting to Rs 423

previous year Rs nil

SCHEDULE -18

Personnel expenses

Salarieswages and bonus 12197.98 10810.78

Contribution to provident and other funds 1108.23 1088.39

Workmen and staff welfare 868.52 723.55

Amortisation of deferred employees compensation 3.75

14174.73 12626.47

SCHEDULE -19

Operating and other expenses

Freight clearing and forwarding 1868.36 2441.19

Advertising and sales promotion 4238.28 3672.43

Travel and conveyance 1268.54 1370.89

Legal and professional 3115.02 2602.15

Market research 661.39 903.71

Commission 1346.12 1330.19

Communication 433.20 405.37

Insurance 471.41 428.90

Rent refer to note of schedule 23 840.25 817.51

Rates and taxes 450.42 327.84

Regulatory filing fee 571.47 699.10

Printing and stationery 163.39 157.20

Analytical charges 152.45 168.43

Processing charges 1125.32 1412.23

Excise duty 24.74 18.69

Power and fuel 1657.75 1.58645

Running and maintenance of vehicles 397.69 395.58
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Schedules forming part of the consolidated financial statements

Rupees in millions except share data and if otherwise stated

Repairs and maintenance

Buildings

Plant and machinery

he is

Cash ilistiii.iiits

Conferences and meetings

liiiieal trials

Recruitment and training

Fixed assets written off

Provisions/write off fhr doubtful debts advances and other current assets

iivcstments writ ten off

ASS on valuation of current investments

Provision fbr dirnunution in the value of longterm investment

Rovalt\

is cell an eous

Year ended

31 December

2009

67.15

253.52

449.86

273.22

172.18

454.89

210.31

7.97

353.44

127.78

22.17

1413.00

22591.29

Year ended

31 December

2008

9933

71.73

37 .1

327 33

20 .57

273.6

9312

1172

23.3 13.63

SCHEDULE -20

Tax charge benefit

urrent incometax

Minimiii-n alternate tax credit entitlement

lc%rred tax charge credit

Fringe hcneht tax

ax rh ci years

Net of credit adjusted of Rs 6.50 previous year
Rs 27.01

SCHEDULE -21

Earnings per share

Net profit loss attributable to equity shareholders

Profit loss afier tax 2964.92

ess

Exchange gain on Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds

Number of weighted average equity shares

Basic

Effect if dilutive equity shares on account of

Employees stock options outstanding

-- Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds

Diluted

Nominal value of equity share Rs
Earning loss per share Rs
Basic

Diluted

Following are the potential ecuity shares considered to he anti

dilutive in nature hence these have not been adjusted to arrive at the

dilutive earnings per share

Employees stock options outstanding

hrcign Iurrency Convertible Bonds

1l ui ty share warrants

904.20
2060.72

420380856

819480

27119165

5.00

7.05

4.60

23834333

182.3 f632

382816.32

5.01

21.83

21.33

300 186

27.119.165

23.83 1.333

4558.31

3501.65

5888.49

715.13

0112

35.50 IJ.7

10.22

6990.87

.27

5650.8

12.15
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Schedules forming part of the consolidated financial statements

SCHEDULE -22

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of accounting

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared and presented under the historical cost convention on the

accrual basis of accounting and comply with the Accounting Standards as specified in the Companies Accounting

Standards Rules 2006 other pronouncements of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ICAT and the

relevant provisions of the Companies Act 1956 and guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India

to the extent applicable

Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of Ranbaxy Laboratories Limited Parent
Company its subsidiaries joint ventures and associates collectively known as the Group
Name of subsidiaries/joint venture/associates Country of Effective group

incorporation shareholding

Subsidiaries

Ranbaxy Australia Thy Ltd Australia 100.00

Ranhaxy Belgium NV Belgium 100.00

Ranbaxy Farmaceutica Ltda Brazil 100.00

Ranhaxy Do Brazil Ltda Brazil 100.00

Ranbaxy Pharmaceuticals Canada Inc Canada 100.00

Ranbaxy Egypt L.L.C Egypt 100.00

Rexcel Egypt L.L.C Egypt 100.00

Ranbaxy Pharmacie Generiques SAS France 100.00

Office Pharmaceutique Industriel Et Hospitalier

SARL OPIH SARL France 100.00

Basics GmhH Germany 100.00

Lapharma GmbH Germany 100.00

Ranbaxy Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong 100.00

Ranbaxy Hungary Kft upto 22 May 2009 Hungary 100.00

Ranbaxy Drugs and Chemicals Company India 100.00

Ranbaxy Drugs Limited India 100.00

Rexcel Pharmaceuticals Limited India 100.00

Solus Pharmaceuticals Limited India 100.00

Solrex Pharmaceuticals Company India 100.00

Vidyut Investments Limited India 100.00

Ranbaxy SEZ Limited India 100.00

Gufic Pharma Limited India 98.00

Ranbaxy Life Sciences Research Limited India 80.07

Ranbaxy Ireland Limited Ireland 100.00

Ranbaxy Italia S.p.A Italy 100.00

Ranbaxy Japan KK from November 2009 Japan 100.00

Ranbaxy Malaysia Sdn Bhd
Malaysia 68.09

Ranbaxy Mexico S.A.de C.V Mexico 100.00

Ranhaxy Mexico Servicios S.A.de C.V

from 13 November 2009 Mexico 100.00

Ranbaxy Nigeria Limited Nigeria 85.31

Ranbaxy PRP Peru SAC Peru 100.00

Ranbaxy Poland S.P Zoo Poland 100.00

113



Raubaxy Laboratories Limited

Schedules forming part of the consolidated financial statements

SCHEDULE -22

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Name of subsidiaries/joint venture/associates Country of Effective group

incorporation shareholding

Ranhaxy Portugal Corn Desenvolv Dc Prod

Farmaceuticos Unipessoal Lda Portugal 00.00

Ranbaxy Guangzhou China Limited

upto 29 lecernhcr 2009 Republic of hina 83.00

Terapia S.A Rornania 96.70

lerapia Distributie S.R.L Rornariia 96.70

ZAO Ranhaxv Russia 00.00

Ranhaxy S.A Proprietary Limited South Africa 100.00

BeTabs Pharmaceuticals Proprietary Ltd South Africa 00.00

BeTabs Investments Proprietarv Ttd South Africa 10.00

Sonke Pharmaceuticals Ptv Ltd South Africa i8.lO

Laboratorios Ranbaxy S.L Spain 100.00

Ranhaxv Pharma AB Sweden 100.00

Ranbaxy Netherlands BV The Netherlands 100.00

Ranhaxy NANV Netherlands 00.00

Ranbaxy nichem Company Ltd Thailand 88.50

Ranbaxv Ltd nited Kingdom 100.00

Ranhaxv Holdings TK Ltd nited Kingdom 00.00

Ranbaxv Europe Ltd United Kingdom 00.00

Ranbaxy Inc United States of America 00.00

Ranhaxy Pharmaceuticals Inc 11 nited states of America 100.00

Ranbaxy SA Inc United States of America 00.00

Ohm Laboratories Inc nited States of America 100.00

Ranbaxy Laboratories Inc United States of America 100.00

Ranbaxy Signature LI nitecI States of America 07.50

Ranbaxy Vietnam Company Ltd

upto October 2109 Vietnam

join en/eli

Nihon Phaririaceutical Industry Co Ltd

upto December 2009 Japan

.ls.i ucla/es

Lenotcch Laboratories Limited India 16.99

Shimal Research Laboratories Limited India 21.91

ptrtiiership lirm in which two subsidiaries of the Parent ompanv are partners

75o till 12 June 2009

lhe consolidated linancial statements have been combined on linebyline basis by adding the book values of like

items of assets liabilities income and CXCflSS after eliminating intragroup balances/transactions and unrealised

prolits in full amounts shown in respect of reserves comprise
the amount of the relevant reserves as per

the

Balance Sheet of the Parent Company and its share in the jostacqmusition increase/decrease in tIle reserves of the

consolidated entities

Proportionate share of interest in joint venture has been accounted for by the proportionate consolidation method in

accordance with Accounting Standard 27 Financial ieportigg oJ Inteiest in joint Ientures
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Schedules forming part of the consolidated financial statements

SCHEDULE -22

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

An investment in an associate has been accounted for by the equity method of consolidation from the date on which it

falls within the definition of associates in accordance with Accounting Standard-23 AccountingJrimestrnents in Associates

in Consolidated Financial Statements

The excess/deficit of cost to the Parent Company of its investment over its portion of net worth in the consolidated

entities at the respective dates on which investment in such entities was made is recognised in the consolidated financial

statements as goodwill/capital reserve The Parent Companys portion of net worth in such entities is determined on

the basis of book values of assets and liabilities as per the financial statements of the entities as on the date of investment

and if not available the financial statements for the immediately preceding period adjusted for the effects of significant

changes

Entities acquired/ sold during the year have been consolidated from/ upto the respective date of their acquisition/

disposal

The consolidated financial statements are presented to the extent possible in the same format as that adopted by the

Parent Company for its separate financial statements

Use of estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles

GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and

liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of

revenues and
expenses

for the
year Examples of such estimates include provisions of future obligation under employee

retirement benefit plans the useful lives of fixed assets and intangible assets etc Actual results could differ from these

estimates Any revision to accounting estimates is recognized prospectively
in the current and future periods

Fixed assets and depreciation

Fixed assets are stated at the cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses

Cost comprises the purchase price and any attributable costs of bringing the assets to their working condition for

intended use

Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of fixed assets which necessarily take substantial

period of time to be ready for their intended use are capitalised

Depreciation on fixed assets except leasehold improvements is provided using the straight-line method and at the

rates reflective of estimate useful lives of fixed assets unless minimum rates subscribed by respective local laws Leasehold

improvements are depreciated over their estimated useful life or the remaining period of lease from the date of

capitalisation whichever is shorter

The managements estimate of the useful lives for various categories of fixed assets are given below

Years

Building 29 61

Plant and machinery 33

Furniture and fixtures 17

\hicles 4- 10

Depreciation is calculated on pro-rata basis from the date of installation till the date the assets are sold or disposed

Assets costing individually Rs 5000 or less are depreciated fully in the year of purchase

Intangible assets and amortisation

Intangible assets comprise goodwill patents trademarks designs and licenses software non-compete fee and product

development rights and are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses if any
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Schedules forming part of the consolidated financial statements

SCHEDULE -22

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These are amortised over their estimated useful lives on straight-line basis commencing from the date the asset is

available to the entities for its use The management estimates the useful lives for the various intangible assets as

follows

Years

Patents trademarks designs and licenses 10

Software

Non-compete fee Term of the respective agreements ranging

from to \ears

Product development

Goodwill reflects the excess of cost of acc1uisition over the book value of net assets acquired on the date of the

acquisition Goodwill is tested for impairment on an annual basis

Impairment of assets

The carrying values of assets other than goodwill are reviewed at each reporting date to determine if there is indication

of any impairment Goodwill is tested for impairment at least once in year if
any

indication exists the assets recoverable

amount is estimated For assets that are not yet available for use the recoverable amount is estimated at each reporting

date An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash
generating unit exceeds its

recoverable amount and is recognised in the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account An impairment loss is reversed if

there has been change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount An impairment loss is reversed

only to the extent that the assets carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined

net of depreciation or amortisation if no impairment loss had been recognised

Revenue recognition

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised on transfer of significant risks and rewards of ownership to the customer

Revenue includes excise duty and is shown net of sales tax value added tax and applicable discounts and allowances

Allowances for sales returns are estimated and provided for in the year of sales

Service income is recognised as per the terms of contracts with customers when the related services are rendered or

the agreed milestones are achieved

Income from royalty technical know-how arrangements exclusivity and patents settlement licensing arrangements is

reccgnised on accrual basis in accordance with the terms of the relevant agreement

Export entitlements are recognised as income when the right to receive credit as per the terms of the scheme is

established in
respect of the exports made and where there is no significant uncertainty regarding the ultimate collection

of the relevant export proceeds

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive the income is established Income from interest on deposits

loans and interest bearing securities is recognised on the time proportionate method

In the United States of America large customers are major wholesalers who resell products to third party customers

like managed care organisations drug store chains and pharmacies significant part of gross revenues from such

wholesalers are subject to various forms of rebates and allowances referred to as Chargebacks which are recorded

as reductions from the gross revenues The computation of the estimate kr expected chargebacks is complex and

involves significantjudgrnent based on historical experience and estimated wholesaler inventory levels as well as expected

sell-through levels by the wholesalers to indirect customers The piimary factors considered in developing and evaluating

provision for chargbacks include the average historical chargehack credits amid an estimate of the inventory held by

such wholesalers based on internal analysis of wholesalers historical purchases and contract sales
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SCHEDULE -22

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Investments

Investments that are readily realisable and intended to be held for not more than year are classified as current

investments All other investments are classified as long-term investments

Current investments are carried at the lower of cost and fair value determined on an individual investment basis

Long-term investments are carried at cost less any other-than--temporary diminution in value determined separately

in respect of each category of investment

Inventories

Raw material packaging material and stores and spare parts are carried at cost Cost includes purchase price other

than those subsequently recoverable by the enterprise from the concerned revenue authorities freight inwards and

other expenditure incurred in bringing such inventories to their present location and condition In determining the

cost weighted average cost method is used The carrying cost of raw materials packaging materials and stores and

spare parts are appropriately written down when there is decline in
replacement cost of such materials and finished

products in which they will be incorporated are expected to sold below cost

Work in
progress

manufactured finished goods and traded goods are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable

value The comparison of cost and net realisable value is made on an item by item basis Cost of work in
progress and

manufactured finished goods is determined on weighted average
basis and comprises direct material cost of conversion

and other costs incurred in bringing these inventories to their present location and condition Cost of traded goods is

determined on weighted average basis

Excise duty liability is included in the valuation of inventory of finished goods

Research and development costs

Revenue expenditure on research and development is expensed out under the respective heads of account in the
year

in which it is incurred

Expenditure on development activities whereby research findings are applied to plan or design for the production of

new or substantially improved products and processes is capitalised if the cost can be reliably measured the product

or process is technically and commercially feasible and the entity has sufficient resources to complete the development

and to use and sell the asset The expenditure capitalised includes the cost of materials direct labour and an appropriate

proportion of overheads that are directly attributable to preparing the asset for its intended use Other development

expenditure is recognised in the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account as an expense as incurred

Capitalised development expenditure is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses Fixed

assets used for research and development are depreciated in accordance with the Groups policy

Materials identified for use in research and development process are carried as inventories and charged to Consolidated

Profit and Loss Account on issuance of such materials for research and development activities

Employee stock option based compensation

The Company calculates the compensation cost based on the intrinsic value method wherein the excess of value of

underlying equity shares as of the date of the grant of options over the exercise price of the options given to employees

under the employee stock option schemes of the Compan is recognised on straight line basis and amortised over the

vesting period on straight line basis

Foreign currency transactions

The reporting currency
of the Group is the Indian Rupee However the local currencies of non-integral overseas

subsidiaries and joint venture are different from the reporting currency of the Group
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

iransarlwlo1nfarr4pv currency artdJi2m2ard conbacts

Transactions in foreign currency are recorded by the reporting entities at the exchange rate prevailing at the date of the

transaction Exchange differences arising on foreign currency transactions settled during the year are recognised in the

Consolidated Profit and Loss Account

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies as at the Balance Sheet date not covered by forward

exchange contracts are translated at year
end rates The resultant exchange differences are recognised iii the Consolidated

Profit anti Loss Account Nonmonetary assets are recorded at the rates prevailing on the date of the transaction

Forward contracts are entered into to hedge the foreign currency risk of the underlying outstanding at the Balance

Sheet date The premium or discount on such contracts is amortized as income or expense over the life of the contract

Any profit or loss arising on the cancellation or renewal of forward contracts is recognised as income or expense for the

period The exchange difference on such forward exchange contract is calculated as the difference between the

foreign currency amount of the contract translated at the exchange rate at the Balance Sheet or the settlement date

where the transaction is settled during the reporting period and the same foreign currency amount translated at the

later of the date of inception of the forward exchange contract and the last Balance Sheet Such exchange differences

are recognised in the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account in the reporting period in which the exchange rates

change

bUff ml and zwnintegmLrnkuns

The consolidated financial statements of the foreign integral subsidiaries and npresentative offices collectively referred

to as the foreign integral operations are translated into Indian Rupees as follows

Profit and Loss items except opening and closing inventories and depreciation are translated at the respective

monthly average rates Opening and closing inventories are translated at the rates prevalent at the commencement

and close respectively of the accounting period Depreciation is translated at the rates used lhr the translation of

the values of the assets on which tiepreciation is calculated

Non-monetary Balance Sheet items other than inventories are translated using the exchange rate at the date of

transaction i.e the date when they were acquired

Monetary Balance Sheet items and inventory are translated using year-end rates

The net exchange difference resulting from the translation of items in the financial statements of Foreign integral

operations is recognised as income or expense for the year

Contingent liabilities are translated at the closing rate

The financial statements of the foreign non integral subsidiaries and joint venture collectively referred to as the

foreign non integral operations are translated into Indian Rupees as follows

All assets and liabilities both monetary and non-monetary excluding share capital opening ieseives and surplus

are translated using the year-end rates

Share capital and opening reserves and surplus are carried at historical cost

Profit and Loss items are translated at the respective monthly average rates

The resulting net exchange difference is credited or debited to the foreign currency translation reserve

ontingent liabilities are translated at the closing rate

reclassification from foreign integral operations to foreign non-integral operations or vice versa is made consequent

to change in the way operations of entities are financed and operates The translated amounts for non-monetary items

of reclassified entities on the date of such reclassification are treated as the hisiorical cost for those items in the period

of change and subsequent periods Exchange differences which have been deferred in foreign correney translatirn

reserw are not recognised as income or expenses until the disposal of that entity
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Derivative instruments and hedge accounting

The Group uses foreign exchange forward contracts and options to hedge its
exposure to movements in foreign exchange

rates These foreign exchange forward contracts and options are not used for trading or speculation purposes

Forward and options contracts are fair valued at each Balance Sheet and the resultant gain or loss except relating to

effective hedges from these transactions are recognised in the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account The gain or loss

on effective hedges is recorded in the Hedging Reserve reported under Reserves arid Surplus until the transactions are

complete On completion the gain or ioss is transferred to the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account of that period To

designate forward or options contract as an effective hedge the management objectively evaluates and evidences

with appropriate supporting documents at the inception of each contract whether the contract is effective in achieving

offsetting cash flows attributable to the hedged risk In the absence of designation as effective hedge gain or loss is

recognised in the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account

Employee benefits

All employee benefits payable available within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term

employee benefits Benefits such as salaries wages and bonus etc are recognised in the Consolidated Profit and Loss

Account in the period in which the employee renders the related service

Dftinedsemftpthns

Gratuity

Indian entities of the Group have an obligation towards gratuity defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible

employees The plan provides for lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement death while in employment

or on termination of employment of an amount based on the respective employees salary and the tenure of employment

Vesting occurs upon completion of five years of service These entities make annual contributions to gratuity fund

established as trust

Prozident fund

In respect of employees Indian entities of the Group makes specified monthly contribution towards the employees

provident fund to the provident fund trust administered by the Parent Company The minimum interest payable by the

provident fund trust to the beneficiaries
every year is notified by the Government These Indian entities have an

obligation to make good the shortfall if any between the return on receptive investments of the trust and the notified

interest rate

Pension

The Indian entities have an obligation towards pension defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible employees

The plan provides for lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement death while in employment or on

termination of employment of an amount based on the respective employees salary and the tenure of employment

Vesting occurs upon completion of 20 years of service

Retirement pension payment plan

Ranbaxy Pharmacie Generiques SAS and one its subsidiary company in France also has retirement pension payments

plan as per collective agreement The payment is made at the time of retirement

iluation

The liability in respect of defined benefit plans other than provident fund schemes is accrued in the books of account

on the basis of actuarial valuation carried out by an independent actuary primarily using the Projected Unit Credit

Method which recognizes each
year

of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and

measure each unit separately to build up the final obligation The obligation is measured at the present
value of

estimated future cash flows The discount rates used for determining the present value of obligation under defined
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benefit plans is based on the market yields on Government securities as at the Balance Sheet date havmg maturity

periods approximating to the terms of related obligations Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in the

Consolidated Profit and Loss Account Gains or losses on the curtailment or settlement of any defined benefit plan are

recognised when the curtailment or settlement occurs

The contributions macfe to provident fund trust are charged to Consolidated Profit and Loss Account as and when they

become payable In addition the Indian entities recognizes liability for shortfall in the plan assets vis-à-vis the fund

obligation if any The Guidance on implementing AS 15 Employee Benefits revised 2005 issued Accounting

Standard Board ASB states that benefits involving employerestablished provident funds which require interest shortfalls

to he recompensed are to he considered as defined benefit plans Pending the issuance of the guidance note from the

Actuarial Society of India actuary of these entities have expressed an inability to reliably measure providnt fund

liabilities Accordingly the Group is unable to exhibit the related information

Under certain retirement benefits plans of entities in the Group there are defined contribution plans such as

superannuation social security schemes etc These entities pays fixed contributions and have no obligation to pay

further amounts Such fixed contributions are recognised in the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account on accrual

basis

Otherlungierm

Conipen sated absences

In respect of certain entities of the Group as per that entitys policy eligible leaves can be accumulated the employees

and carried forward to future periods to either be utilised during the service or encashed Encashment can be made

during service on early retirement on withdrawal of scheme at resignation and upon death of the employee

value of benefits is determined based on the seniority and the employees salary

laiuatwn

These entities account for the liability for compensated absences payable in future and long service auiirds based on an

independent actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method as at the year end Actuarial gains and losses

are recognised immediately in the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account Gains or losses on the curtailment or settlement

of any defined benefit plan are recognized when the curtailment or settlement occurs

Long sicice anard

As per the Parent Companys policy employees of the Parent Company are eligible for an awaid tltcr completion of

specified number of
years

of service with the Parent Company

Taxes on income

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax Income tax expense in Consolidated Profit and Loss Account

is the aggregate of the amounts of tax expense appearing in the separate financial statements of the Parent ompanv
its subsidiaries and joint ventures

The current charge for income taxes is calculated in accordance with the relevant tax regulations applicable to each

entity using tax rates enacted or substantially enacted at the Balance Sheet

Deferred tax charge or credit reflects the tax effects of timing differences between accounting income and taxable

income for the period of each entity in the Group The deferred tax charge or credit and the corresponding de liired

tax liabilities or assets are recognised using the tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted b\ the Bdaiice

Sheet date Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent there is reasonable certainty that the assets can be

realised in future however where there is unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward of losses deferred tax assets are

recognised only if there is virtual certainty of realisation of such assets Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each

Balance Sheet date and are written-down or written-up to reflect the amount that is reasonably virtually certain as

the case may he to be realised The break-up of the major components of the deferred tax assets and liabilities as at
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Balance Sheet date has been arrived at after setting off deferred tax assets and liabilities where the entity has legally

enforceable right to set-off assets against liabilities and where such assets and liabilities relate to taxes on income levied

by the same governing taxation laws

Provision for Fringe Benefit Tax for Indian entities for the year has been determined in accordance with the provisions

of section 11 5WC of the Income-tax Act 1961

Minimum alternate tax payable under the provisions of the Income-tax Act 1961 is recognised as an assets in the year

in which credit become eligible and is set off to the extent allowed in the
year

in which the Indian entity becomes liable

to pay income tax at the enacted tax rates

Provisions contingent liabilities and contingent assets

provision is created when there is
present obligation as result of past event that probably requires an outflow of

resources and reliable estimate can he made of the amount of the obligation disclosure for contingent liability is

made when there is possible obligation or present obligation that may but probably will not require an outflow of

resources When there is possible obligation or present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of

resources is remote no provision or disclosure is made

The Group does not recognise assets which are of contingent nature until there is virtual certainty of realisability of

such assets However if it has become virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise asset and related

income is recognised in the financial statements of the period in which the change occurs

Leases

Qpeuithngieass

Lease arrangements where the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset substantially vest with the lessor

are recognised as an operating lease Lease payments under operating lease are recognised as an expense in the

Consolidated Profit and Loss Account on straight-line basis over the lease period

Emuince 1eases

Assets taken on finance lease are capitalised at an amount equal to the fair value of the leased assets or the present

value of minimum lease payments at the inception of the lease whichever is lower Such leased assets are depreciated

over the lease tenure or the useful life whichever is shorter The lease payment is apportioned between the finance

charges and reduction of outstanding liability The finance charge is allocated to the periods over the lease tenure to

prodrice constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining liability

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the
year

attributable to equity shareholders

by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year The weighted average number of equity

shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for events of bonus issue and share split For the purpose of calculating

diluted earnings per share the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted

average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares

The dilutive potential ec1uity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period unless they have been

issued at later date
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Background

Ranbax aboratores Limited the Parent Company together with its subsidiaries joint vciilutc and associates

operates as an integrated international pharmaceuticals organisation with businesses enc niaiss1ng the entire

value chain in the marketing production and distribution of pharmaceuticals products

The Group presently has n-maufacturing facilities in eight countries namely India the Ilnited States of I\merica

Brazil Ireland Malaysia Nigeria Rotnania and South Africa The Groups major markets include the nited

States of Amercia India Europe Russia/CIS and South Africa The research and development activities ol the

Group are principally carried out at its facilities in Gurgaon near New Delhi India

lhe Parent Companys shares are listed for trading on the National Stock Exchange and the Bombay Stock

Exchange in India and its Global Depository Share representing equity shares of the Parent ompanv are listed

on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange and Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds FC Bs are listed on the Singapore

Stock Exchange

Food And Drug Administration FDA Investigation

On 16 September 2008 the Parent Company received warning letters and an Import Alert from the ITS

FDA covering 30 generic drugs being manufactured at its Paonta Sahib and Dewas manufacturing facilities

in India The issue raised in the warning letters relate to Current Good Manufact urimig Practice being

followed at the said plants and does not in any way raises questions on products quality sahtv or eulectiveness

In 2008 consequent to Import Alert the Group was not able to sell the products covered under Import

Alert and accordingly it had recorded provision of Rs 2631.1 towards inventory in that veam expected

sales return and related exports benefits

On 25 February 2009 the Parent Company received letter from the US FDA indicating that the Agency

had invoked its Application Integrity Policy AlP against the Paonta Sahib facility the iiicmlity Ihe

management of the Iarent Company believes that there was no falsification of data generated at he

facility and also believes that there is no indication of pattern and practice of submitting untrue statements

of niaterial fact and there was no other improper conduct Accordingly the Group based on opinion from

its legal counsel believe that there is no incremental present obligation existing at the Balance Sheet date on

account of these notices

lhe Group continues to fully cooperate with the concerned authorities kr their final clearance peiidimig

which there would he delays for new product approvals and sale of existing products in th nited States of

America USA
During the current

year
the Group has performed reassessment of carrying amount of related provision

created in 2008 and reversed pmovision of Rs 937.81 which is included in the unclaimed balanees/ excess

plo\lsions written back and materials consumed which in the view of the Group is no longer reqnned

In the year 2008 the Department of Justice DOJ USA has filed certain charges against the Parent Company

citing possible issues with the data submitted by the Parent Company in support
of product 61mg The

continuous to work diligently with the concerned authorities towards resolution of the issue

Joint venture sale of subsidiary

The Group has 5050 joint venture with Nihon Pharmaceuticals Industry Co Ltd Japan.The kllowing

are the Groups share of assets liabilities income and results of the joint venture which are included in the

Consolidated Balance Sheet and Consolidated Profit and Loss Account respectively

As at 31 December
Particulars 2009 2008

Balance sheet

Reserve and surplus 8.38

Loan fund 18.12

Fixed assets net 230

nvestrnents

Current assets net

Deferred tax assets net
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For the year ended

31 December

2009 2008

Profit and Loss

Income 829.92 684.74

Expenditure 670.84 577.65

Interest 1.98 0.41

Depreciation 32.70 16.55

Tax expense 49.29 31.62

Profit after tax 75.11 58.51

Iii
The Group disposed off its entire holding in Nihon Pharmaceuticals Industry Co. Ltd for an agreed

consideration of Rs 847.03 and recognized loss on disposal of Joint venture amountiiig to Rs 123.65 which

is included in Profit on sale of long term investments The transaction was effective from December 2009

The Group disposed off its entire holding in Ranbaxy Guangzhou China Limited fhr an agreed consideration

of Rs 646.30 and recognised gain on disposal of subsidiary amounting to Rs 536.31 which is included in

Profit on sale of long term investments The transaction was effective from 29 December 2009

Investments in subsidiaries

During tIle current year the Group exercised the available call option and acquired entire shareholding of minority

shareholders 25 in Be-Tabs Pharmaceuticals Proprietory Limited and Be-Tabs Investments Proprietory

Limited in South Africa for an agreed consideration of Rs 739.54 and recognized goodwill of Rs 541.26

representing excess of consideration over carrying amount of minority on the date of purchase Consequently

Be-Tabs Pharmaceuticals Proprietory Limited and Be-Tabs Investments Proprietory Limited has become

l00 subsidiary of the Group with effect from l2June 2009

On 28 October 2008 Daiichi Sankyo Co Ltd..Japan Daiichi Sankyo acquired majority stake in the Company
The Company issued the following shares/ warrants to Daiichi Sankyo

16.258.063 equity shares of Rs each allotted as fully paid up on preferential basis

23831.333 warrants issued on 20 October 2008 Each warrant is convertable into one equity share of

Rs each at premium of Rs 732 per share at any time between six months to eighteen months from the

date of allotment of warrants Rs 73.70 per warrant heing of the exercise price reeeived

Share-based compensation

The Parent Companys Employee Stock Option Schemes ESOSs provide for the grant of stock options to

eligible management employees and Directors of the Parent Company and its subsidiaries The ESOSs are

administered by the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors of the parent Company Committee
Options are granted on the basis of performance and the grade of the employee Presently there are three

ESOSs ESOS ESOS II and ESOS 2005 Options are granted at the discretion of the committee to

select employees depending upon certain criterion

the ESOSs limits the maximum grant of options to an employee at 25000 for ESOS and 10000 each for

ESOS II and ESOS 2005 in any given year ESOS and II provide that the grant price of options is to he

determined at the average of the daily closing price of the Companys equity shares on the NSE during period

of 26 weeks preceding the date of the grant ESOS 2005 provides that the grant price of options will he the latest

available closing price on the stock exchange on which the shares of the Parent Company are listed prior to the

late of the meeting of the Committee in which the options are granted If the shares are listed on more than one

stock exchange then the stock exchange where there is highest trading volume on the said date shall he considered
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The options vesis evenly over period of five
years Irorn the date grant Options lapse if th ale not exercised

prior to the expiry date which is ten ears from the date of the grant

The Shareholders Committee of the Parent 3nifali\ from time to time have approved iawsilce of options

under the Employees Stock Options Schemes as per details given below

Date of approval
No of options

29 June 2002 2.500.000

25 june 2003 1.000.000

30 June 2005 1000.000

The stock options outstanding as on 30 june 2005 are proportionately adjusted in view Jo subdivision if

equity shares of the Parent Company from the face value of Rs eah into cqLuty shares if Rs each

Options granted upto October 2002 are entitled for additional bonus shares in the ratio oI 15

The movement of the options post split for the year ended 31 December 2009 is given_below

Weighted-

Weighted- average

Range of average remaining

Stock options exercise prices exercise prices contractual life

numbers Rs Rs years

Outstanding beginning of the year 7272849 219.00-561.00 439.59 6.73

Granted during the year 1472725 216.00-216.00 216.00 9.05

Forfeited during the year 530760 216.00-538.50 310.84 --

Allotted during the year 36825 216.00-372.50 312.03 --

Lapsed during the year 764973 283.50-538.50 471.97 --

Outstanding end of the vear 7413016 216.00-561.00 401.68 6.30

Exercisable at the end of the vear 3906091 216.00-561.00 455.98 4.88

Includes options exercised pendig allotment as at 31 December 2009

The movement of the options post split for the year ended 31 December 2008 is given below

\Veiuliid

\\ciylil ii I- .i\

RaLae if aviree

Stock options Xiisoe prices exircise 110

numbers Rs cc

Outstanding beginning of the year 71 68936 283.30538.50 6.3 1.37

Granted luring the year .771.825 21 9.0056 .00 373.03

Forfeited durin the \elr 156.91 283.50338.31 13651

Exercised during the veal 880.603 283.30538.3 350.65

Lapsed during the year 333A 17 283.30538.30 173.1

Outstanding end of the year 7272.819 219.0036 1.00 l3.59 6.73

Exercisable at the end of the year 150209 283.30338.31 137.3 5.50
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Opening balance

Add Addition during the
year

Salaries wages and bonus

Contributions to provident and other funds

Workmen and staff welfare

Raw materials

not later than one year

later than one year but not later than five years

later than five
years

Total

Minimum lease

payments

As at 31 December

2009 2008

84.45 84.49

40.49

26.62

1.18

4.54

4.40

Present value of minimum

lease payments

As at 31 December

2009 2008

55.89 50.74

As at 31 December

2009 2008

248.28 217.88

537.65 639.42

120.99 169.33

906.92 1026.63

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Capital work-in progress including capital advances includes

Capital advances to vendors amounting to Rs 235.30 previous year Rs 109.50

Project related expenses directly allocable amounting to Rs 299.28 previous year Rs 356.86 as under

As at 31 December

Particulars 2009 2008

356.86 208.68

Power and fuel

Insurance

Others

Less Capitalised during the year

Balance as at year end

63.94

6.05

2.33

26.66

28.45

2.39

31.14

369.64

12.78

356.86

0.14

19.78

454.01

154.73

299.28

Interest on fixed loans and debentures

Interest includes interest paid on fixed period loans and debentures amounting to R.s 288.96 previous year Rs 1212.80

Leases

Finance lease

The Group has acquired assets under finance lease comprising mainly of building plant and machinery

and vehicles The future minimum lease rentals and the present value of future minimum lease payments

as at 31 December 2009 and 31 December 2008 are as under

not later than one year

ii later than one year but

not later than five years 350.45 348.44 287.97 262.31

ii later than five years
36.03 131.61 35.16 123.83

Total 470.93 564.54 379.02 436.88

Operating lease

The Group has leased facilities under cancellable and non-cancellable operating leases arrangements with

lease term ranging from to 17 years which are subject to renewal at mutual consent thereafter The cancellable

arrangements can be terminated by either party after giving due notice The lease rent expense recognised

during the year amounts to Rs 840.25 previous year Rs 817.51 The future minimum lease payments in

respect of non-cancellable operating leases as at 31 December 2009 and 31 December 2008 are

ii

iiil
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10 Foreign exchange gain /loss other than on loans

As at 31 December

2008

Foreign exchange loss 1282.65 73.61

Fair valuation gain/loss on derivatives 3213.88 10.99042

1931.23 11064.03

11 Directors remuneration For the year ended

covered by section 198 of the Companies Act 1956 31 December

2008

Salaries and allowances 186.44 229.08

Contribution to provident and other funds 20.67 14J0

1irectors fee 1.99 2.16

Commission 52.00

Perc1uisites 4.84 .31

265.94 277.28

Does not include the following

Liabilities in respect of gratuity pension compensated absences determined for one of the director as the

same is determined on an actuarial basis for company as whole

Amortisation of deferred employee compensation on grant of stock options

Compensation cost Rs 481.38 for loss of office to director previous year Rs nil

Pension paid/ payable to non-executive directors for the services rendered in earlier years as whole time

director/ employees Rs nil previous year Rs 2.29

12 Employee benefits

The following tables set out the disclosures relating to pension gratuity and retirement pension payment plan as

required by Accounting Standard 15 Employee Benefits

Pension Retirement Gratuity

pension

payment plan

Change in the present value of obligation

Present value of obligation as at January 2009 1571.19 66.05 486.74

1205.49 49.5 383.00

Add Interest cost 117.84 2.76 40.37

99.45 2.49 31.07

Add Current service cost 93.20 5.11 36.91

106.91 4.33 39.57

Less Benefits paid 54.56 2.42 130.61

32.59 -18.80

Add Actuarial gain/loss on obligations 28.83 0.21 96.78

191.92 0.32 81.90

Translation adjustments 1.30
9.-JO

Present value of obligation as at 31 December 2009 1756.50 70.41 530.19

1571.19 66.05 186.71
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Change in the fair value of plan assets Gratuity

Fair value of plan assets as of January 2009 439.19

354.52

Add Actual return on plan assets 36.28

29.62

Add Contributions 98.99

103.85

Less Benefits paid 130.15

18.80

Fair value of plan assets as of 31 December 2009 444.31

139.79

Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit Gratuity

obligation and the fair value of assets

Present value of funded obligation as of 31 December 2009 530.19

186.71

Less Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the period funded status 444.31

439 19

Present value of unfunded obligation as of 31 December 2009 85.88

47.55

Unfunded net liability recognised in the Consolidated Balance Sheet 85.88

47.55

Expense recognised in the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account

Pension Retirement Gratuity

pension

payment plan

Current service cost 93.20 5.11 36.91

106.92 1.33 39.57

Add Interest cost 117.84 2.76 40.37

99.45 2.49 31.07

Add Expected return on plan assets 38.95

30.31

Less Settlement cost/ credit 2.51 2.42 2.14

15.34 2.79

Add Net actuarial gain/loss recognised in the year
28.83 0.21 99.47

191.92 0.32 82.59

Total
expenses recognised in the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account 237.36 5.66 135.66

382.9.5 7.14 720.12

The major categories of plan assets as percentage of total plan assets are as under

Particulars Gratuity

Central Government securities 19%

State Government securities 11

/2

Bonds and securities of public sector Financial Institutions 59%

62%

Deposit with Reserve Bank of India 11%
1100
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The following table sets out the assumptions used in actuarial valuation of compensated

absences pension and gratuity

Particulars Compensated Pension Retirement Gratuity

absences pension

payment

plan

Disouni tale 7.50% 7.50% 4.65/a 7.5001o

88.25o 8.25o I.2i0

Rate of increase ifl compensation levels S%-lO% So/olO% 2%-3% S%-lO/o

5.5o 5.5o 20 0- 7.50

Rate of return of plan assets Nil Nil Nil 8%9/
Nil Alit \il 80o

Expected average remaining working 20.55-26.57 20.58 20.58-26.57

lives ol employees ycars 21 l1-2 7.90 21.20 21.2027.09

Flie liability for compensated absences pension gratuity and retirement pension payment plan as at Dceelnlcr

2009 was Rs 349.24 previous year
Rs 396.90 Rs 1756.50 previous year Rs 1.571 19 Rs 35.88 previoLis

year Rs 17.55 and Rs 70.41 previous year Rs 66.05 respectively

O.o for the first three years and 5% thereafter

Figures in italics are for the year ended 31 December 2008

Other plans

Parent Company and certain Group companies also have defined contribution plaits hich are largely

governed by local statutory laws of the respective countries and over the eligible emph vccs of the spe ic

entity These plans are funded both by the members and the company contributions pniiiarily based on

specified percentage of the employees salary The total contributions to these schcnns during the sear

ended 31 December 2009 is Rs 622.13 previous year Rs 594.35

Further iTSA based subsidiaries participates in savings plan under Section 101k of 11w Internal Rcvcnuc

Code Code covering substantially all eligible employees The plan allows for emph tis to defer
up to

So of their annual earnings within limitations specified under respective law on prctl\ basis tliiough

voluntary contributions to the plan

The plan provides these USA based subsidiaries can make optional contributions in all amount UI In the

maximum allowable by respective law Employees achieve 25 percent vested stat us after one ear of

service and fully vested status after three years of service During the year ended 31 lcccmber 2009 thc

contributions to the plan is Rs 47.13 previous year Rs 39.90
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13 Hedging and derivatives

The Group uses foreign exchange forward contracts and options to hedge its exposure to movements in foreign

exchange rates These foreign exchange forward contracts and options are not used for trading or speculation purposes

The following are the outstanding forward exchange contracts and currency options entered into by the Parent Company

As at 31 December 2009

Category Currency Cross Amount Buy Sell Purpose

currency in millions

Forward contracts USD INR USD 20.00 Sell Hedging

Forward contracts EUR USD USD 1.44 Sell Hedging

Currency options USD INR USD 1038.50 Sell Hedging

Currency Swaps JPY USD JPY 10350.00 Buy Hedging

Interest rate swap JPY LIBOR JPY JPY 1800.00 Hedging

As at 31 December 2008

Category Currency Cross Amount Buy Sell Purpose

currency in millions

Forward contracts USD INR IJSD 218.40 Sell Hedging

Forward contracts EUR USD USD 35.30 Sell Hedging

Forward contracts GBP USD USD 0.17 Sell Hedging

Forward contracts USD BRE USD 5.25 Buy Hedging

Currency options USD INR USD 1403.00 Sell Hedging

Currency Swaps JPY USD JPY 10350.00 Buy Hedging

Interest rate swap JPY LIBOR JPY JPY 1800.00 Hedging

The outstanding forward exchange contracts which are classified as cash flow hedges and effective as at

31 December 2009 are as follows

Currency Cross currency Amount in millions Gain loss net of tax

USD INR USD 20.00 28.73

14 The Groups foreign currency exposure balance denominated in currency other than currency of respective

group entity not hedged is as follows

Asat Asat

31 December 2009 31 December 2008

in original in Rupees in original in Rupees

currency currency

Receivables

JPY 16.26 8.22 23.99 12.86

EURO 11.09 739.33 14.68 997.20

NZD 1.10 37.09 2.10 59.56

-- AUD 0.45 18.79 2.16 74.26

AED 0.65 8.24 5.95 78.72

Others 0.21 12.03

USD-INR currency exposure for receivable balance is hedged fully however USD to above currencies is

unhedged to the extent stated above
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Asat Asat

31 December 2009 31 December 2008

in original in Rupees in original in Rupees

currency currency

Pavables

US1 18.16 844.65 8.79 427.1

EURo 2.40 160.01 US 50.95

jPY 24.22 12.24 39.85 21.37

KES 4.40 2.70

-- DKK 2.23 20.35

Others 3.19 8.75

Bank balances

US 0.62 28.84 0.71 31.50

1711 0.56 10.81 0.35 6.89

CFR 94.04 9.55 19.29 5.2

RUB 5.90 3.83 210 3.7

P1.N 0.03 0.49 10 16.22

-- LAH 0.53 3.04 172 1.18

Others 5.92 5.6

Exposure to other currencies which are not significant has been aggregated or this disclosure

Loans

USD 666.86 31016.74 652.31 31695.26

JPY 1800.00 965 15

EURO 6.67 444.68 10.00 679.29

For derivatives refer note above

15 Commitments contingent liabilities and provisions

As at 31 December

2009 2008

Guarantees issued by subsidiaries 48.07 .236.61

ii Claims against the Group not acknowledged as debts under dispute

a1 DPCO 1703.30 1.501.l

Excise matters 75.42 68.57

Octroi tax matters 171.00 171.00

Sales tax matters 12.76 7.96

Other matters 590.22 182.59

Income tax matter 170.02

hg Service tax matters 3.07

The Parent Company has received demand i7r
l1yirent to the iredit of the Diug Pii es Equalisation

Account under Drugs Price Control Order 1995 which is being contested the
onipanv

in respect

of its various products The Company has dep sited Rs 31 9.59 previous veir Rs.297 .91 under

protest

130



Ranbaxy Laboratories Limited

Schedules forming part of the consolidated financial statements

Rupees in millions except share data and if otherwise stated

SCHEDULE -23

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Company has been contesting case with Municipal Corporation of Mohali MCM under

which MCM is contesting that octroi has to be paid by the Company at 1/o as against 0.5/o being

paid by the Company The amounts represents the differential

These represents cases pending at various forums on account of employee worker related cases

India and overseas State electricity board Punjab Land Preservation Act property disputes etc

The Group believes that the probability of any liability on account of any of the above mentioned cases is

remote The Group is also involved in other lawsuits claims investigations and proceedings including

patent and commercial matters which arise in the ordinary course of business However there are no such

matters pending that the Group expects to be material in relation to its business

iii Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on

capital account and not provided for net of advances 902.94 1311.71

Certain entities of the Group have created provision towards claims made against these entities in relation

to commercial employee related and leased property matters The movement in provision is as follows

As at 31 December

2009 2008

Balance as at the beginning of the year 45.54 30.29

Add Provision made during the year 39.37 11.05

Less Payment made during the year 27.79

Translation adjustments 6.16 4.20

Balance as at the end of the year 63.28 45.54

16 The aggregate amount of revenue expenditure incurred on research and development is shown

in the respective heads of account The break-up of the amount is as under

For the year ended

31 December

2009 2008

Salaries wages and bonus 1352.21 1272.37

Contribution to provident and other funds 93.47 89.41

Workmen and staff welfare 70.21 57.85

Materials and consumables 1696.77 1217.59

Power and fuel 275.38 247.56

Clinical trials 455.01 527.08

Rent 213.12 200.22

Printing and stationery 16.61 26.95

Insurance 38.50 31.52

Communication 57.77 49.78

Legal and professional charges 71.12 47.11

Travel and conveyance 87.34 107.24

Analytical testing and processing charges 64.52 80.83

Repairs and maintenance 186.14 138.92

Recruitment and training 13.83 10.66

Others 183.21 208.81

4875.21 4313.90
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Rupees in millions except share data and if otherwise stated

SCHEDULE -23

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

17 Related party disclosures

Relationship

Holding company also being the ultimate holding company

Daiichi Sankyo Co Ltd Japan from 20 October 208
ii Fellow subsidiary overseas with whom transactions have taken place during the year

or previous year

Daiichi Sankyo Europe GmbH

iii Joint venture overseas

INihori Pharmaceuticals Industry Co Ltd. Japan Investment made by Rani axv Netheiluids

B\2 the Netherlands upto December 2009

iv Associates domestic with whom transactions have taken place during the year or

previous year

Zenotech Laboratories Limited

Shimal Research Laboratories Limited

Key managerial personnel

Mr Malavirider Mohan Singh Chairman CEO and Managing Director upto 21 May 209

Mr Atul Sobti CEO and Managing Director

Mr Ramesh Adige Ipto 19 December 2008

vi Relatives of Key managerial personnel with whom transactions have taken place

during the year or previous year upto 24 May 2009

Mrs Nimmi Singh mother of IVIr Malavinder Mohan Singh

vii Entities over which significant influence is exercised by Mr Malavinder Mohan Singh

with whom transactions have taken place during the year or previous year upto 24

May 2009

Fortis Healthcare Limited including its subsidiaries

Religare Securities Limited

Ran Air Services Limited

Religare Travels India Limited

Religare Capital Markets Limited

Super Religare Laboratories Limited

Fortis Clinical Research Limited

Religare Enterprises Limited

Escorts Heart Institute and Research Centre Limited

10 Religare Technova IT Services Limited formerly Fortis Financial Services limited

11 Oscar Investments Limited
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25.34
25.34

215.54 233.57

0.69
54.48

32.33

32.30
40.02

48.35 48.35

1.46

0.96 0.96

2.20

0.36

250.64 250.64

279.30 279.30

98.03 98.03

638.47 638.47

97.57 97.57

434.34 434.34

44.00 44.00

1385.21

34092.19

1756.59

Schedules forming part of the consolidated financial statements
Rupees in millions except share data and if otherwise stated

SCHEDULE -23

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Transactions with the related parties

Transactions
Holding Fellow Joint Key Entities Total

company subsi- ventures management over which

diaries and personnel significant

associates influence is

exercised

7.49

18.03

13.73

32.33

Sales

Other income

Finished goods purchased

Market research
expenses

Product
quality claim

Travel and conveyance

Royalty paid

Personnel cost

Technical services availed

Purchase of fixed assets

Sale of investment

Investment made

Equity capital contribution

including premium

Equity share warrants

money received

40.06

0.23

1.46

2.20

0.36

34092.19

1756.59

1385.21

Figures in brackets are for previous year
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Sales

Nihon Pharmaceuticals

Industry Co LtdJapan

Other income

Daiichi Sankyo Co Ltd.Japan

Oscar Investments Limited India

Finished goods purchased

Zenotech Laboratories Limited

India

Daiichi Sankyo Europe GMBH

Market research
expenses

Daiichi Sankyo Co Ltd.Japan

Product quality claim

Nihon Pharmaceuticals

Industry Co Ltd.Japan

Travel and conveyance

Daiichi Sankyo Co Ltd.Japan

Royalty paid

Daiichi Sankyo Co Ltd.Japan

Personnel cost Also refer to

note 11 on schedule 23

Mr Malvinder Mohan Singh

Mr Atul Sobti

Technical services availed

Fortis Clinical Research Limited

India

Religare Capital Markets Limited

India

Religare Technova IT Services

Limited India

Joint Venture

Holding Company

Entities over which

significant influence is

exercised

Entities over which

significant influence is

exercised

Associates

Holding company

Holding company

Key management personnel

Key management personnel

Entities over which

significant influence is

exercised

Entities over which

significant influence is

exercised

Entities over which

significant influence is

exercised

40.06

6.87

237.18

29.08

233.50

Transaction in excess of 10% of the total related party transactions

Sr Transactions Related party Year ended Year ended

No relationship 31 Dec 31 Dec
2009 2008

25.34

Fortis Clinical Research Limited

215.54

15.70

16.63

48.35

Fellow subsidiary

Holding company

Joint venture

6.86

32.30

7.49

1.46

0.96

2.20

0.36

167.41

79.54

48.54

33.38

235.11

65.13
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Sr Transactions Related party Year ended Year ended

No relationship 31 Dec 31 Dec
2009 2008

10 Purchase of fixed assets

Religare Technova IT Services Entities over which 97.57 145.84

Limited India significant influence is

exercised

Fortis Clinical Research Limited Entities over which 288.50

India significant influence is

exercised

Sale of investment

Religare Enterprises Limited Entities over which 44.00

India significant influence is

exercised

12 Investments made

Zenotech Laboratories Limited Associates 385.2

India

13 Equity capital contribution

including premium

Daiichi Sankyo Co Ltd.Japan Holding company 34092.19

14 Equity share warrants

money received

Daiichi Sankyo Co Ltd.Japan Holding company 1756.59

Balances due from/to the related parties

Transactions Holding Fellow Joint Key Entities Total

company subsidiaries ventures management over which

and personnel significant

associates influence is

exercised

Debtors 16.39 16.39

12.84 12.84

Creditors 0.96 7.40 4.1 35.00 47.47

--- 3.29 38.35 41.64

Figures in brackets are for previous year

18 Segment information

Business segments

For management purposes the Group reviews the performance on the basis of business units indentified as

Pharmaceuticals and other business which are reportable segments

Pharmaceuticals segment comprises manufacture and trading of Formulations Active Pharmaceuticals Ingredients

API and Intermediate Generics Drug discovery and Consumer Health Care products

Other business comprises rendering of financial services

dl

135



Ranbaxy Laboratories Limited

Schedules forming part of the consolidated financial statements

Rupees in millions except share data and if otherwise stated

SCHEDULE -23
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Geographic Segments

The Groups business is organized into key geographic segments Revenues are attributable to individual geographic

segments based upon the location of the customers Assets and liabilities are attributable to itidividual geographi

segments based upon the location of the respective assets liabilities

Other Information

All segment revenue expenses assets and liabilities are directly attributable to the segments and disclosed

accordingly

The accounting policies consistently used in the preparation of tile consohdated financial statements are also

applied to revenues and expenditure of individual segments

Segment information disclosures as required tinder accounting standard on Segment Repori iii as specihed in

the Companies Accounting Standards Rules 2006

Primary segment information

Pharmaceuticals Others

20101 2009

0.90

0.90

0.75

Segment total

2008 2009 2008

L60 75970.36 71139.95

0.60 75970.36 71139.95

3.82 10097.62 1500025

6990.87 5.i50.81

3106.75 9.31911

19.48 111721.71 118.07131

9813.55 11.51127

121535.26 132.61358

3.20 76438.84 89.1 73.95

1662.50 79.I

78101.34 89633.06

5682.08 3.76151

2009

External revenue 75969.46 74 39.35

Totalrevenue 75969.46 74139.35

Profit loss before tax 10096.87 15.004.07

Tax charge benefit

Profit loss before tax

Segment assets 111704.58 118051.83 17.13

ITnallocated assets

Total assets

Segment liabilities 76438.63 891 70.75 0.21

Unallocated liabilities

Total liabilities

Capital expenditure 5682.08 5761.51

Depreciation amortisation

and impairment 2676.11 282 1.68 0.01 0.01 2676.12 2.82169

Non cash expenses other

than depreciation

amortisation and

impairment 489.19 985.50 3.62 489.19 181.88

Segment revenue

Segment assets

Secondary segment information Geographical

India Europe North

America

19.57 t98

19.7 19.1

15650.02

3003.00

1.3 9.60

282.63

19100.42

15827.99

63759.22

68.21 3.73

2938.13

4.274.68

Figures in brackets are for previous year

Capital expenditure

15896.71

18196.67

28512.63

fl 152.7

758.76

169.31

Asia

Pacific

6.93796

5711.68

3202.75

2970.37

73.3

201.06

Others

11.16026

1651.16

10180.61

6975.7

SI 2.25

Total

75970.36

71139.95

121 .533.26

132615.58

5682.08

5761.51
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19 The share of minority shareholders in profit loss of respective entity is as under

Name of entity For the year ended

31 December

2009 2008

Ranbaxy Malaysia Sdn Bhd 53.81 23.17

Ranbaxy Nigeria Limited 19.15 24.02

Ranbaxy Guangzhou China Limited 16.74 5.55

Terapia S.A 14.08 15.35

Ranbaxy Unichem Company Ltd 3.84 6.23

Ranbaxy Life Sciences Research Limited 2.00 1.97

Gufic Pharma Limited 0.01 0.01

Be-Tabs Pharmaceuticals Proprietary Ltd 0.13 7.02

Be-Tabs Investments Proprietary Ltd 0.05 1.05

109.45 84.37

20 The Group share in profit loss of associates is as under

Name of entity For the year ended

31 December

2009 2008

Zenotech Laboratories Limited 48.19 110.14

Shimal Research Laboratories Limited 15.81 31 .93

32.38 78.21

21 Previous year figures have been regrouped reclassified wherever necessary to conform to current years

classification Previous year figures have been audited by another firm of Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Dr Tsutomu Une Atul Sobti

Chairman CEO Managing Director

Omesh Sethi Sushil Patawari
President and CFO Go7np any Secretary

Place Gurgaon Place Gurgaon

Dated 25 February 2010 Dated 25 February 2010
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FINANCIAL DETAILS OF THE

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 2009

_______________________________ Rs in Million

sin thi 41flI1g Capital Reserses Iota Total Investments rurnoser Profit Pro
si

Profit fri posed

assets liabilities except in
before for after dividrnd

case of tax it tax

investment tn

ubs diartes

Domestic

Guile Pharma Limited 1.0000 0.50 2.32 3.05 0.23 0.24 0.31 1.04 0.26

Ranbsx Drus limited 0000 31 00 040 33 73 21 006 00t

Ranb tx lrus sod 0000 6200 29 76 17 88 1430 35 14 009 005

Chemicals Company

publtc company with

unlimited liability

Ranbaxy 11k Sciences 1.0000 50.6 19h.92 260.54 10.02 13.96 3.90 10.06

Research ltmtted

tnb ixs SI limited 0000 007 46 003 04 04

Rexcel Pharmaceuticals 1.0000 125.00 635.18 1547.70 787.52 1542.05 0.30 4.57 4.87

limited

Solos Pharmaceuticals 1.0000 149.01 625.74 1547.20 772.45 1542.05 1.19 0.45 1.64

limited

tdsut Inscstments 0000 2008 233 18 14 24 77 12 06

imited

Overseas

Raitbaxy Australia Pty Ltd 41.8410 75.73 488.13 98.73 411.13 148.25 115.16 115.16

Australia

mb sxs Belium 66 6667 37 46 19 227 4t 10 18
38 78 47 116 80 2816

Belgium

mb
txy

scm sccttttc 26 6667 46 12 180 18 404 89 122 502 84 361 41 13494 20646

tda

Brazil

Ranbaxy Do Brazil Ltda 266667 15.83 12.97 6.91 4.05 1.88 0.99 0.34 0.65

Brazil

Ranbaxy Pharmaceuticals 44.2478 99.56 470.26 1684.82 1115.00 3228.33 238.11 77.68 160.43

Canada Inc

Canada

Ranbaxy Egypt I.LC 8.4818 41.15 3.25 105.49 61.09 233.64 36.75 11.32 25.43

Egypt

Rcxcel Egypt 1..l..C
8.4818 2.04 21.34 21.16 40.46 48.46 3.67 12.10 8.43

Egypt

R.inbaxy Pharmacie 66.6667 496.56 204.57 1979.64 1278.51 2760.65 0.46 0.29 0.17

SAS

Francc

Office Pharmaceutique 66.6667 88.67 59.11 169.64 140.08 5.52 0.82 4.69

lndustciel Ft Hospttalter

SARI OPIH SARI
Fiance

Basics mbH 66.6667 325.00 419.81 1071.78 326.97 1496.60 211.46 14.62 13.84

Germany

I.apharma GmbH 66.6667 1.67 0.41
1.33 0.07 0.25 0.01 0.26

Germany

Ranbaxy Hong Kong
6.0024 14.41 74.09 257.29 168.79 650.23 83.911 83.98

imitcd

Hong Kong

Ranbaxy Hungary
0.2448 .28 0.28

Kft

Hungary

Ranbaxy Ireland Ltd 66.6667 474.10 520.93 1468.42 473.39 1743.12 73.aO 14.4 39.09

Ireland
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R.inbax Italia S.p.A 66.6667

tab

Ranb.ix Nialassia 13.5870

Sdri l3hd

511

Ranh.cx Mexico tA 3.5613

de .V

Nlexici

Ranh.txy Nigeria Ltd 0.3142

Nigeria

Ranhsa-PRP Peru 16.1031

SAC
Peru

Ranbaxv Poland SR Zoo 16.2075

Poland

Ranhax Portugal 66.6667

Corn Iesensos

lIe lr od Farmaceuttcos

Unipesoal Ldi

Iortiga

Ranbax Cuangihou 6.8166

hina limit

Republic of China

ftrapt.i 15.7233

IiiiTi.iili.i

Ierapia
Ittributic S.R.L 15.7233

Romania

lAo Ranhax 15382

Russii

Ranbaxv tA 6.2657

lroprictors .td

South Africa

Be-labs Pharmaceuticals 6.2657

lroprietary Ltd

Suuih Africa

Be-labs Investments 6.2657

Proprietary Ltd

South Africa

Si inku Pharmaceuticals 6.2657

Pt ltd

South Africa

Iaboratorios Ranbaxy S.L 66.6667

Spaiti

Ranbaxv Pharma AB 6.4977

Siseden

R.iiitbaxv Neifterlands

BA RNBV
lhe Netherlands

Riribaxv N.A.N.V

Artilles

Netherlands

Ranbaxv Uitiehcm

rn pans lid

hailind

Ranbaxy Laboratories Limited

Name of the

Subsidiary

Rs in Million

Investments brnover Profit Provision Profit lrotuosed

exrejiin before for ui Or dividend

case of tax tax lax

investment in

sufisilaries

721.85 279.14

1465.03 216.27

150.25 162.86 289.56 51.61

714.35

228.32

144.93

93.81

Capital Reserves Total Total

assets habib tics

840.00 743.76 1147.57 1053.33

108.70 686.74 1320.81 525.37

239.12 251.73

12.57 463.67

66.51 16.41

69.55 26.70

258.67 218.59

444.79 204.12

393.42 6021.88 8102.01 1686.71

1.47 1.09 861.41 860.85

4.61 256.71 1691.59 1430.27

2.27 350.76 1042.38 689.35

238.11

178.22

48.68

53.73

916.12 188.45

316.25 1.9

393.85 4.13

11857 93.55

76.35 355.49

46.61 169.66

.67 30.94

63.89 124.36

11.36 6.63

5.117 1.74

1.13 94.67

1.77 94.07

160.31 6111.22

11.23 46.35

9.13 287.91

2141 1.21

13.69 112.34

501.42 260.75 884.02 95.84

419611 771.52

1071.38 46.12

2474.118 297.16

1760.14 71.60

687.86 1867.86 1180.00 1298.38 126.23

66.11 622.23 556.12

32.03 322.95 354.98 623.28 14.40

333.33 801.06 300.14 767.87 354.26 105

7.15 2.01 146.83 141.69 323.19 117.16

46.5350 23267.64 7647.46 309.39.73 24.63 223.16 175.74

140 12.79 0.31 11.70 0.01 0.31

1.3941 139.41 199.57 344.19 5.21 533.6 48.36

139

46.5350

10.35 9.63 0.72

4.14 10.26

0.03

30.11 86.34

0.3

3.32 33.24
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Name of the

Subsidiary

Ranbaxy U.K Ltd

United Kingdom

Ranbaxy Holdings

U.K Ltd

United Kingdom

Rs in Million

Investments Turnover

except in

case of

investment in

subsidiaries

Profit Provision Profit Proposed

before for after dividend

tax tax tax

0.25 0.25

Rounded oil to nil

Dctail of Investments

Solus Pharmaceuticals Ltd Solrex Pharmaceuticals Company

partnership firm

Rexcel Pharmaceuticals ltd Sisirex Pharmaceuticals Company

partnership firm

Ranbaxy Drugs and Chemicals Company Sidmak Laboratories India Iimited

public company with unlimited
liability

Notes

Amount

Re Million

In terms of approval granted by the Central Government under Section 2120 of the Companies Act 1956 the annual accounts of the
subsidiary

companies and the related detailed inlbrmation will be made available upon request by the investors of the Company and of its subsidiary companies

Ehesc documents will also be available for
inspection by any insestorat the Head Office of the Company at 12th Flooi Devika rower Nehru Place

Ness Delhi 110019 and that of the subsidiary companies concerned

ii The Board of Diretttws at its meeting held on October 26 2009 approved kir seeking exemption from the Government tinder Section 2128 of the

Companies Act 956 in respect of the subsidiary Companies

iii The Company has consolidated the financial statements of its subsidiaries as per Accounting Standard AS 21 Consolidated Financial Statements

issued by The lnstitttte of Chartered Accountants of India

iv Ranbaxy Japan KKJapan and Ranhaxy Maxico Servicios S.A de CV .\faxico step dnssn whollyossned subsidiaries were incorporated on November 2009 and

November 13 2009 respectively Audited accounts of these so subsidiary companies not vei became due

Divested liquidated during the year

Ranhaxy Guangzhou China Limited Republic
of China

Ranhaxy Hungary Gyogyszereszeti Kft Hungary

Ranbaxv Vietnam Company Ltd Vietnam

140

Ranbaxy Eumpe Ltd 73.1880

United Kingdom

Ranbaxy Inc. USA 46.5350

Ranbaxy Pharmaccutit tls 46.3350

Inc USA

Ranbaxy USA Inc 46.5350

USA

Ohm Laboratories Inc. 46.5350

USA

Ran baxy Laboratories 46.5350

Inc USA

Ranbaxy Signature LLC 46.5350

USA

Ranbaxy Vietnam 0.0025

Company Ltd

Vietnam

Capital Reserves Total Total

assets liabilities

1635.34 1149.97 875.20 389.83 1558.65 101.69 28.43 73.26

2297.46 12.45 2312.07 2.16

0.75 40.98 228.96 187.23 437.93 21.01 6.97 14.04

604.96 2626.12 6207.86 2976.78 23.26 484.60 507.86

2961.51 9711.78 6750.27 11508.15 1218.22 253.56 964.66

216.40 823.25 606.85 14.62 27.46 42.08

11.10 2749.49 14033.84 11273.25 10056.96 315.84 203.98 111.86

1491.26 8021.56 6530.30 2095.36 232.49 474.01 241.52

548.30 2.50 55081 99.85 31.52 31.52

32.97 16.84 19.31 3.18 3.83 35.82 35.82

Name of the subsidiary Particulars Nature of Face value Numbers

investments

Capital Contribution 1542.05

Capital Contribution
1542.115

Equity shares Rs 10 167330 34.30
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